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Independent Auditors’ Report 
 (Consolidated Financial Statements) 

 
To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of ChenFull International Corporation: 

 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of CHENFULL International Company Limited and subsidiaries (the “Company”), 

which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 (restated), and the consolidated statements of comprehensive income, 

changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and the notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant 

accounting policies. 

 

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of the 

Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 (restated), and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended 

in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting 

Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect 

by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants 

and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with The 

Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance 

with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Emphasized Matter 

As stated in Note 4 of the recompiled financial statements, based on the letter with Ref. No. 1110358714 from the Financial Supervisory Commission, the 

Company is required to adjust the accounting estimates for impairment loss on receivables and the resetting of liabilities related to the contract for "Private 

Participation in the Construction and Operation of Magong 5,500 Ton Seawater Desalination Plant, " which was signed between its subsidiary, ChenFull 

Water Resources, and Taiwan Water Corporation. The recompiled financial statements cover the quarterly periods from Q3 2020 to Q2 2022. For the 

impact of this recompilation on the consolidated financial statements, please refer to Note 4 of the restated consolidated financial statements. Our auditors 

have not modified their audit opinion due to this recompilation. 

 

Key Audit Matters 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements for 

the year ended December 31, 2020 (restated). These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, 

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. 

Key audit matters for the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2020 (restated) are stated as follows: 

 

Assessment of the Authenticity of Revenue from Specific Customers 

The revenue source of CHENFULL International Co., Ltd. is the manufacturing and sale of various shoemaking machinery equipment, components, and 

materials for plant engineering piping. The auditor analyzed the sales revenue data of each customer and screened for customers that meet specific criteria. 

After evaluating, customers that meet the specific criteria were found to have higher risks regarding the recognition of sales revenue. Therefore, the 

truthfulness of the recognition of their sales revenue was listed as a key audit matter. For accounting policies and information related to revenue 

recognition, please refer to Note 4(15) and Note 22 in the financial statements. 

 

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter: 

1. Understand, evaluate, and test that the internal control system for revenue recognition is reasonable and effectively implemented. 

2. Select samples of specific customer sales revenue details and verify whether the relevant documents for revenue recognition are consistent to 

confirm the truthfulness of sales revenue. 

3. Obtain details of sales returns after the reporting period, randomly inspect their related vouchers, and examine the reasonableness of the 

returns. 

 

Assessment of the Authenticity of Revenue from Specific Customers 

The revenue source of ChenFull Precision Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the ChenFull Group, comes from the sales of optoelectronic and semiconductor 

equipment components, as well as aerospace components. Due to the recognition of sales revenue from specific customers, manual confirmation and 

verification of relevant documents are required, which may result in inappropriate recognition of revenue. Additionally, the auditing standards bulletin 

presumes revenue recognition as a significant risk, thus the authenticity of sales revenue recognition has been identified as a key audit matter. For 

accounting policies and information related to revenue recognition, please refer to Note 4(15) and Note 22 of the financial report. 

 

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter: 

1. Understand, evaluate, and test that the internal control system for revenue recognition is reasonable and effectively implemented. 

2. Select samples of specific customer sales revenue details and verify whether the relevant documents for revenue recognition are consistent to 

confirm the truthfulness of sales revenue. 

3. Obtain details of sales returns after the reporting period, randomly inspect their related vouchers, and examine the reasonableness of the 

returns. 

 

Occurrence and cutoff of revenue recognition from the export sales 

Please refer to Note 4(13) for accounting policies on revenue recognition. The sales revenue for precision technology division of CHENFULL International 

Co., Ltd. is mainly for foreign sales. The foreign sales are based on trading conditions of sales order and contractual, and the income is recognized when 

the control of the goods is transferred to the customer. The operation needs to manually confirm the sales status and check the relevant documents, which 

may cause improper circumstances in the timing of revenue recognition, and the auditing standards bulletin presupposes that the revenue recognition is a 

significant risk. Therefore, the accountant has listed the authenticity of foreign sales revenue and the correctness of the recognition time as key audit items. 

 

We performed the following audit procedures on the above key audit matter: 

1. To understand, evaluate and test the internal control system for revenue recognition is reasonable and effectively implemented. 

2. Select samples from the export sales details to check customer orders, shipping orders, export declaration documents and other related documents to 

confirm the authenticity of the export revenue and the correctness of the recognition time. 

3. Obtain the details of the return of the export sales after the period, check the relevant vouchers and check the rationality of the reason for the return. 

 

Other Matter 

We have also audited the Consolidated Financial Statements of CHENFULL International Company Limited as of and for the years ended 

December 31, 2022 and 2021 (restated) on which we have issued an unmodified opinion. 
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statement in accordance with the Regulations Governing 

the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 

Consolidated Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the Consolidated Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 

disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 

the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance (including Supervisors) are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 

whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a 

guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always detect a material 

misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could 

reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Consolidated Financial Statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Consolidated Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 

perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 

opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 

involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 

management. 

 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 

whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related 

disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 

on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

continue as a going concern. 

 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Consolidated Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 

Consolidated Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Company to 

express an opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group 

audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other 

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that 

we identify during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.  

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the 

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 

auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter 

should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest 

benefits of such communication. 

 

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Tseng, Chien-Ming and Liu,Shu-Lin. 

 

Deloitte & Touche 

Taipei, Taiwan 

The Republic of China 

                                                                                

March 13, 2023 
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Chenfull International Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

 

 

ASSETS    

December 31,2022 

  
December 31,2021 

 

       

CURRENT ASSETS       

Cash and cash equivalents       $ 1,150,739    $ 1,534,096 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current       112,432     115,056 

Contract assets - current       973,050     686,918 

Notes receivable        9,398     25,183 

Trade receivables        510,727     495,552 

Other receivables       10,893     8,852 

Current tax assets       203     13 

Inventories       695,165     647,570 

Prepayments       44,298     93,264 

Non-current assets held for sale       -     2,462 

Other financial assets - current       25,923     21,312 

Other current assets       6,877     12,659 

Total current assets       3,539,705     3,642,937 

       

NON-CURRENT ASSETS       

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - non-current       31,848     29,053 

Property, plant and equipment       1,426,695     1,608,192 

Right-of-use asset       135,671     143,208 

Investment property       210,894     165,046 

Intangible assets       21,302     22,557 

Deferred tax assets       46,712     75,137 

Long-term notes and trade receivables       -     217,375 

Other non-current assets       228,039     11,516 

Total non-current assets       2,101,161     2,272,084 

             

TOTAL       $ 5,640,866    $ 5,915,021 

       

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY       

       

CURRENT LIABILITIES       

Contract liabilities - current      $ 175,238    $ 187,870 

Trade payables        678,896     624,621 

Other payables       315,491     847,917 

Current tax liabilities       54,825     61,742 

Lease liabilities- current        7,037     6,944 

Other current liabilities       2,711     2,668 

Total current liabilities       1,234,198     1,731,762 

       

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES       

Deferred tax liability       16,083     10,136 

Lease liabilities - non-current       135,010     142,047 

Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current       27,166     36,763 

Other Non-Current Liabilities       1,925     1,268 

Total non-current liabilities       180,184     190,214 

             

Total liabilities       1,414,382     1,921,976 

       

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY       

Share capital       

Ordinary shares       1,137,605     1,181,925 

Capital surplus       1,208,562     1,491,515 

Retained earnings       

Legal reserve       465,623     465,623 

Special reserve       18,139     17,730 

Unappropriated earnings (or accumulated deficits)       725,349     445,636 

Total retained earnings       1,209,111     928,989 

Other equity     (  13,106) )   (  18,139) ) 

Treasury shares     (  31,717) )   (  5,205) ) 

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company       3,510,455     3,579,085 

       

Non-controlling interests       716,029     413,960 

             

Total equity       4,226,484     3,993,045 

             

TOTAL      $ 5,640,866    $ 5,915,021 

       

       
 

 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

 

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2023) 
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Chenfull International Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)  

                                                                December 31 

     

 2022 

 

 2021 

(restated) 

OPERATING REVENUE (Note 4 & 

22)     

    

Sales        $ 2,597,911    $ 2,237,014 

Construction revenue         1,367,242     1,142,944 

Service revenue         54,031     123,359 

Total operating revenue         4,019,184     3,503,317 

         

OPERATING COSTS (Note 10, 20 & 

23)     

 

 

 

 

Cost of goods sold         1,828,639     1,618,000 

Construction costs         1,262,063     905,534 

Service costs         65,394     144,155 

Total operating costs         3,156,096     2,667,689 

         

GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS)         863,088     835,628 

         

OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 20 & 

23)     

 

 

 

 

Selling and marketing expenses         126,648     104,842 

General and administrative expenses         305,171     262,854 

Research and development expenses         67,811     48,012 

Expected credit loss         959     4,717 

Total operating expenses         500,589     420,425 

         

OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES         -   (  27,555 ) 

         

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM 

OPERATIONS     

 

   362,499 

 

   387,648 

         

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND 

EXPENSES (Note 23)     

 

 

 

 

Interest income         11,427     13,989 

Other income         15,095     22,252 

Other gains and losses         165,951   (  12,304 ) 

Finance costs       (  2,318 )   (  2,188 ) 

Total non-operating income and 

expenses     

 

   190,155 

 

   21,749 

         

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME 

TAX FROM CONTINUING 

OPERATIONS     

 

  $ 552,654 

 

  $ 409,397 

               

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(BENEFIT) 

(Note 4 & 25)     

 

 (  126,662 ) 

 

 (  62,011 ) 

             (Continued)  
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Chenfull International Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)  

 

    December 31 

     

 2022 

 

 2021 

(restated) 

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE 

PERIOD     

 

   425,992 

 

   347,386 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME/(LOSS)     

 

 

 

 

Items that will not be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss:     

 

 

 

 

Remeasurement of defined benefit 

plans     

 

   6,530 

 

 (  9,132 ) 

Unrealized (gain)/loss on Fair value 

through other comprehensive 

income     

 

   2,795 

 

   209 

Items that may be reclassified 

subsequently to profit or loss:     

 

 

 

 

Exchange differences on translating 

the financial statements of foreign 

operations     

 

   2,238 

 

 (  618 ) 

Other comprehensive income/(loss)         11,563   (  9,541 ) 

         

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE 

PERIOD     

 

  $ 437,555 

 

  $ 337,845 

         

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) 

ATTRIBUTABLE TO:     

 

 

 

 

Owners of the Company        $ 299,525    $ 315,046 

Non-controlling interests         126,467     32,340 

        $ 425,992    $ 347,386 

         

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME/(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE 

TO:     

 

 

 

 

Owners of the Company        $ 311,124    $ 307,540 

Non-controlling interests         126,431     30,305 

        $ 437,555    $ 337,845 

         

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 26)         

From continuing operations         

Basic        $ 2.62    $ 2.67 

Diluted        $ 2.61    $ 2.67 

         

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

 

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2023)                               (Concluded) 
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Chenfull International Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

 

 

       

   

 

     Other Equity         

        

Exchange 

Differences on 

Translating the      

Financial 

Statements of 

Foreign  

Unrealized 

Gain/(Loss) on 

Available-for-sal

e         

      Retained Earnings             

    Share Capital  Capital Surplus  Legal Reserve  Special Reserve  

Unappropriated 

Earnings  Operations  Financial Assets  

Treasury 

Shares  Total  

Non-controlling 

Interests  Total Equity 
 BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2021     $ 1,181,925    $ 881,342    $ 432,288    $ 18,257    $ 465,976   ( $ 18,584 )    $ 854   ( $ 5,205 )    $ 2,956,853    $ -    $ 2,956,853 

                                                          

 Appropriations of prior year’s earnings  
                      

 Legal capital reserve      -     -     33,335     -   (  33,335 )     -     -     -     -     -     - 

 Special capital reserve      -     -     -   (  527 )     527     -     -     -     -     -     - 

 Cash dividends to shareholders  
    -     -     -     -   (  295,481 )     -     -     -   (  295,481 )     -   (  295,481 ) 

                                                          
 Issued to subsidiary dividend adjustment capital 

reserve 

 

    -     704     -     -     -     -     -     -     704     -     704 

                                                          
 Share-based payment transactions with 

subsidiaries 

 

    -     7,782     -     -     -     -     -     -     7,782     2,278     10,060 

                                                          

 Non-controlling interests (NCI) gain/loss  
    -     28,488     -     -     -     -     -     -     28,488     108,156     136,644 

                                                          

 Actual Disposal of Partial Equity Interest in 

ChenFull Precision Subsidiary 

 

    -     573,199     -     -     -     -     -     -     573,199     273,221     846,420 

                                                          

 Net profit/(loss) for the twelve months ended 

December 31,2021 

 

    -     -     -     -     315,046     -     -     -     315,046     32,340     347,386 
                                                          

 Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the 

twelve months ended December 31,2021 

 

    -     -     -     -   (  7,097 )   (  618 )     209     -   (  7,506 )   (  2,035 )   (  9,541 ) 
                                                          

 Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the twelve 

months ended December 31,2021 

 

    -     -     -     -     307,949   (  618 )     209     -     307,540     30,305     337,845 

                                                          

 BALANCE AT December 31,2021      1,181,925     1,491,515     465,623     17,730     445,636   (  19,202 )     1,063   (  5,205 )     3,579,085     413,960     3,993,045 

                                                          

 Appropriations of prior year’s earnings                        

 Special capital reserve  
    -     -     -     409   (  409 )     -     -     -     -     -     - 

                                                          

 Issued to subsidiary dividend adjustment capital 

reserve 

 

    -     736     -     -     -     -     -     -     736     -     736 
                                                          

 Other changes in capital surplus:  
                      

 Capital surplus distributed as cash dividends  
    -   (  295,481 )     -     -     -     -     -     -   (  295,481 )     -   (  295,481 ) 

                                                          

 Treasury stock repurchase      -     -     -     -     -     -     -   (  207,720 )   (  207,720 )     -   (  207,720 ) 

                                                          

 Retirement of Treasury Stock  
  (  44,320 )   (  110,919 )     -     -   (  25,969 )     -     -     181,208     -     -     - 

                                                          

 Cash dividends to subsidiary shareholders      -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -     -   (  78,720 )   (  78,720 ) 
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 Share-based payments to subsidiary company  

    -     13,118     -     -     -     -     -     -     13,118     12,232     25,350 
                                                          

 Gain/Loss on Changes in Non-controlling 

Interests 

 

    -     161,618     -     -     -     -     -     -     161,618     230,088     391,706 

                                                          

 Realized disposal of partial equity interests in 

ChenFull Precision Co., Ltd. 

 

    -   (  52,025 )     -     -     -     -     -     -   (  52,025 )     12,038   (  39,987 ) 
                                                          
 Net profit/(loss) for the twelve months ended 

December 31,2022 

 

    -     -     -     -     299,525     -     -     -     299,525     126,467     425,992 

                                                          

 Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the 

twelve months ended December 31,2022, net of 

income tax 

 

    -     -     -     -     6,566     2,238     2,795     -     11,599   (  36 )     11,563 
                                                          

 Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the twelve 

months ended December 31,2022 

 

    -     -     -     -     306,091     2,238     2,795     -     311,124     126,431     437,555 

                                                          

 BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,2022  
   $ 1,137,605    $ 1,208,562    $ 465,623    $ 18,139    $ 725,349   ( $ 16,964 )    $ 3,858   ( $ 31,717 )    $ 3,510,455    $ 716,029    $ 4,226,484 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2023) 
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Chenfull International Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

  
For the Twelve Months Ended  

December 31 

  
2022 

  
2021 

(restated) 

     

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Income before income tax    $ 552,654    $ 409,397 

Adjustments for:     

Depreciation expenses     145,096     170,280 

Amortization Expense     9,296     12,224 

Expected credit loss recognized/(reversed) on trade receivables     959     4,717 
Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes of financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss     12,770 
 
   5,057 

Finance costs     2,318     2,188 

Other income and expenses     -     27,555 

Inventory write-down     3,344     - 

Reversal of write-downs of inventories     -   (  29,774 ) 

Interest income   (  11,427 )   (  13,989 ) 

Dividend income   (  8,792 )   (  6,891 ) 

Stock-based compensation expense     25,350     10,060 

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment   (  6,014 )   (  793 ) 
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value through 

profit or loss     1,693 
 

 (  3,594 ) 

Reversal deferred revenue   (  48 )   (  49 ) 

Gain/Loss on Disposal of Subsidiary   (  66,092 )     - 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities     

(Increase)/decrease in contract assets   (  286,132 )   (  83,893 ) 

(Increase)/decrease in notes receivable     15,785     27,433 

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables   (  65,244 )   (  89,243 ) 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories   (  50,939 )   (  157,003 ) 

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments     31,178   (  26,058 ) 

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets     3,471   (  8,181 ) 

(Increase)/decrease in contract liabilities   (  12,632 )   (  179,446 ) 

Increase/(decrease) in notes payable     59,363     327,303 

Increase/(decrease) in other payables     62,367     86,820 

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities     43     43 

Net defined benefit liability   (  1,434 )   (  29,218 ) 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations     416,933     454,945 

Interest income     11,687     14,026 

Interest paid   ( $ 2,318 )  ( $ 2,188 ) 

Income tax paid   (  179,618 )   (  65,198 ) 

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities     246,684     401,585 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   (  218,517 )   (  332,591 ) 
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss     206,678 
 

   266,406 

Net cash outflow from disposal of subsidiary   (  174,315 )     - 

Proceeds from disposal of non-current assets held for sale     8,391     - 

    (Continued) 
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Chenfull International Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 
 

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

   

 

  
For the Twelve Months Ended  

December 31 

                                                                 2022             2021  

                (restated)  

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES     

Payments for property, plant and equipment   (  41,757 )   (  88,189 ) 

Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment     110     1,188 

Acquisition of Intangible Assets   (  7,767 )   (  10,360 ) 

Increase/(Decrease) in other financial assets   (  4,611 )     1,299 

Increase in other non-current assets   (  242,841 )   (  5,569 ) 

Dividend received     8,792     6,891 

Increase in refundable deposits   (  170 )   (  3,569 ) 

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities   (  466,007 )   (  164,494 ) 
     

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Increase in short-term loans     160,000     205,192 

Decrease in short-term loans   (  160,000 )   (  205,192 ) 

Increase in short-term notes     -     30,000 

Decrease in short-term notes     -   (  30,000 ) 

Decrease/(Increase) in refundable deposits     705     225 

Decrease in Lease liabilities   (  6,944 )   (  6,914 ) 

  Cash dividends paid   (  294,745 )   (  294,777 ) 

Cost of Treasury Stock   (  207,720 )     - 

Proceeds from the Sale of Partial Equity Interest in Subsidiary     28,887     869,657 

Non-controlling interests (NCI) changes     312,986     113,407 

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities   (  166,831 )     681,598 
     

EFFECTS OF EXCHANGE RATE CHANGES ON THE BALANCE 

OF CASH HELD IN FOREIGN CURRENCIES     2,797 
 
 (  767 ) 

           
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS   (  383,357 ) 
 
   917,922 

           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 

YEAR     1,534,096 
 
   616,174 

           

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR    $ 1,150,739    $ 1,534,096 
     

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial statements. 

 

 (With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2023) (Concluded)
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ChenFull International Co., Ltd.  
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified) 

 

 1. Company history: 

ChenFull International Co., Ltd. (the “Company") was established in April 1982. ChenFull’s business scope includes semiconductor control equipment 

system engineering; buying, selling, designing, manufacturing, and constructing cleanroom, ultrapure water equipment pipelines, and various chemical 

engineering equipment; manufacturing and trading of various hydraulic, mechanical parts, factory engineering pipeline materials, and precision molds; 

design planning of machinery and equipment for entire shoe factories and the manufacturing, processing, and trading of related material products; as 

well as the manufacturing and trading of various aircraft equipment. 

 

ChenFull's stock has been listed and traded on the Taipei Exchange (TPEx) since September 2004. 

 

This consolidated financial report is expressed in functional New Taiwan dollars of ChenFull. 

 

 2. Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements: 

 

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on March 

13, 2023. 

 

 3. New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted: 

 

1) Initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC 

Interpreations (SIC) (collectively, “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC). 

Except for the following, the initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by 

Securities Issuers and the IFRSs endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC did not have a significant effect on ChenFull and its subsidiaries’ 

(collectively as the “Company”) accounting policies: 

 

2) IFRSs approved by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) for the year 2023. 

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted      

Effective Date 

Issued by IASB  

Amendments to IAS 1  "Disclosure of Accounting Policies"  January 1, 2023 

Amendment to IAS 8  "Definition of Accounting Estimates"  January 1, 2023 
Amendment to IAS 12 "Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 

arising from a Single Transaction" 

 January 1, 2023 

 

Note 1: This amendment is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023. 

Note 2: Changes in accounting estimates and accounting policies that occur during reporting periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 shall 

apply this amendment. 

Note 3: Except for the recognition of deferred tax related to temporary differences of leases and decommissioning obligations as of January 1, 

2022, this amendment is applicable to transactions occurring on or after January 1, 2022. 

As of the date of approval of this consolidated financial report, the Company has assessed that the amendments to other standards and 

interpretations will not have a significant impact on its financial position and financial performance. 

 

3) IFRSs that have been issued by the IASB but have not yet been approved and published by the FSC for implementation. 

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted      

Effective Date 

Issued by IASB  

Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 "Sale or Contribution of Assets 

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture" 

 Undefined 

Amendment to IFRS 16 "Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and 

Leaseback" 

 January 1, 2024 

IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts"  January 1, 2023 
Amendments to IFRS 17  January 1, 2023 
Amendment to IFRS 17 "Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - 

Comparative Information" 

 January 1, 2023 

Amendment to IAS 1 "Classification of Liabilities as Current or 

Non-current" 

 January 1, 2024 

Amendment to IAS 1 "Non-current Liabilities that are within the 

Scope of a Disposal Group" 

 January 1, 2024 

  

Note 1: Unless otherwise specified, the above new, revised, or amended standards or interpretations are effective for annual reporting periods 

beginning on or after the respective dates. 

Note 2: A seller-lessee shall retrospectively apply the amendments to IFRS 16 to sale and leaseback transactions entered into after the initial 

application of IFRS 16. 

As of the date of issuance of this consolidated financial report, the Company continues to evaluate the impact of other new or revised standards or 

interpretations on its financial position and performance, and such impacts will be disclosed upon completion of the assessment. 

 

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 

a. Statement of compliance 

 

This consolidated financial report is prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standards for Issuers of Securities and the IFRSs 

approved and issued by the Financial Supervisory Commission. 

 

b. Reasons for financial statements restatement and their impact 

 

On November 1, 2022, the Consolidated Company received a letter from the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) requesting the Company to 

adjust accounting estimates related to the impairment of accounts receivable and the reset of liability reserves for the contract of "Private 

Participation in the Construction and Operation of the 5,500 Tons per day Seawater Desalination Plant in Magong" signed between its subsidiary, 

CTCI Water Co., Ltd. and Taiwan Water Corporation. The adjustment involved shortening the estimated operating period from 20 years to 15.7 
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years and recognizing the adjusted reset costs since the date of signing the supplemental agreement on October 29, 2020. Therefore, the 

Consolidated Company restated its financial statements for the periods from Q3 of 2020 to Q2 of 2021 according to the FSC's directive. 

 

The impact of the restatement on the comprehensive income statement for the year ended December 31, 2021, is as follows: 

 

Impact on Comprehensive Income for the Year 2021 

 

 

 
Original Amount  

Adjustment 

Amount 
 Revised Amount 

Revenue    $ 3,503,317    $ -    $ 3,503,317 

Cost of sales   (  2,667,689 )     -   (  2,667,689 ) 

Operating expenses   (  420,425 )     -   (  420,425 ) 

Other income and expenses   (  488,902 )     461,347   (  27,555 ) 

Other non-operating income 

and expenses 

 

   21,749     -     21,749 

Income tax expense   (  72,460 )     10,449   (  62,011 ) 

Net (loss) profit for the year   (  124,410 )     471,796     347,386 

Other comprehensive income 

(net) 

 

 (  9,541 )     -   (  9,541 ) 

Total comprehensive income 

for the year 

 

 ( $ 133,951 )    $ 471,796    $ 337,845 

       

Net (loss) profit attributable 

to: 

 

     

Owners of the Company   ( $ 156,750 )    $ 471,796    $ 315,046 

Non-controlling interests     32,340     -     32,340 

   ( $ 124,410 )    $ 471,796    $ 347,386 

Total comprehensive income 

attributable to: 

 

     

Owners of the Company   ( $ 164,256 )    $ 471,796    $ 307,540 

Non-controlling interests     30,305     -     30,305 

   ( $ 133,951 )    $ 471,796    $ 337,845 

 

c. Basis of preparation 

 

Except for financial instruments measured at fair value and net defined benefit liability recognized at fair value less plan assets, the consolidated 

financial statements are prepared on a historical cost basis. 

 

Fair value measurement is categorized into Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 based on the degree of observability and significance of the inputs as 

follows: 

 

(1) Level 1 inputs: Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active market on the measurement date. 

(2) Level 2 inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., 

as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices). 

(3) Level 3 inputs: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

 

 

d. Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities 

 

Current assets include:  

 

1) Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;  

2) Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period; and  

3) Cash and cash equivalents unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 12 months after the 

reporting period. 

 

Current liabilities include: 

 

1) Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

2) Liabilities due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period, even if an agreement to refinance, or to reschedule payments, on a 

long-term basis is completed after the reporting period and before the consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue; and 

3) Liabilities for which the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting period. Terms 

of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 

classification. 

 

Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are classified as non-current. 

 

The Group engages in the construction business, which has an operating cycle of over 1 year. The normal operating cycle applies when considering 

the classification of the Group’s construction-related assets and liabilities. 

 

e.  Basis of consolidation 

 

   Principles for preparing consolidated financial statements 

 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and the entities controlled by the Company (i.e. its 

subsidiaries, including structured entities). 

 

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and 

other comprehensive income from the effective date of acquisition up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. 

 

See Note 12 for the detailed information of subsidiaries (including the percentage of ownership and main business). 

 

f. Foreign currencies 
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When preparing financial statements, transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency of each entity are translated into 

the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction dates.  

 

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the closing exchange rates on each balance sheet 

date.  

 

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated at the exchange rates on the dates when the 

fair values were determined, and any resulting exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income, depending 

on the nature of the item. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange 

rates on the transaction dates and are not re-measured subsequently.  

 

When preparing consolidated financial statements, assets and liabilities of foreign operations (including subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures, or 

branches whose operations are conducted in countries or currencies different from those of the Thousand Summit Corporation) are translated into 

New Taiwan dollars at the exchange rates prevailing on each balance sheet date. Revenues and expenses are translated at the average exchange 

rates for the period, and any resulting exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

 

g. Inventories  

 

Inventories consist of raw materials, supplies, finished goods and work-in-process and are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value. 

Inventory write-downs are made by item, except where it may be appropriate to group similar or related items. Net realizable value is the estimated 

selling price of inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Inventories are recorded at the 

weighted-average cost on the balance sheet date. 

 

h. Property, plant and equipment 

 

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment. Costs include any incremental costs that are directly attributable to the construction or 

acquisition of the item of property, plant and equipment.  

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees 

and borrowing costs eligible for capitalization. Such assets are depreciated and classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and 

equipment when completed and ready for their intended use. 

 

i. Investment property  

 

Investment properties are held for earning rental income or capital appreciation or both. 

 

Investment properties owned by the company are initially measured at cost (including transaction costs) and subsequently measured at cost less 

accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Straight-line depreciation is used for the company’s investment properties. 

 

Real estate, plant and equipment that are transferred to investment properties are measured at their carrying amounts at the date of reclassification. 

 

When investment properties are disposed of, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in 

profit or loss. 

 

j. Intangible Assets 

 

1. Acquired Separately 

Intangible assets with a limited useful life acquired separately are initially measured at cost, including transaction costs, and subsequently 

measured at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method 

over their useful lives. At least annually, the estimated useful lives, residual values and amortization method are reviewed, with changes in 

accounting estimates deferred. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

2. Disposal 

When intangible assets are disposed of, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the 

income statement. 

 

k. Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use Assets, Investment Properties, Intangible Assets (excluding Goodwill) and Contract 

Costs 

 

At each balance sheet date, the consolidated company assesses whether there are any indications that Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use 

Assets, Investment Properties, and Intangible Assets (excluding Goodwill) may be impaired. If any impairment indicators exist, the consolidated 

company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the 

consolidated company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Shared assets are allocated to 

individual cash-generating units on a reasonable and consistent basis. 

 

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. When the recoverable amount of an individual asset or 

a cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable 

amount, and the impairment loss is recognized in the income statement. 

 

When an impairment loss reverses in a subsequent period, the carrying amount of the asset, cash-generating unit, or contract costs related asset is 

increased to the revised recoverable amount, but not exceeding the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been 

recognized in prior years (after deducting depreciation or amortization). The reversal of the impairment loss is recognized in the income statement. 

 

l. Assets held for sale 

 

The carrying amount of a non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale when its expected primary means of recovery is through 

sale rather than continuing use, and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition, and the sale is highly 

probable. When an appropriate level of management commits to a plan to sell the asset and the sale is expected to be completed within one year 

from the date of classification, the asset is considered to be held for sale and meets the criteria of being highly probable for sale. 

 

m. Financial instruments  

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or 



- 13 - 

issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to 

or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly 

attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or 

loss. 

 

1) Financial assets 

 

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a [trade date basis/settlement date basis]. 

 

a) Measurement category  

 

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: Financial assets at FVTPL, financial 

assets at amortized cost and equity instruments at FVTOCI. 

 

i. Financial asset at FVTPL 

 

Financial asset is classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is mandatorily classified 

or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial assets mandatorily classified as at FVTPL include 

investments in equity instruments which are not designated as at FVTOCI and debt 

instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria. 

 

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or losses 

arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized in 

profit or loss does not incorporate any dividend or interest earned on the financial asset. Fair 

value is determined in the manner described in Note 29.  

 

ii. Financial assets at amortized cost 

 

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized 

cost: 

 

i) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial 

assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

 

ii) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost, including cash and cash 

equivalents and accounts receivable at amortized cost, are measured at amortized cost, 

which equals to gross carrying amount determined by the effective interest method less any 

impairment loss. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss. 

 

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying 

amount of a financial asset, except for: 

 

i) Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset, for which interest income is 

calculated by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of 

the financial asset; and 

 

ii) Financial asset that has subsequently become credit-impaired, for which interest income 

is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial 

asset. 

 

Cash equivalents include time deposits and repurchase agreements collateralized by 

commercial papers with original maturities within 3 months from the date of acquisition, 

which are highly liquid, readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an 

insignificant risk of changes in value. These cash equivalents are held for the purpose of 

meeting short-term cash commitments. 

 

iii. Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI 

 

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election to designate investments 

in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the equity 

investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized by an acquirer 

in a business combination. 

 

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value with 

gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive 

income and accumulated in other equity. The cumulative gain or loss will not be reclassified 

to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to 

retained earnings. 

 

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss when 

the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly 

represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 

 

b) Impairment of financial assets 

 

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets at 

amortized cost (including accounts receivables) and lease receivables. 

 

The Group always recognizes lifetime Expected Credit Loss (i.e. ECL) for accounts receivables 

and lease receivables. 
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Expected credit losses reflect the weighted average of credit losses with the respective risks of a 

default occurring as the weights. Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will 

result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In 

contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from 

default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting 

date. 

 

The Group recognizes an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for financial assets stated 

above with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance 

account. 

 

c) Derecognition of financial assets 

 

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows 

from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and 

rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. 

 

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortized cost in its entirety, the difference between the 

asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized 

in profit or loss. On derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument at FVTOCI, the 

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and 

receivable is recognized in profit or loss, and the cumulative gain or loss that had been 

recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred directly to retained earnings, without 

recycling through profit or loss. 

 

2) Equity instruments 

 

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the 

substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

 

Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognized at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs. 

 

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized in and deducted directly from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in 

profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. 

 

2) Financial liabilities 

 

a) Subsequent measurement 

 

All the financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. 

 

b) Derecognition of financial liabilities 

 

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the 

consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 

recognized in profit or loss.  

 

n. Provision for liabilities 

 

The amount recognized as a provision for liabilities (including contractual obligations to maintain or restore infrastructure explicitly specified in 

service concession agreements) is the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date, taking 

into account the risks and uncertainties associated with the obligation. 

 

o. Revenue recognition 

 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates 

and other similar allowances. Allowance for sales returns and liability for returns are recognized at the time of sale based on the seller’s reliable 

estimate of future returns and based on past experience and other relevant factors. 

 

1) Sale of goods 

 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

 

a) The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods; 

 

b) The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually associated with ownership nor effective control over 

the goods sold; 

 

c) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

 

d) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Group; and 

 

e) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

 

The Group does not recognize sales revenue on materials delivered to subcontractors because this delivery does not involve a transfer of risks 

and rewards of materials ownership. 

 

Revenue from the sale of property in the course of ordinary activities is recognized when the construction is completed and the property is 

transferred to the buyer. Until such revenue is recognized, deposits and installment payments received from sales of properties are carried in 

the consolidated balance sheets under current liabilities. 

 

The sale of goods that results in awarded credits for customers under the Group’s award scheme is accounted for as a multiple element revenue 

transaction, and the fair value of the consideration received or receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and the awarded credits 

granted. The consideration allocated to the awarded credits is measured by reference to their fair value, the amount for which the awarded 
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credits could be sold separately. Such consideration is not recognized as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction but is deferred and 

recognized as revenue when the awarded credits are redeemed and the Group’s obligations have been fulfilled. 

 

2) Rendering of services 

 

Service income is recognized when services are provided. 

 

3) Construction contracts 

 

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognized by reference to the stage of 

completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred to date 

relative to the estimated total contract costs. Variations in contract work, claims and incentive payments are included to the extent the 

amount can be measured reliably and its receipt is considered probable. 

 

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue from cost plus contracts is recognized by reference to the 

recoverable costs incurred during the period plus the fee earned, measured by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the estimated 

total costs of the contract. 

 

p. Government grants 

 

Government grants are recognized only when it is reasonably certain that the combined company will comply with the conditions attached to 

the government grant and that the grant will be received. 

 

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis during the period in which the related costs that they intend to 

compensate are recognized as expenses by the merged company. Government subsidies on the condition that the merged company should 

purchase, construct, or otherwise obtain non-current assets are recognized as deferred income and are transferred to profit or loss on the 

reasonable and systematic basis over the useful life of the relevant assets. 

 

If the government subsidy is used to compensate for the expenses or losses that have occurred, or for the purpose of giving immediate 

financial support to the merged company and has no future related costs, it is recognized in profit or loss during the period it can be received. 

 

q. Leasing 

 

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. 

 

a. The Company as lessor 

 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of a lease transfer substantially all the risks 

and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The current 

lease contract of the Company are all operating leases. 

 

Lease payments (less any lease incentives payable) from operating leases are recognized as income on a 

straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases. 

 

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Company assesses the classification of each 

element separately as a finance or an operating lease based on the assessment as to whether substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 

ownership of each element have been transferred to 

the Company. The lease payments are allocated between the land and the building elements in proportion to the relative fair values of the 

leasehold interests in the land element and building element 

of the lease at the inception of a contract. If the allocation of the lease payments can be made reliably, 

each element is accounted for separately in accordance with its lease classification. When the lease 

payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease is 

generally classified as a finance lease unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases; in which 

case, the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. 

 

b. The Company as lessee 

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases at the commencement 

date of a lease, except for short-term leases and low-value asset leases accounted for applying a 

recognition exemption where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis over 

the lease terms. 

 

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial measurement of lease 

liabilities adjusted for lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial direct 

costs incurred and an estimate of costs needed to restore the underlying assets, and less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets are 

subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liabilities. 

 

Right-of-use assets are presented on a separate line in the consolidated balance sheets. Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line 

method from the commencement dates to the earlier of the end of the useful lives of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease terms. Lease 

liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, which comprise fixed payments, in-substance fixed payments, variable 

lease payments which depend on an index or a rate. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in a lease, if that rate can be 

readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. 

Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, with 

interest expense recognized over the lease terms. When there is a change in a lease term or a change in 

future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine those payments, 

the Company remeasures the lease liabilities with a corresponding adjustment to the right-of-use-assets. 

However, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero, any remaining amount of 

the remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss. Lease liabilities are presented on a separate line in the 

consolidated balance sheets. 

 

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses in the 

periods in which they are incurred.  

 

r. Employee benefits 
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1) Short-term employee benefits 

 

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid 

in exchange for the related service. 

 

 

2) Retirement benefits 

 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when employees have rendered services entitling them 

to the contributions. 

 

Defined benefit costs (including service cost, net interest and remeasurement) under defined benefit retirement benefit plans are determined 

using the projected unit credit method. Service cost (including current service cost, and net interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset)) 

are recognized as employee benefit expenses in the period they occur. Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, and the return on 

plan assets (excluding interest), is recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which it occurs. Remeasurement recognized in 

other comprehensive income is reflected immediately in retained earnings and other equity and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.  

 

Net defined benefit liability (asset) represents the actual deficit (surplus) in the Group’s defined benefit plan. Any surplus resulting from this 

calculation is limited to the present value of any refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans. 

 

 

s. Employee share options 

 

Employee share options are measured at fair value on the grant date, taking into account the best estimate of the number of options expected to 

vest, and are expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting period. Non-controlling interests are adjusted at the same time. If the options 

vest immediately on the grant date, the entire expense is recognized on that date. For subsidiaries of the consolidated company that issue 

employee share options through a cash capital increase, the grant date is the date approved by the board of directors. 

 

t. Taxation 

 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

1) Current tax 

 

According to the Income Tax Law, an additional tax at 10% of unappropriated earnings is provided for as income tax in the year the 

shareholders approve to retain the earnings. 

 

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or deducted from the current year’s tax provision. 

 

2) Deferred tax 

 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities and the corresponding tax bases 

used in the computation of taxable profit.  

 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all 

[deductible temporary differences, unused loss carry forward and unused tax credits for purchases of machinery, equipment and technology, 

research and development expenditures, and personnel training expenditures] to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be 

available against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilized.  

 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates, and 

interests in joint arrangements, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the 

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary differences associated 

with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits against 

which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer 

probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. A previously unrecognized deferred tax 

asset is also reviewed at the end of each reporting period and recognized to the to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable 

profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. 

 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled or the 

asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The 

measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects, 

at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. If investment properties measured using 

the fair value model are non-depreciable assets, or are held under a business model whose objective is not to consume substantially all of the 

economic benefits embodied in the assets over time, the carrying amounts of such assets are presumed to be recovered entirely through sale. 

 

3) Current and deferred taxes for the year 

 

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive 

income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred taxes are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 

equity, respectively. 

 

 

5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 

When adopting accounting policies, the management of the consolidated company must make judgments, estimates, and assumptions based on 

historical experience and other relevant factors when information is not readily available from other sources. Actual results may differ from estimates. 

 

Provision for restructuring liabilities 

The consolidated company estimates the related restructuring costs in accordance with regulations, based on the schedule and estimated costs of the 

relevant equipment to reflect the best estimate. Changes in important parameters such as underlying assumptions and timing of related costs may 

significantly affect the amount of the consolidated company's provision for restructuring liabilities. 
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The management will continue to review estimates and underlying assumptions. If the revision of estimates affects only the current period, it will be 

recognized in that period. If the revision of accounting estimates affects both the current period and future periods, it will be recognized in both the 

current and future periods. 

 

 6. Cash and cash equivalents 

 

    

December 31, 

2022  

 December 31, 

2021 

       

Cash on hand      $ 765    $ 605 
Checking accounts and demand deposits       699,875     1,010,503 
Cash equivalents (investments with original 

maturities of less than 3 months)       
Time deposits        -     12,456 
RP       428,830     490,400 

Fully entrusted investment accounts    

 

 

 Current account deposits       21,269     20,132 
      $ 1,150,739    $ 1,534,096 

 

The merged company signed a discretionary asset management agreement with Time Securities Investment Consulting Co., Ltd. The bank deposits 

held in the discretionary account as of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 were NT$21,269 thousand dollars and NT$20,132 thousand 

dollars, respectively. The interest rate ranges for bank deposits, time deposits, and repurchase agreements on the balance sheet dates were as follows: 

 

 

    

December 31, 

2022  

 December 31, 

2021 

       

Bank balance    0.001%～1.05%  0.001%～0.2% 

Time deposits    -  0.28% 

RP    0.8%～4.3%  0.22%～0.37% 

 

 7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

 

    

December 31, 

2022  

 December 31, 

2021 

Financial assets at FVTPL - current       

Financial assets mandatorily classified as at 

FVTPL       

Non-derivative financial assets       

Domestic listed shares investments      $ 33,832    $ 58,686 

Mutual funds       78,600     56,370 

      $ 112,432    $ 115,056 

       

       

8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  

 

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI 

 

                   December 31,          

                      2022 

December 31,               

     2021    

Non-current     

Domestic investments     

Unlisted (OTC) stocks       

Ordinary shares                   $      31,848    $ 29,053 

 

The merging company invests in unlisted (OTC) stocks for its medium to long-term strategic objectives and expects to earn profits through 

long-term investments. The management believes that if the short-term fair value fluctuations of these investments are recognized in the income 

statement, it would not align with the aforementioned long-term investment plan. Therefore, the company chooses to designate these investments 

as measured at fair value through other comprehensive income. 

 

9. NOTES RECEIVABLE, TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 

  
  

  

December 31, 

2022  

 December 31, 

2021 

Notes receivable       

Incurred in the course of business      $ 9,679    $ 25,464 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss       (  281 )   (  281 ) 

        $ 9,398    $ 25,183 

       

Trade receivable       

At amortized cost       

Gross carrying amount         $ 517,040    $ 501,671 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss       (  6,313 )   (  6,119 ) 

        $ 510,727    $ 495,552 

       

 

Other receivables       

Others      $ 10,893    $ 8,852 

 

 

Long-term notes and accounts receivable       

Long-term notes and accounts receivable      $ -    $ 350,300 

Less: Long-term notes and accounts receivable 

due within 1 year       -   (  39,605 ) 
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Less: Allowance for impairment loss       -   (  93,320 ) 

      $ -    $ 217,375 

 

 

Overdue receivables       

At amortized cost       

Gross carrying amount         $ 10,810    $ 10,045 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss       (  10,810 )   (  10,045 ) 

        $ -    $ -  
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I. Independent Auditors’ Report, Financial Statements and Consolidated 
Financial Statements for 2022 

(Parent Company Only Financial Statements) 
 

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of ChenFull International Corporation: 
 
Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying parent financial statements of CHENFULL International Company Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the 

parent balance sheets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 (restated), and the parent statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows 

for the years then ended, and the notes to the parent financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies. 

 

In our opinion, the accompanying parent financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the parent financial position of the Company as of 

December 31, 2022 and 2021 (restated), and its parent financial performance and its parent cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the 

Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International 

Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC Interpretations (SIC) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory 

Commission of the Republic of China. 

 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants 

and auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ 

Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with The Norm 

of Professional Ethics for Certified Public Accountant of the Republic of China and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 

these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

 

Emphasized Matter 

As stated in Note 4 of the recompiled financial statements, based on the letter with Ref. No. 1110358714 from the Financial Supervisory Commission, the 

Company is required to adjust the accounting estimates for impairment loss on receivables and the resetting of liabilities related to the contract for "Private 

Participation in the Construction and Operation of Magong 5,500 Ton Seawater Desalination Plant, " which was signed between its subsidiary, ChenFull 

Water Resources, and Taiwan Water Corporation. The recompiled financial statements cover the quarterly periods from Q3 2020 to Q2 2022. For the 

impact of this recompilation on the consolidated financial statements, please refer to Note 4 of the restated parent company only financial statements. Our 

auditors have not modified their audit opinion due to this recompilation. 

 

Key Audit Matter 

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the parent financial statements for the year 

ended December 31, 2022. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the parent financial statements as a whole, and in forming our 

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this matter. 

Key audit matter for the Company’s parent financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 are stated as follows: 

 

Assessment of the Authenticity of Revenue from Specific Customers 

Regarding the accounting policy for revenue recognition, please refer to Note 4(13) of the financial statements. 

The sales revenue of CHENFULL International Co., Ltd. comes from the manufacturing and selling of various shoe machinery equipment, components, 

and materials for factory engineering pipelines. We analyzed the sales revenue data of each customer and screened customers that meet specific criteria. 

After evaluating that sales revenue from these customers with specific criteria has a higher risk, the authenticity of revenue recognition for such sales 

revenue is identified as a key audit matter. 

 

We performed the following main response procedures for the above-mentioned key audit matter: 

1. Understand, evaluate, and test the internal control system for revenue recognition, which is reasonable and effectively implemented. 

2. Select a sample of specific customer sales revenue details, verify whether the relevant documents for revenue recognition are consistent, and 

confirm the authenticity of the sales revenue. 

3. Obtain the details of sales returns after the period, randomly select and examine the relevant vouchers, and examine the reasonableness of the 

returns. 

 

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Parent Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Parent Financial Statement in accordance with the Regulations Governing the 

Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 

Parent Financial Statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

 

In preparing the Parent Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as 

applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or 

to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. 

 

Those charged with governance (including Supervisors) are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Parent Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Parent Financial Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether 

due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 

an audit conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always detect a material misstatement when 

it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 

influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of the Parent Financial Statements. 

 

As part of an audit in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 

professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

 

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Parent Financial Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform 

audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 

risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, 

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, 

but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 

 

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
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management. 

 

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 

whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a 

going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related 

disclosures in the Parent Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 

audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to 

continue as a going concern. 

 

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Parent Financial Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Parent 

Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Company to 

express an opinion on the Parent Financial Statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. 

We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 

planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify 

during our audit.  

 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 

communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 

safeguards.  

 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Parent 

Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless 

law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be 

communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such 

communication. 

 

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Tseng, Chien-Ming and Liu,Shu-Lin. 

 

Deloitte & Touche 

Taipei, Taiwan 

The Republic of China 

                                                                                

March 13, 2023 
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Chenfull International Co., Ltd.  

PARENT BALANCE SHEETS  

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

 

 

ASSETS    

December 

31,2022 

  

December 

31,2021 

 

       

CURRENT ASSETS       

Cash and cash equivalents       $ 118,797    $ 830,142 

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss - current       65,644     40,145 

Contract assets - current       956,645     633,983 

Notes receivable        9,392     22,396 

Trade receivables       240,301     149,656 

Trade receivables - related parties       -     9,721 

Other receivables       1,953     5,856 

Other receivables - related parties       480     88 

Inventories       401,376     330,812 

Prepayments       12,618     66,215 

Other financial assets - current       101     9,634 

Other current assets       6,866     12,647 

Total current assets       1,814,173     2,111,295 

       

NON-CURRENT ASSETS       

Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income - non-current       30,004     29,053 

Investments Accounted for Using Equity Method       1,486,350     1,199,228 

Property, plant and equipment       572,286     619,133 

Net Investment property       259,250     213,138 

Intangible assets       10,870     13,521 

Deferred tax assets       42,471     52,926 

Other non-current assets       74,377     7,169 

Total non-current assets       2,475,608     2,134,168 

             

TOTAL       $4,289,781    $4,245,463 

       

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY       

       

CURRENT LIABILITIES       

Current contract liabilities      $ 118,633    $ 94,166 

Trade payables        493,369     373,642 

Trade payables - related parties       345     - 

Other payables       123,698     103,191 

Other payables - related parties       -     327 

Current tax liabilities       3,688     10,005 

Other current liabilities       1,347     1,050 

Total current liabilities       741,080     582,381 

       

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES       

Deferred tax liabilities       13,551     9,024 

Net defined benefit liabilities - non-current       24,683     34,293 

Investment in equity method investees, net of impairment       -     40,665 

Other non-current liabilities       12     15 

Lease liabilities - non-current       38,246     83,997 

             

Total liabilities       779,326     666,378 

          

EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE COMPANY       

Share capital       

Ordinary shares      1,137,605    1,181,925  

Capital surplus     1,208,562    1,491,515 

Retained earnings       

Legal reserve       465,623     465,623 

Special reserve       18,139     17,730 

Unappropriated earnings (or accumulated deficits)       725,349     445,636 

Total retained earnings       1,209,111     928,989 

Other equity     (13,106)    (18,139) 

Treasury shares      (   31,717)    (    5,205) 

Total equity attributable to owners of the Company    3,428,649  3,389,545 

       

Total equity       3,510,455     3,579,085 

             

TOTAL      $4,289,781    $4,245,463 

       

       
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent financial statements. 

 

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2023) 
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Chenfull International Co., Ltd.  
 

PARENT STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share)  

 

      2022  2021 (restated) 

OPERATING REVENUE (Note 4, 21 & 30)         

Sales        $ 615,744    $ 421,954 

Construction revenue         1,355,697     1,137,464 

Total operating revenue         1,971,441     1,559,418 

            

OPERATING COSTS (Note 10,19,22 & 30)         

Cost of goods sold         465,112     323,276 

Construction costs         1,249,322     897,817 

Total operating costs         1,714,434     1,221,093 

               

GROSS PROFIT/(LOSS)         257,007     338,325 

         

UNREALIZED PROFIT ON TRANSACTIONS 

WITH SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND 

JOINT VENTURES     

 

   - 

 

 (  4,576 ) 

               

REALIZED PROFIT ON TRANSACTIONS WITH 

SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT 

VENTURES     

 

   4,576 

 

   - 

         

OPERATING EXPENSES (Note 19, 22 & 30)         

Selling and marketing expenses         60,999     44,423 

General and administrative expenses         167,546     159,482 

Research and development expenses         30,251     30,321 

Expected credit loss         959     4,717 

Total operating expenses         259,755     238,943 

            

PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM OPERATIONS         1,828     94,806 

         

NON-OPERATING INCOME AND EXPENSES 

(Note 22 & 30)     

 

 

 

 

Interest income         748     830 

Other income         32,291     30,408 

Other gains and losses         63,554   ( 1,033) 

Finance costs       ( $ 254 )   ( $ 176 ) 

Share of Profit or Loss of Associates & Joint 

Ventures Accounted for Using Equity Method 

(Note 11)     

 

   231,465 

 

   190,299 

Total non-operating income and expenses         327,804     220,328 

         

PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE INCOME TAX FROM 

CONTINUING OPERATIONS     

 

   329,632 

 

   315,134 

               

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(BENEFIT) (Note 4 & 23)       (  30,107 )   (  88 ) 

               

NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD         299,525     315,046 

 

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS)     

 

 

 

 

Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to 

profit or loss:     

 

 

 

 

Remeasurement of defined benefit plans         6,627   (  2,217 ) 

Unrealized (gain)/loss on Fair value through other 

comprehensive income     

 

   951 

 

   209 

Share of Profit of Associates Accounted for Using 

Equity Method     

 

   1,783 

 

 (  4,880 ) 

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or 

loss:     

 

 

 

 

Exchange differences on translating the financial 

statements of foreign operations     

 

   2,238 

 

 (  618 ) 

Other comprehensive income/(loss)         11,599   (  7,506 ) 

               

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR 

THE PERIOD     

 

  $ 311,124 

 

  $ 307,540 

         

EARNINGS PER SHARE (Note 24)         

From continuing operations         

Basic        $ 2.62    $ 2.67 

Diluted        $ 2.61    $ 2.67 

 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent financial statements. 

 

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2023)                               
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Chenfull International Co., Ltd. 
 e 

PARENT STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (RESTATED) 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)  

 

 

         Other Equity   

      Retained Earnings   

Exchange Differences 

on Translating the      

Financial Statements 

of   

Unrealized 

Gain/(Loss) on   

 

    

          Unappropriated   Foreign  Available-for-sale        

  Share Capital  Capital Surplus  Legal Reserve  Special Reserve  Earnings   Operations  Financial Assets  

 Treasury 

Shares   Total Equity 

                      

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1, 2021  $ 1,181,925  $881,342  $432,288  $18,257  $  465,976   ( $ 18,584 )  $ 854   ($ 5,205)   $ 2,956,853 

Appropriations of prior year’s earnings                      

Legal capital reserve  -  -  33,335  -  (  33,335 )   -  -   -   - 

Special capital reserve  -  -  -  (  527 )  527   -  -   -   - 

Cash dividends to shareholders  -  -  -  -  (  295,481 )   -  -   -   ( 295,481) 

                      

Issued to subsidiary dividend adjustment capital reserve  -          704  -  -  -   -  -   -   704 

                      

Share-based payments of subsidiaries  -  7,782  -  -  -   -  -   -   7,782 

Gain/Loss on changes in non-controlling interests 

(Note 27) 

 

-  28,488  -  -  -   -  -  

 

-   28,488 

Disposal of Partial Equity Interest in ChenFull 

Precision Subsidiary (Note 27) 

 

-  573,199  -  -  -   -  -  

 

-   573,199 

Net loss for the twelve months ended December 

31,2021 

 

-  -  -  -  315,046   -  -  

 

-   315,046 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the twelve 

months ended December 31,2021 net of income tax 

 

-  -  -  -  (  7,097)   (  618 )  209  

 

-   (7,506) 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the twelve 

months ended December 31,2021 

 

-  -  -  -  307,949   (  618 )  209  

 

-   307,540 

                      

BALANCE AT December 31,2021  $ 1,181,925  $1,491,515  465,623  17,730  445,636   (  19,202 )  1,063   ($ 5,205)   3,579,085 

                      

Appropriations of prior year’s earnings                      

Special capital reserve  -  -  -  409  (  409 )   -  -   -   - 

Issued to subsidiary dividend adjustment capital reserve  -          736  -  -  -   -  -   -   736 

                      

Other capital surplus changes                      

  Capital surplus distribution  -  (  295,481)  -  -  -   -  -   -   (295,481) 

Repurchase of Treasury Stock  -  -              ( 207,720)   (207,720) 

Cancellation of treasury shares  (44,320)  (  110,919)  -  -  (  25,969 )   -  -   181,208   - 

Share-based payments of subsidiaries  -  13,118  -  -  -   -  -   -   13,118 

Non-controlling interests changes (Note 27)  -  161,618  -  -  -   -  -   -   161,618 

Disposal of Partial Equity Interest in ChenFull 

Precision Subsidiary (Note 27) 

 

-  ( 52,025)  -  -  -   -  -  

 

-   (52,025) 

                      

Net profit/(loss) for the twelve months ended December 

31,2022 

 

-  -  -  -  299,525   -  -  

 

-   299,525 

Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the twelve 

months ended December 31,2022, net of income tax 

 

-  -  -  -  6,566   2,238  2,795  

 

-   11,599 

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the twelve 

months ended December 31,2022 

 

-  -  -  -  306,091   2,238  2,795  

 

-   311,124 

                      

BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,2022  $ 1,137,605  $1,208,562  $465,623  $18,139  $   725,349   ($   16,964)  $           3,858   ($31,717)   $   3,510,455 

                      
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent financial statements. 
(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2023)
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Chenfull International Co., Ltd.  
 

PARENT STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

  
For the Twelve Months Ended  

December 31 

  2022  2021 (restated) 

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES     

Income before income tax    $ 329,632    $ 315,134 

Adjustments for:     

Depreciation expenses     27,858     28,411 

Amortization expense     6,275     7,990 

Expected credit loss recognized/(reversed) on trade receivables     959     4,717 
Net (gain)/loss on fair value changes of financial assets at fair 

value through profit or loss     6,590 
 

   2,825 

Finance costs     254     176 

Interest income   (  748 )   (  830 ) 

Dividend income   (  6,174 )   (  3,610 ) 

Stock-based compensation expense     6,762     2,278 

Equity in loss (gain) of subsidiary    (  231,465 )   (  190,299 ) 

(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment   (  69 )   (  737 ) 
Net (gain)/loss on disposal of financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss     803 
 

 (  4,663 ) 

Reversal of write-downs of inventories     912   (  25,162 ) 

Unrealized Profit on Intercompany Sales     -     4,576 

Realized Profit on Intercompany Sales   (  4,576 )     - 

Gain on disposal of subsidiary   (  66,092 )     - 
Changes in operating assets and liabilities     

(Increase)/decrease in contract assets   (  322,662 )   (  78,602 ) 

(Increase)/decrease in notes receivable     13,004     22,745 

(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables   (  81,883 )   (  32,674 ) 

(Increase)/decrease in inventories   (  71,476 )   (  75,229 ) 

(Increase)/decrease in prepayments     53,597   (  24,698 ) 

(Increase)/decrease in other current assets     9,280   (  9,901 ) 

(Increase)/decrease in contract liabilities     24,467   (  112,516 ) 

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables     120,072     219,870 

Increase/(decrease) in other payables     18,215     12,010 

Increase/(decrease) in other current liabilities     297   (  15,952 ) 

Increase/(decrease) in net defined benefit liability   (  1,326 )   (  15,268 ) 

Cash generated from/(used in) operations   (  167,494 )     30,591 

Interest received    $ 760    $ 828 

Interest paid   (  254 )   (  176 ) 

Income tax paid   (  92,533 )   (  45,988 ) 

Net cash generated from/(used in) operating activities   (  259,521 )   (  14,745 ) 
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES   

Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss   (  90,414 )   (  103,764 ) 

Decrease in FVTOCI financial assets     57,522     80,403 

Disposal of subsidiary (Note 26)     42     - 

Payments for property, plant and equipment   (  23,615 )   (  16,538 ) 
Proceeds from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit 

or loss     92 
 
   1,132 

Increase in deposits and guarantees received   (  46 )   (  832 ) 

Purchase of intangible assets   (  3,624 )   (  7,854 ) 
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Proceeds from disposal of intangible assets     -     6,041 

Decrease in other financial assets     9,533     160 

Increase in other assets-non-current   (  68,727 )   (  1,280 ) 

Dividend received     141,730     33,610 

Net cash generated from/(used in) investing activities     22,493   (  8,922 ) 
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES     

Increase in short-term loans     160,000     135,192 

Decrease in short-term loans   (  160,000 )   (  135,192 ) 

Increase in short-term notes     -     30,000 

Decrease in short-term notes     -   (  30,000 ) 

Increase in guarantee deposits received     -     5 

Decrease in guarantee deposits received   (  3 )     - 

  Cash dividends paid   (  295,481 )   (  295,481 ) 

  Cost of treasury stock   (  207,720 )     - 

Proceeds from disposal of subsidiary's partial equity     28,887     869,657 

Net cash generated from/(used in) financing activities   (  474,317 )     574,181 
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH 

EQUIVALENTS   (  711,345 ) 
 

   550,514 
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF 

THE YEAR     830,142 
 

   279,628 

           
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE 

YEAR    $ 118,797 
 

  $ 830,142 
 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the parent financial statements 

(With Deloitte & Touche audit report dated March 13, 2023)  
 

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS  

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2022 AND 2021 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Unless Otherwise Specified) 

 

 1. Company history: 

ChenFull International Co., Ltd. (the “Company") was established in April 1982. ChenFull’s business 

scope includes semiconductor control equipment system engineering; buying, selling, designing, 

manufacturing, and constructing cleanroom, ultrapure water equipment pipelines, and various 

chemical engineering equipment; manufacturing and trading of various hydraulic, mechanical parts, 

factory engineering pipeline materials, and precision molds; design planning of machinery and 

equipment for entire shoe factories and the manufacturing, processing, and trading of related material 

products; as well as the manufacturing and trading of various aircraft equipment. 

 

ChenFull's stock has been listed and traded on the Taipei Exchange (TPEx) since September 2004. 

 

This consolidated financial report is expressed in functional New Taiwan dollars of ChenFull. 

 

 2. Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements: 

 

The consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on 

March 13, 2023. 

 

 3. New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted: 

 

4) Initial application of the amendments to the Regulations Governing the Preparation of 

Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS), International Accounting Standards (IAS), IFRIC Interpretations (IFRIC), and SIC 
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Interpreations (SIC) (collectively, “IFRSs”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial 

Supervisory Commission (FSC). 

Except for the following, the initial application of the amendments to the Regulations 

Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the IFRSs endorsed 

and issued into effect by the FSC did not have a significant effect on ChenFull and its 

subsidiaries’ (collectively as the “Company”) accounting policies: 

 

5) IFRSs approved by the Financial Supervisory Commission (FSC) for the year 2023. 

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted      

Effective Date 

Issued by IASB  

Amendments to IAS 1  "Disclosure of Accounting Policies"  January 1, 2023 

Amendment to IAS 8  "Definition of Accounting Estimates"  January 1, 2023 
Amendment to IAS 12 "Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities 

arising from a Single Transaction" 

 January 1, 2023 

 

Note 1: This amendment is applicable to annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 

1, 2023. 

Note 2: Changes in accounting estimates and accounting policies that occur during reporting 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023 shall apply this amendment. 

Note 3: Except for the recognition of deferred tax related to temporary differences of leases and 

decommissioning obligations as of January 1, 2022, this amendment is applicable to 

transactions occurring on or after January 1, 2022. 

As of the date of approval of this consolidated financial report, the Company has assessed that the 

amendments to other standards and interpretations will not have a significant impact on its 

financial position and financial performance. 

 

6) IFRSs that have been issued by the IASB but have not yet been approved and published by the 

FSC for implementation. 

New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted      

Effective Date 

Issued by IASB  

Amendment to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 "Sale or Contribution of Assets 

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture" 

 Undefined 

Amendment to IFRS 16 "Leases: Lease Liability in a Sale and 

Leaseback" 

 January 1, 2024 

IFRS 17 "Insurance Contracts"  January 1, 2023 
Amendments to IFRS 17  January 1, 2023 
Amendment to IFRS 17 "Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 - 

Comparative Information" 

 January 1, 2023 

Amendment to IAS 1 "Classification of Liabilities as Current or 

Non-current" 

 January 1, 2024 

Amendment to IAS 1 "Non-current Liabilities that are within the 

Scope of a Disposal Group" 

 January 1, 2024 

  

Note 1: Unless otherwise specified, the above new, revised, or amended standards or 

interpretations are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after the respective 

dates. 

Note 2: A seller-lessee shall retrospectively apply the amendments to IFRS 16 to sale and 

leaseback transactions entered into after the initial application of IFRS 16. 

As of the date of issuance of this consolidated financial report, the Company continues to 

evaluate the impact of other new or revised standards or interpretations on its financial 

position and performance, and such impacts will be disclosed upon completion of the 

assessment. 

 

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES  

 



- 27 - 

u. Statement of compliance 

 

This consolidated financial report is prepared in accordance with the Financial Reporting 

Standards for Issuers of Securities and the IFRSs approved and issued by the Financial 

Supervisory Commission. 

 

v. Reasons for financial statements restatement and their impact 

 

On November 1, 2022, the Consolidated Company received a letter from the Financial 

Supervisory Commission (FSC) requesting the Company to adjust accounting estimates related to 

the impairment of accounts receivable and the reset of liability reserves for the contract of 

"Private Participation in the Construction and Operation of the 5,500 Tons per day Seawater 

Desalination Plant in Magong" signed between its subsidiary, CTCI Water Co., Ltd. and Taiwan 

Water Corporation. The adjustment involved shortening the estimated operating period from 20 

years to 15.7 years and recognizing the adjusted reset costs since the date of signing the 

supplemental agreement on October 29, 2020. Therefore, the Consolidated Company restated its 

financial statements for the periods from Q3 of 2020 to Q2 of 2021 according to the FSC's 

directive. 

 

The impact of the restatement on the comprehensive income statement for the year ended 

December 31, 2021, is as follows: 

 

Impact on Comprehensive Income for the Year 2021 

 

 

 
Original Amount  

Adjustment 

Amount 
 Revised Amount 

Revenue    $ 1,559,418    $ -    $ 1,559,418 
Cost of sales   (  1,221,093 )     -   (  1,221,093 ) 
Unrealized Profit on 

Intercompany Sales 

 
 (  4,576 )     -   (  4,576 ) 

Operating expenses   (  238,943 )     -   (  238,943 ) 
Other income and expenses   (  251,468 )     471,796     220,328 
Income tax expense   (  88 )     -   (  88 ) 
Net (loss) profit for the year   (  156,750 )     471,796     315,046 
Other comprehensive income 

(net) 

 
 (  7,506 )     -   (  7,506 ) 

Total comprehensive income 

for the year 

 
 ( $ 164,256 )    $ 471,796    $ 307,540 

       

 

w. Basis of preparation 

 

Except for financial instruments measured at fair value and net defined benefit liability 

recognized at fair value less plan assets, the consolidated financial statements are prepared on a 

historical cost basis. 

 

Fair value measurement is categorized into Level 1, Level 2, and Level 3 based on the degree of 

observability and significance of the inputs as follows: 

 

(4) Level 1 inputs: Unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or liabilities in an active 

market on the measurement date. 

(5) Level 2 inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., 

derived from prices). 
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(6) Level 3 inputs: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

 

 

x. Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities 

 

Current assets include:  

 

1) Assets held primarily for the purpose of trading;  

2) Assets expected to be realized within 12 months after the reporting period; and  

3) Cash and cash equivalents unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle 

a liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period. 

 

Current liabilities include: 

 

1) Liabilities held primarily for the purpose of trading; 

2) Liabilities due to be settled within 12 months after the reporting period, even if an agreement 

to refinance, or to reschedule payments, on a long-term basis is completed after the reporting 

period and before the consolidated financial statements are authorized for issue; and 

3) Liabilities for which the Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at 

least 12 months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the 

counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its 

classification. 

 

Assets and liabilities that are not classified as current are classified as non-current. 

 

The Group engages in the construction business, which has an operating cycle of over 1 year. The 

normal operating cycle applies when considering the classification of the Group’s 

construction-related assets and liabilities. 

 

y.  Basis of consolidation 

 

   Principles for preparing consolidated financial statements 

 

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and 

the entities controlled by the Company (i.e. its subsidiaries, including structured entities). 

 

Income and expenses of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the period are included in 

the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the effective 

date of acquisition up to the effective date of disposal, as appropriate. 

 

See Note 12 for the detailed information of subsidiaries (including the percentage of ownership 

and main business). 

 

z. Foreign currencies 

 

When preparing financial statements, transactions denominated in currencies other than the 

functional currency of each entity are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates 

prevailing on the transaction dates.  

 

Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at 

the closing exchange rates on each balance sheet date.  

 

Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are 

translated at the exchange rates on the dates when the fair values were determined, and any 

resulting exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss or in other comprehensive income, 
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depending on the nature of the item. Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that 

are measured at historical cost are translated at the exchange rates on the transaction dates and are 

not re-measured subsequently.  

 

When preparing consolidated financial statements, assets and liabilities of foreign operations 

(including subsidiaries, associates, joint ventures, or branches whose operations are conducted in 

countries or currencies different from those of the Thousand Summit Corporation) are translated 

into New Taiwan dollars at the exchange rates prevailing on each balance sheet date. Revenues 

and expenses are translated at the average exchange rates for the period, and any resulting 

exchange differences are recognized in other comprehensive income. 

 

aa. Inventories  

 

Inventories consist of raw materials, supplies, finished goods and work-in-process and are stated 

at the lower of cost or net realizable value. Inventory write-downs are made by item, except 

where it may be appropriate to group similar or related items. Net realizable value is the 

estimated selling price of inventories less all estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to 

make the sale. Inventories are recorded at the weighted-average cost on the balance sheet date. 

 

bb. Property, plant and equipment 

 

Property, plant and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and 

accumulated 

impairment. Costs include any incremental costs that are directly attributable to the construction 

or 

acquisition of the item of property, plant and equipment.  

Property, plant and equipment in the course of construction are carried at cost, less any 

recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and borrowing costs eligible for 

capitalization. Such assets are depreciated and classified to the appropriate categories of property, 

plant and equipment when completed and ready for their intended use. 

 

cc. Investment property  

 

Investment properties are held for earning rental income or capital appreciation or both. 

 

Investment properties owned by the company are initially measured at cost (including transaction 

costs) and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated 

impairment losses. Straight-line depreciation is used for the company’s investment properties. 

 

Real estate, plant and equipment that are transferred to investment properties are measured at 

their carrying amounts at the date of reclassification. 

 

When investment properties are disposed of, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and 

the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit or loss. 

 

dd. Intangible Assets 

 

1. Acquired Separately 

Intangible assets with a limited useful life acquired separately are initially measured at cost, 

including transaction costs, and subsequently measured at cost less accumulated amortization and 

accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets are amortized using the straight-line method 

over their useful lives. At least annually, the estimated useful lives, residual values and 

amortization method are reviewed, with changes in accounting estimates deferred. Intangible 

assets with indefinite useful lives are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

2. Disposal 
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When intangible assets are disposed of, the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 

carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the income statement. 

 

ee. Impairment of Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use Assets, Investment Properties, 

Intangible Assets (excluding Goodwill) and Contract Costs 

 

At each balance sheet date, the consolidated company assesses whether there are any indications 

that Property, Plant and Equipment, Right-of-use Assets, Investment Properties, and Intangible 

Assets (excluding Goodwill) may be impaired. If any impairment indicators exist, the 

consolidated company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If it is not possible to 

estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the consolidated company estimates the 

recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs. Shared assets are 

allocated to individual cash-generating units on a reasonable and consistent basis. 

 

The recoverable amount is the higher of the fair value less costs to sell and the value in use. When 

the recoverable amount of an individual asset or a cash-generating unit is lower than its carrying 

amount, the carrying amount of the asset or cash-generating unit is reduced to its recoverable 

amount, and the impairment loss is recognized in the income statement. 

 

When an impairment loss reverses in a subsequent period, the carrying amount of the asset, 

cash-generating unit, or contract costs related asset is increased to the revised recoverable amount, 

but not exceeding the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss 

been recognized in prior years (after deducting depreciation or amortization). The reversal of the 

impairment loss is recognized in the income statement. 

 

ff. Assets held for sale 

 

The carrying amount of a non-current asset (or disposal group) is classified as held for sale when 

its expected primary means of recovery is through sale rather than continuing use, and the asset 

(or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition, and the sale is highly 

probable. When an appropriate level of management commits to a plan to sell the asset and the 

sale is expected to be completed within one year from the date of classification, the asset is 

considered to be held for sale and meets the criteria of being highly probable for sale. 

 

gg. Financial instruments  

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognized when a group entity becomes a party to 

the contractual provisions of the instruments. 

 

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that 

are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities 

(other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added 

to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on 

initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or 

financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or 

loss. 

 

1) Financial assets 

 

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a 

[trade date basis/settlement date basis]. 

 

a) Measurement category  

 

Financial assets are classified into the following categories: Financial assets at FVTPL, 
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financial 

assets at amortized cost and equity instruments at FVTOCI. 

 

i. Financial asset at FVTPL 

 

Financial asset is classified as at FVTPL when the financial asset is mandatorily 

classified 

or it is designated as at FVTPL. Financial assets mandatorily classified as at FVTPL 

include 

investments in equity instruments which are not designated as at FVTOCI and debt 

instruments that do not meet the amortized cost criteria or the FVTOCI criteria. 

 

Financial assets at FVTPL are subsequently measured at fair value, with any gains or 

losses 

arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss recognized 

in 

profit or loss does not incorporate any dividend or interest earned on the financial 

asset. Fair 

value is determined in the manner described in Note 29.  

 

ii. Financial assets at amortized cost 

 

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at 

amortized 

cost: 

 

i) The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial 

assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and 

 

ii) The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows 

that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding. 

 

Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets at amortized cost, including cash and 

cash 

equivalents and accounts receivable at amortized cost, are measured at amortized cost, 

which equals to gross carrying amount determined by the effective interest method less 

any 

impairment loss. Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss. 

 

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying 

amount of a financial asset, except for: 

 

i) Purchased or originated credit-impaired financial asset, for which interest income is 

calculated by applying the credit-adjusted effective interest rate to the amortized cost of 

the financial asset; and 

 

ii) Financial asset that has subsequently become credit-impaired, for which interest 

income 

is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortized cost of the financial 

asset. 

 

Cash equivalents include time deposits and repurchase agreements collateralized by 

commercial papers with original maturities within 3 months from the date of acquisition, 

which are highly liquid, readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to 

an 
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insignificant risk of changes in value. These cash equivalents are held for the purpose of 

meeting short-term cash commitments. 

 

iii. Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI 

 

On initial recognition, the Group may make an irrevocable election to designate 

investments 

in equity instruments as at FVTOCI. Designation at FVTOCI is not permitted if the 

equity 

investment is held for trading or if it is contingent consideration recognized by an 

acquirer 

in a business combination. 

 

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are subsequently measured at fair value 

with 

gains and losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive 

income and accumulated in other equity. The cumulative gain or loss will not be 

reclassified 

to profit or loss on disposal of the equity investments, instead, they will be transferred to 

retained earnings. 

 

Dividends on these investments in equity instruments are recognized in profit or loss 

when 

the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established, unless the dividends clearly 

represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment. 

 

b) Impairment of financial assets 

 

The Group recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses on financial assets at 

amortized cost (including accounts receivables) and lease receivables. 

 

The Group always recognizes lifetime Expected Credit Loss (i.e. ECL) for accounts 

receivables 

and lease receivables. 

 

Expected credit losses reflect the weighted average of credit losses with the respective 

risks of a 

default occurring as the weights. Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that 

will 

result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In 

contrast, 12-month ECL represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result 

from 

default events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12 months after the 

reporting 

date. 

 

The Group recognizes an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for financial assets 

stated 

above with a corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance 

account. 

 

c) Derecognition of financial assets 

 

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash 

flows 
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from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks 

and 

rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. 

 

On derecognition of a financial asset at amortized cost in its entirety, the difference 

between the 

asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is 

recognized 

in profit or loss. On derecognition of an investment in an equity instrument at FVTOCI, 

the 

difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received 

and 

receivable is recognized in profit or loss, and the cumulative gain or loss that had been 

recognized in other comprehensive income is transferred directly to retained earnings, 

without 

recycling through profit or loss. 

 

2) Equity instruments 

 

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity are classified as either financial 

liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements 

and the definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument. 

 

Equity instruments issued by a group entity are recognized at the proceeds received, net 

of direct issue costs. 

 

Repurchase of the Company’s own equity instruments is recognized in and deducted 

directly from equity. No gain or loss is recognized in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, 

issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. 

 

2) Financial liabilities 

 

a) Subsequent measurement 

 

All the financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest 

method. 

 

b) Derecognition of financial liabilities 

 

The difference between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized 

and the 

consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is 

recognized in profit or loss.  

 

hh. Provision for liabilities 

 

The amount recognized as a provision for liabilities (including contractual obligations to 

maintain or restore infrastructure explicitly specified in service concession agreements) is the 

best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet 

date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties associated with the obligation. 

 

ii. Revenue recognition 

 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is 

reduced for estimated customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances. Allowance for 
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sales returns and liability for returns are recognized at the time of sale based on the seller’s 

reliable estimate of future returns and based on past experience and other relevant factors. 

 

1) Sale of goods 

 

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when all the following conditions are satisfied: 

 

a) The Group has transferred to the buyer the significant risks and rewards of ownership of 

the goods; 

 

b) The Group retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually 

associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold; 

 

c) The amount of revenue can be measured reliably; 

 

d) It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the 

Group; and 

 

e) The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably. 

 

The Group does not recognize sales revenue on materials delivered to subcontractors because 

this delivery does not involve a transfer of risks and rewards of materials ownership. 

 

Revenue from the sale of property in the course of ordinary activities is recognized when the 

construction is completed and the property is transferred to the buyer. Until such revenue is 

recognized, deposits and installment payments received from sales of properties are carried in 

the consolidated balance sheets under current liabilities. 

 

The sale of goods that results in awarded credits for customers under the Group’s award 

scheme is accounted for as a multiple element revenue transaction, and the fair value of the 

consideration received or receivable is allocated between the goods supplied and the awarded 

credits granted. The consideration allocated to the awarded credits is measured by reference 

to their fair value, the amount for which the awarded credits could be sold separately. Such 

consideration is not recognized as revenue at the time of the initial sale transaction but is 

deferred and recognized as revenue when the awarded credits are redeemed and the Group’s 

obligations have been fulfilled. 

 

2) Rendering of services 

 

Service income is recognized when services are provided. 

 

3) Construction contracts 

 

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue and costs 

are recognized by reference to the stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of 

the reporting period, measured based on the proportion of contract costs incurred to date 

relative to the estimated total contract costs. Variations in contract work, claims and 

incentive payments are included to the extent the amount can be measured reliably and its 

receipt is considered probable. 

 

When the outcome of a construction contract can be estimated reliably, revenue from cost 

plus contracts is recognized by reference to the recoverable costs incurred during the period 

plus the fee earned, measured by the proportion that costs incurred to date bear to the 

estimated total costs of the contract. 
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jj. Government grants 

 

Government grants are recognized only when it is reasonably certain that the combined 

company will comply with the conditions attached to the government grant and that the 

grant will be received. 

 

Government grants are recognized in profit or loss on a systematic basis during the period 

in which the related costs that they intend to compensate are recognized as expenses by the 

merged company. Government subsidies on the condition that the merged company should 

purchase, construct, or otherwise obtain non-current assets are recognized as deferred 

income and are transferred to profit or loss on the reasonable and systematic basis over the 

useful life of the relevant assets. 

 

If the government subsidy is used to compensate for the expenses or losses that have 

occurred, or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the merged company 

and has no future related costs, it is recognized in profit or loss during the period it can be 

received. 

 

kk. Leasing 

 

At the inception of a contract, the Company assesses whether the contract is, or contains, a lease. 

 

a. The Company as lessor 

 

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms of a lease transfer substantially all the 

risks 

and rewards of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases. The 

current 

lease contract of the Company are all operating leases. 

 

Lease payments (less any lease incentives payable) from operating leases are recognized as 

income on a 

straight-line basis over the terms of the relevant leases. 

 

When a lease includes both land and building elements, the Company assesses the classification 

of each 

element separately as a finance or an operating lease based on the assessment as to whether 

substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of each element have been 

transferred to 

the Company. The lease payments are allocated between the land and the building elements in 

proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold interests in the land element and building 

element 

of the lease at the inception of a contract. If the allocation of the lease payments can be made 

reliably, 

each element is accounted for separately in accordance with its lease classification. When the 

lease 

payments cannot be allocated reliably between the land and building elements, the entire lease is 

generally classified as a finance lease unless it is clear that both elements are operating leases; in 

which 

case, the entire lease is classified as an operating lease. 

 

b. The Company as lessee 

The Company recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all leases at the 

commencement 

date of a lease, except for short-term leases and low-value asset leases accounted for applying a 
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recognition exemption where lease payments are recognized as expenses on a straight-line basis 

over 

the lease terms. 

 

Right-of-use assets are initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial measurement of 

lease 

liabilities adjusted for lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus any initial 

direct 

costs incurred and an estimate of costs needed to restore the underlying assets, and less any lease 

incentives received. Right-of-use assets are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and impairment losses and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liabilities. 

 

Right-of-use assets are presented on a separate line in the consolidated balance sheets. 

Right-of-use assets are depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement dates 

to the earlier of the end of the useful lives of the right-of-use assets or the end of the lease terms. 

Lease liabilities are initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, which comprise 

fixed payments, in-substance fixed payments, variable lease payments which depend on an index 

or a rate. The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in a lease, if that rate 

can be readily determined. If that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company uses the 

lessee’s incremental borrowing rate. 

Subsequently, lease liabilities are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, 

with 

interest expense recognized over the lease terms. When there is a change in a lease term or a 

change in 

future lease payments resulting from a change in an index or a rate used to determine those 

payments, 

the Company remeasures the lease liabilities with a corresponding adjustment to the 

right-of-use-assets. 

However, if the carrying amount of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero, any remaining 

amount of 

the remeasurement is recognized in profit or loss. Lease liabilities are presented on a separate line 

in the 

consolidated balance sheets. 

 

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognized as expenses in 

the 

periods in which they are incurred.  

 

ll. Employee benefits 

 

1) Short-term employee benefits 

 

Liabilities recognized in respect of short-term employee benefits are measured at the 

undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid in exchange for the related service. 

 

 

2) Retirement benefits 

 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are recognized as an expense when 

employees have rendered services entitling them to the contributions. 

 

Defined benefit costs (including service cost, net interest and remeasurement) under defined 

benefit retirement benefit plans are determined using the projected unit credit method. 

Service cost (including current service cost, and net interest on the net defined benefit 

liability (asset)) are recognized as employee benefit expenses in the period they occur. 
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Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and losses, and the return on plan assets 

(excluding interest), is recognized in other comprehensive income in the period in which it 

occurs. Remeasurement recognized in other comprehensive income is reflected immediately 

in retained earnings and other equity and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.  

 

Net defined benefit liability (asset) represents the actual deficit (surplus) in the Group’s 

defined benefit plan. Any surplus resulting from this calculation is limited to the present 

value of any refunds from the plans or reductions in future contributions to the plans. 

 

 

mm. Employee share options 

 

Employee share options are measured at fair value on the grant date, taking into account the 

best estimate of the number of options expected to vest, and are expensed on a straight-line 

basis over the vesting period. Non-controlling interests are adjusted at the same time. If the 

options vest immediately on the grant date, the entire expense is recognized on that date. For 

subsidiaries of the consolidated company that issue employee share options through a cash 

capital increase, the grant date is the date approved by the board of directors. 

 

nn. Taxation 

 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax. 

 

1) Current tax 

 

According to the Income Tax Law, an additional tax at 10% of unappropriated earnings is 

provided for as income tax in the year the shareholders approve to retain the earnings. 

 

Adjustments of prior years’ tax liabilities are added to or deducted from the current year’s tax 

provision. 

 

2) Deferred tax 

 

Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets 

and liabilities and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.  

 

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences. 

Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all [deductible temporary differences, unused 

loss carry forward and unused tax credits for purchases of machinery, equipment and 

technology, research and development expenditures, and personnel training expenditures] to 

the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those 

deductible temporary differences can be utilized.  

 

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with 

investments in subsidiaries and associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except where 

the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the 

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising 

from deductible temporary differences associated with such investments and interests are 

only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable profits 

against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to 

reverse in the foreseeable future. 

 

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period 

and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be 

available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. A previously unrecognized deferred 
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tax asset is also reviewed at the end of each reporting period and recognized to the to the 

extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset 

to be recovered. 

 

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in 

the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax 

laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period. The 

measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would 

follow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the reporting period, to 

recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities. If investment properties 

measured using the fair value model are non-depreciable assets, or are held under a business 

model whose objective is not to consume substantially all of the economic benefits embodied 

in the assets over time, the carrying amounts of such assets are presumed to be recovered 

entirely through sale. 

 

3) Current and deferred taxes for the year 

 

Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items 

that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the 

current and deferred taxes are also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in 

equity, respectively. 

 

 

5. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty 

 

When adopting accounting policies, the management of the consolidated company must make 

judgments, estimates, and assumptions based on historical experience and other relevant factors when 

information is not readily available from other sources. Actual results may differ from estimates. 

 

Provision for restructuring liabilities 

The consolidated company estimates the related restructuring costs in accordance with regulations, 

based on the schedule and estimated costs of the relevant equipment to reflect the best estimate. 

Changes in important parameters such as underlying assumptions and timing of related costs may 

significantly affect the amount of the consolidated company's provision for restructuring liabilities. 

 

The management will continue to review estimates and underlying assumptions. If the revision of 

estimates affects only the current period, it will be recognized in that period. If the revision of 

accounting estimates affects both the current period and future periods, it will be recognized in both 

the current and future periods. 

 

 6. Cash and cash equivalents 

 

    

December 31, 

2022  

 December 31, 

2021 

       

Cash on hand      $ 635    $ 431 
Checking accounts and demand deposits       118,162     719,711 
Cash equivalents (investments with original 

maturities of less than 3 months)       
Time deposits        -     12,456 
RP      110,000 

Fully entrusted investment accounts    

 

 

 Current account deposits       -     - 
      $ 118,797    $ 830,142 
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The merged company signed a discretionary asset management agreement with Time Securities 

Investment Consulting Co., Ltd. The bank deposits held in the discretionary account as of December 

31, 2022 and December 31, 2021 were NT$21,269 thousand dollars and NT$20,132 thousand 

dollars, respectively. The interest rate ranges for bank deposits, time deposits, and repurchase 

agreements on the balance sheet dates were as follows: 

 

 

    

December 31, 

2022  

 December 31, 

2021 

       

Bank balance    0.395%～0.85%  0.001%～0.2% 

RP    -  0.22% 

 

 7. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 

 

    

December 31, 

2022  

 December 31, 

2021 

Financial assets at FVTPL - current       

Financial assets mandatorily classified as at 

FVTPL       

Non-derivative financial assets       

Domestic listed shares investments      $ 8,540    $ 9,315 

Mutual funds       57,104     30,830 

      $ 65,644    $ 40,145 
       

       

8. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE 

INCOME  

 

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI 

 

                   December 31,          

                      2022 

December 31,               

     2021    

Non-current     

Domestic investments     

Unlisted (OTC) stocks       

Ordinary shares                   $ 30,004    $ 29,053 

 

The merging company invests in unlisted (OTC) stocks for its medium to long-term strategic 

objectives and expects to earn profits through long-term investments. The management believes 

that if the short-term fair value fluctuations of these investments are recognized in the income 

statement, it would not align with the aforementioned long-term investment plan. Therefore, the 

company chooses to designate these investments as measured at fair value through other 

comprehensive income. 

 

9. NOTES RECEIVABLE, TRADE RECEIVABLES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 

 

  
  

  

December 31, 

2022  

 December 31, 

2021 

Notes receivable       

Incurred in the course of business      $ 9,663    $ 22,667 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss       (  271 )   (  271 ) 

        $ 9,392    $ 22,396 
       

Trade receivable-non related parties       
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At amortized cost       

Gross carrying amount         $ 243,737    $ 152,898 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss       (  3,436 )   (  3,242 ) 

        $ 240,301    $ 149,656 
       

Trade receivable- related parties       

At amortized cost      $ -    $ 9,721 

Gross carrying amount          -     - 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss        $ -    $ 9,721 
       

 

Other receivables       

Others      $ 1,953    $ 5,856 

 

       

 

Other receivables- related parties       

Others      $ 480    $ 88 

       

       

 

 

Overdue receivables       

At amortized cost       

Gross carrying amount         $ 10,810    $ 10,045 

Less: Allowance for impairment loss       (  10,810 )   (  10,045 ) 

        $ -    $ -  
 

 

Trade receivables  

 
1) At amortized cost 

 
The average credit period of sales of goods was 60 days.  The Group adopted a policy of 

only dealing with entities that are rated the equivalent of investment grade or higher and 

obtaining sufficient collateral, where appropriate, as a means of mitigating the risk of 

financial loss from defaults.   

 

Credit rating information is obtained from independent rating agencies where available or, if 

not available, the Group uses other publicly available financial information or its own trading 

records to rate its major customers.  The Group’s exposure and the credit ratings of its 

counterparties are continuously monitored and the aggregate value of transactions concluded 

is spread amongst approved counterparties.  

 

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses prescribed 

by  

IFRS 9, which permits the use of lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables.  

The expected credit losses on trade receivables are estimated using a provision matrix by 

reference to past default experience of the debtor and an analysis of the debtor’s current 

financial position, adjusted for general economic conditions of the industry in which the 

debtors operate and an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast direction of 

economic conditions at the reporting date.  As the Group’s historical credit loss experience 

does not show significantly different loss patterns for different customer segments, the 

provision for loss allowance based on past due status is not further distinguished according to 

the Group’s different customer base. 
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The Group writes off a trade receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is 

in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the 

debtor has been placed under liquidation.  For trade receivables that have been written off, 

the Group continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the receivables 

due.  Where recoveries are made, these are recognized in profit or loss.  

 

The following table details the loss allowance of trade receivables based on the Group’s 

provision matrix.  

 

Notes receivable 

December 31, 2022 
 

  Not Past Due  1 to 90 Days  

  

Total 

        

Expected credit loss rate  2.80%  -    

        

Gross carrying amount    $ 9,663  -     $ 9,663 

Loss allowance (Lifetime ECL)   (  271 )    -    (  271) 

        

Amortized cost    $ 9,392    $ -     $ 9,392 

 

December 31, 2021 
 

  Not Past Due  1 to 90 Days  

  

Total 

        

Expected credit loss rate     1.20%  -    

    $ 22,667      

Gross carrying amount   (  271 )  -     $ 22,667 

Loss allowance (Lifetime ECL)    $ 22,396    -    (  271 ) 

     1.20%       $ 22,396 

Amortized cost    $ 22,667    $ -     $ 22,667 

 

 

Trade receivable 

December 31, 2022 
 

  Not Past Due  1 to 90 Days  

91 to 180 

Days  

181 to 270 

Days  

 Over 270 

Days 

 

Total 

             

Expected credit loss rate  0.66%  28.20%  45.47%  59.93%   100%  

    $ 239,031    $ 2,907    $ 1,094    $ 409     $ 296  

Gross carrying amount   (  1,578 )   (  820 )   (  497 )   (  245 )    (  296 )   $ 243,737 

Loss allowance (Lifetime 

ECL)    $ 237,453 

 

  $ 2,087 

 

  $ 597 

 

  $ 164  

 

  -  (  3,436 ) 

             

Amortized cost    $ 237,453    $ 2,087    $ 597    $ 164    $ -    $ 240,301 

             

             

Trade receivable 

December 31, 2021 
             

  Not Past Due  1 to 90 Days  

91 to 180 

Days  

181 to 270 

Days  

 Over 270 

Days 

 

Total 

             

Expected credit loss rate  0.53%  14.30%  42.35%  57.31%   100%  
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    $ 148,719    $ 12,426    $ 817    $ 657     $ -   $ 162,619 

Gross carrying amount   (  742 )   (  1,777 )   (  346 )   (  377 )      -  (  3,242 ) 

Loss allowance (Lifetime 

ECL)    $ 147,977 

 

  $ 10,649 

 

  $ 471 

 

  $ 280  

 

  $ -   $ 159,377 

 

 

The movements of the loss allowance of trade receivables were as follows: 

 

  

December 31, 

2022  

December 31, 

2021 

     

Balance at January 1     $ 3,242    $ 5,027 
Add: Impairment losses recognized on receivables     959     4,717 
Less: Reclassification adjustments   (  765 )   (  6,444 ) 
Less: Amounts written off      -   (  58 ) 
Balance at December 31     $ 3,436    $ 3,242 
 

 

 

   
The movements of the loss allowance of overdue receivables were as follows: 

  

December 31, 

2022  

December 31, 

2021 

Balance at January 1     $ 10,045    $ 3,601 
Add: Reclassification adjustments     765     6,444 
Balance at December 31    $ 10,810    $ 10,045 

 

 

 
10. INVENTORIES 

 

    

December 31, 

2022  

December 31, 

2021 

       

Finished goods       $ 151,893    $ 149,235 

Work in progress       159,495     140,296 

Raw materials       89,590     40,524 

Merchandise       398     757 

      $ 401,376    $ 330,812 
 

The cost goods sold 

    

December 31, 

2022  

December 31, 

2021 

       

The cost of goods sold      $ 453,108    $ 318,721 

Inventory write-downs (gain from price 

recovery)       912   (  25,162 ) 

Others       11,092     29,717 

      $ 465,112    $ 323,276 

   
11. SUBSIDIARIES 
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     Proportion of Ownership (%)  

Investor  Investee     

December 31, 

2022  

December 31, 

2021  

ChenFull International 
Co., Ltd. 

 Chenfeng Machinery & 
Enterprise Co., Ltd 

    100%  100%  

  ChenFull Water Resource Co., 

Ltd. 

    100%  100%  

  ChenFull Precision Co., Ltd     63%  70.12%  

  CHEN FULL HOLDING CO., 

LTD. 

    100%  100%  

 
     Ownership  

  Investee     

December 31, 

2022  

December 31, 

2021  

  Chenfeng Machinery & 
Enterprise Co., Ltd 

    

$ 6,751 

 

$ 5,743 

 

  CHEN FULL HOLDING CO., 

LTD. 

    

22,636 

 

6,484 

 

  ChenFull Water Resource Co., 

Ltd. 

    

(  25,385) ) 

 

(  45,880) ) 

 

  ChenFull Precision Co., Ltd     

227,463 

 

223,952 

 

       

$ 231,465 

 

$ 190,299 

 

 

 
     Investment  

  Investee     

December 31, 

2022  

December 31, 

2021  

  Chenfeng Machinery & 

Enterprise Co., Ltd 

    

$ 128,389 

 

$ 117,971 

 

  CHEN FULL HOLDING CO., 
LTD. 

    

124,960 

 

94,951 

 

  ChenFull Water Resource Co., 
Ltd. 

    

- 

 

(  40,665) ) 

 

  ChenFull Precision Co., Ltd     

1,233,001 

 

986,306 

 

       

1,486,350 

 

1,158,563 

 

  Add: transferring the balance of 
investment loans using the 

equity method 

    

-  40,665 

 

       

$ 1,486,350  $ 1,199,228 

 

 

12. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

    2022 

  Freehold Land  Buildings  Equipment   Others 

Construction in 

Progress  Total 

             

Cost             

             
Balance at January 1, 2022    $ 398,601    $ 349,950    $ 76,371    $ 52,508   $ 52,508   $ 1,858    $ 879,288 

Additions     -     6,954     8,210     7,813    7,813    2,603     25,580 

Disposals     -   (  335 )   (  88 )   (  6,266 )  (  6,266 )    -   (  6,689 ) 
Reclassified      -     1,857     1,076     490    490  (  1,857 )     1,566 

Reclassification Investment 

Property   (  39,124 )   (  12,603 )     -     -    -    -    (  51,727 ) 
Balance at December 31, 2022    $ 359,477    $ 345,823    $ 85,569    $ 54,545   $ 54,545   $ 2,604    $ 848,018 

             
Accumulated depreciation 

 and impairment           

 

  

             
Balance at January 1, 2022    $ -    $ 158,208    $ 55,053    $ 46,894   $ 46,894   $ -    $ 260,155 

Disposals     -   (  335 )   (  64 )   (  6,267 )  (  6,267 )    -   (  6,666 ) 

Reclassified      -     13,909     7,466     2,870    2,870    -     24,245 
Reclassification Investment 

Property     -   (  2,002 )     -     -    -    -   (  2,002 ) 

Balance at December 31, 2022    $ -    $ 169,780    $ 62,455    $ 43,497   $ 43,497   $ -    $ 275,732 
             



- 44 - 

Carrying amounts at  
January 1, 2022    $ 359,477    $ 176,043    $ 23,114    $ 11,048 $ 11,048   $ 2,604    $ 572,286 

Carrying amounts at  

December 31, 2022             
             

 

             

 

The above items of property, plant and equipment were depreciated on a straight-line basis over the 

estimated useful lives as follows: 

 

Building   

Main buildings  5-56 years 

Elevators  20-21years 

Drainage  10-11years 

Air-conditioning  7-9 years 

Others  2-21years 

Equipment  2-11 years 

Others  2-11 years 
 

 

13.  LEASE AGREEMENT 

Other Lease Information 

  December 31, 

2022 

 December 31, 

2021 

Short-term lease expense    $ 18,591    $ 7,927 

Lease expense for low-value 

assets 

 

  $ 974 

 

  $ 841 

Total cash outflow from lease   ( $ 19,565 )   ( $ 8,768 ) 

 

  Our company elects to apply the exemption for recognition of  right -of-use 

assets and lease l iabil i t ies for short -term leases and leases of low-value 

assets."  

 

14. INVESTMENT POROPERTY 

    
Completed 

Investment Properties 

Cost     

Balance at January 1, 2022       $ 242,157 

From Real Estate, Factory, and 

Equipment       51,727 

Balance at December 31, 2022      $ 293,884 

     

Accumulated depreciation 

 and impairment     

Balance at January 1, 2022      $ 29,019 

From Real Estate, Factory, and 

Equipment       2,002 

Depreciation expense       3,613 

Balance at December 31, 2022      $ 34,634 

     



- 45 - 

Carrying amounts at December 31, 

2022"      $ 259,250 

     

Cost     

Balance at January 1, 2021      $ 242,157 

Balance at December 31, 2021      $ 242,157 

     

Accumulated depreciation 

 and impairment     

Balance at January 1, 2021      $ 25,790 

Depreciation expense       3,229 

Balance at December 31, 2021      $ 29,019 

     

Carrying amounts at December 31, 

2021      $ 213,138 

 

  The lease term for the investment  property being leased is 1 year.  The 

lessee does not have a  purchase option for the investment property at  the end of 

the lease.  

 

The total lease payments expected to be received in the future from 

operating lease of investment property are as follows:  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Year 1    $ 3,690    $ 4,176 

 

  The main buildings were depreciated on a straight -line basis over the 

estimated useful l ives as follows:  

Main buildings  20 years 

  The fair  value of the investment property as  of December  31, 2022 was 488,930  

thousand dollars.  This fair  value was not determined by independent appraisers but 

assessed by the company's management based on market quotat ions of similar 

properties in the nearby area.  

 

 

15.  INTANGIBLE ASSETS 

    

Computer software 

costs 

Current     

Balance at January 1, 2022      $ 27,715 

Additions        3,624 

Disposals     (  8,545 ) 

Balance at December 31, 2022      $ 22,794 

     

Accumulated amortization     

Balance at January 1, 2022      $ 14,194 

Amortization expense       6,275 

Disposals     (  8,545 ) 
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Balance at December 31, 2022      $ 11,924 

     

Carrying amounts at December 

31, 2022      $ 10,870 

     

Cost     

Balance at January 1, 2021      $ - 

Additions       7,854 

Reclassification       27,345 

Disposals     (  7,484 ) 

Balance at December 31, 2021      $ 27,715 

     

Accumulated amortization     

Balance at January 1, 2021      $ - 

Amortization expense       7,990 

Reclassification       7,647 

Disposals     (  1,443 ) 

Balance at December 31, 2021      $ 14,194 

     

Net amount at December 31, 2021      $ 13,521 

 

  Apart  from recognizing amortization expense, there were no 

significant disposals or impairments of intangible assets for the period 

from January 1 to December 31, 2022.  

  The amortization expense is recognized on a straight -line basis over 

the following useful lives:：  

Computer software costs:  1 to 5 years 

 

 

  Amortization expenses aggregated by functional category：  

  Year 2022  Year 2021 

Operating costs    $ 970    $ - 

Operating expenses     5,305     7,990 

    $ 6,275    $ 7,990 

 

16.  OTHER ASSETS 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Current     

Prepayments    $ 12,618    $ 66,215 

     

Other financial assets - current     

Pledged fixed deposits    $ 101    $ 9,634 

     

Other current assets     

Advances from customers    $ 6,822    $ 12,493 
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Employee advances     44     154 

    $ 6,866    $ 12,647 

     

Non-current     

Other non-current assets     

Other receivables     

Other receivables    $ 73,948    $ 73,948 

Less: Allowance for 

doubtful accounts   (  73,948 )   (  73,948 ) 

Advances for equipment     68,729     1,567 

Land pending transfer     1,114     1,114 

Deposits paid     4,534     4,488 

    $ 74,377    $ 7,169 

 

 (1) As of December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021, the interest  rates for 

pledged fixed deposits were as follows:  

For Year 2022: Annual interest  rate of 1.44%.  

For Year 2021: Interest rates ranged from 0.04% to 0.815%.  

 

(2) Other non-current receivables  

  The company was contracted b y Hao Han Zhong Xiao Engineering 

Co., Ltd. (referred to as "Hao Han Company") for subcontracted 

projects. Due to disputes between the parties regarding contract  

interpretation, payment amounts,  and deductions, a claim of 110,821 

thousand dollars was filed against Hao Han Company for project  

payments and other expenses.  On September 30, 2011, except for a 

remaining amount of 7,368 thousand dollars that continued to be under 

litigation, the remaining portion was settled through a notarized 

agreement with Hao Han Company paying 92,499 thousand dollars to 

the company (consisting of receivables for project payments and 

performance guarantee payments of 84,851 thousand dollars,  and 

litigation fees and other expenses of 7,648 thousand dollars,  recorded 

as other non-current assets).  The aforementioned litigation was ruled 

by the higher court on March 25, 2014, with a judgment requiring Hao 

Han Company to pay the company a total  of 9,383 thousand dollars in 

project payments and interest. The court issued debt certific ates on 

July 25, 2014. Furthermore, due to Hao Han Company's failure to 

comply with the settlement conditions, a request for compulsory 
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execution was submitted to the court, and the related documentation 

has been filed.  A successful judgment has been obtai ned against the 

former responsible person of Hao Han Company, Chen Shui -tu, for the 

endorsed liabil ity of 92,499 thousand dollars, and debt cert ificates 

issued by the court  are on file. Through compulsory execution, an 

amount of 10,903 thousand dollars has  been recovered. The company 

has already provisioned 100% allowance for doubtful accounts for the 

remaining net claim against  Hao Han Company of 73,948 thousand 

dollars.  

 

 (3) Land pending transfer  

The company acquired land with a total area of 6,454 ㎡ ,  consisting 

of Taoyuan County,  Dayuan Township, Xucuo Harbor, Plot Numbers 

1065-0086 and 0015, for the purpose of expanding its operations.  The 

cost  of this agricultural  land was recorded as 25,120 thousand dollars.  

Due to legal restrictions, the company was not able to register 

ownership of agricultural land. Therefore, the company (referred to as 

Party A) entered into an agreement on October 21, 2002, with Mr. Xu 

Zhihong, the former chairman of the company and a self -farming 

farmer (referred to as Party B), for Party B to act  as an agent to 

purchase the land on behalf of Party A. The transfer of ownership was 

completed on November 5, 2002. The agreement stipulated that  Party B 

unconditionally waived any claims to the land and would provide all  

necessary documents for the transfer when the laws governing the 

transfer of agricultural land were relaxed or when urban planning 

changes allowed for the transfer. The company obtained approval from 

the competent authority for the change of land use in August 2009 and 

completed the transfer process.  

As of December 31, 2022, there are still  two plots of land, Plot  

Numbers 0488-0000 and 0484-0000, with a total  area of 281.98 ㎡ ,  

which were derived from Plot Number 1065-0015. These plots are still  

classified as agricultural and l ivestock land and are reserved for 

government water management projects.  They are recorded as other 
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non-current assets - others, with a carrying amount of 1,114 thousand 

dollars.  

 

17.   ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Accounts payable (including 

related parties) 

 

 

 

 

Arising from business operations.    $ 493,714    $ 373,642 

  The average credit period for the purchase of certain goods is 1 to 4 

months, with no interest being charged on accounts payable.  The company 

has established a financial risk management policy to ensure that all  

payables are settled within the agreed credit terms.  

 

18.  OTHER LIABILITIES 

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Current     

Other payables     

Payables for purchases of 

equipment    $ 3,391    $ 1,426 

Payables for salaries and 

premium     46,945     57,913 

Payables for bonuses     20,804     6,278 

Payable for compensation     3,810     - 

Payable for annual leave     4,906     4,863 

Others     43,842     32,711 

    $ 123,698    $ 103,191 

     

Other payables - related parties    $ -    $ 327 

     

Other current liabilities     

  Receivables on behalf    $ 1,347    $ 1,050 

     

Non-current     

Other non-current liabilities     

Deposits received    $ 12    $ 15 

 

 

19.  RETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS 

 (1) Defined Contribution Plan  

  The retirement plan adopted by the company is governed by the 

"Labor Pension Act" and is a government -managed defined 

contribution retirement plan. Employees contribute 6% of their  
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monthly salary towards retirement benefits, which are allocated to  

individual accounts with the Labor Insurance Bureau.  

(2) Defined Benefit  Plan  

  The retirement plan implemented by the company, in accordance 

with the "Labor Standards Act" of our country,  is  a  

government-managed defined benefit retirement plan. The payment of 

employee retirement benefits is calculated based on years of service 

and the average salary for the six months prior to the approved 

retirement date.  The company contributes 2% of the total  monthly 

salary of employees towards retirement benefits,  which is deposited 

into a designated account with the Taiwan Bank in the name of the 

Labor Retirement Reserve Supervisory Committee. If  the estimated 

balance in the account is  insufficient to cover the expected retirements 

within the following year by the end of the fiscal year, the shortfall  

will be contributed in a lump sum by the end of March of the following 

year.  The account is  managed by the Labor Pension Fund Operations 

Office of the Ministry of Labor, and the company has no authority to 

influence investment management strategies.  

  The amount related to the defined benefit  plan included in the 

individual financial statements is  presented as follows:  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Present Value of Defined 

Benefit Obligations    $ 36,199    $ 50,242 

Fair Value of Plan Assets   (  11,516 )   (  15,949 ) 

Net Defined Benefit Liability    $ 24,683    $ 34,293 

 

  The changes in net  defined benefit liabili ty are as follows:  

  

Present value 

o f  d e f i n e d 

b e n e f i t 

o b l i g a t i o n s  

Fair value of 

p l a n  a s s e t s  

Ne t  de f ined 

benefit liability 

January 1, 2022    $ 50,242   ( $ 15,949 )    $ 34,293 

Service cost       

Current service cos     58     -     58 

Interest cost (income)     251   (  81 )     170 

Recognized in income statement     309   (  81 )     228 

Remeasurement amount       

Return on plan assets 

(excluding amounts     -   (  1,666 )   (  1,666 ) 
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included in net interest) 

Actuarial gains/losses - 

financial assumption 

changes   (  3,741 )     -   (  3,741 ) 

Actuarial gains/losses - 

experience adjustments   (  2,877 )     -   (  2,877 ) 

Recognized in other 

comprehensive income   (  6,618 )   (  1,666 )   (  8,284 ) 

Employer contributions     -   (  537 )   (  537 ) 

Benefit payments   (  7,734 )     6,717   (  1,017 ) 

December 31, 2022    $ 36,199   ( $ 11,516 )    $ 24,683 

       

January 1, 2021    $ 71,021   ( $ 24,231 )    $ 46,790 

Service cost       

Current service cost     216     -     216 

Interest cost (income)     261   (  92 )     169 

Recognized in income statement     477   (  92 )     385 

Remeasurement amount       

Return on plan assets 

(excluding amounts 

included in net interest)     -   (  317 )   (  317 ) 

Actuarial gains/losses - 

financial assumption 

changes   (  258 )     -   (  258 ) 

Actuarial losses - 

experience adjustments     3,346     -     3,346 

Recognized in other 

comprehensive income     3,088   (  317 )     2,771 

Employer contributions     -   (  627 )   (  627 ) 

Benefit payments   (  24,344 )     9,318   (  15,026 ) 

December 31, 2021    $ 50,242   ( $ 15,949 )    $ 34,293 

 

  The amounts recognized in income statement for the defined 

benefit plan, aggregated by function, are as follows:  

  Year 2022   Year 2021 

Cost of goods sold    $ 117    $ 158 

Selling expenses     16     15 

Administrative expenses     85     200 

Research and development 

expenses     10     12 

    $ 228    $ 385 

 

The company is exposed to the following risks related to the 

retirement pension system under the Labor Standards Act:  

 



- 52 - 

1.  Investment risk:  The Labor Retirement Fund Management Office of 

the Ministry of Labor invests the labor retirement fund in domestic 

and foreign equity securities, debt securities, and bank deposits 

through self-management and entrusted operations.  However, the 

return on plan assets for the company is calculated based on the 

interest rate of a local bank's 2 -year fixed deposit,  ensuring a 

minimum return.  

2.  Interest rate risk:  A decrease in government bond interest rates will  

increase the present value of the defined benefit obligation.  

However,  it  will  also increase the investment return on plan assets,  

partially offsetting the impact on the net defined benefit liabil ity.  

3.  Salary risk: The calculation of the present value of the defined 

benefit  obligation considers the future salaries of plan members.  

Therefore, an increase in plan members ' salaries will increase the 

present value of the defined benefit obligation.  

   

  The present value of the defined benefit  obligation for the 

company is determined through actuarial valuation conducted by a 

qualified actuary. The significant assumptions used in the valuation are 

as follows:  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Discount rate  1.6940%  0.5010% 

Salary growth rate  2.5000%  2.5000% 

 

  The mortality rate is based on the 2021 Taiwan life insurance 

industry experience mortality table.  

  The disability rate is  based on 10% of the expected mortality rate.  

  The turnover rate is based on the data derived from the company's 

historical  employee turnover rate and considering future trends,  after  

being smoothed and adjusted.  

  If there are reasonable possible changes in the significant 

actuarial  assumptions, while keeping all other assumptions unchanged, 

the resulting increase (decrease) in the prese nt value of the defined 

benefit obligation would be as follows:  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
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Discount Rate     

Increase by 0.5%   ( $ 1,444 )   ( $ 2,317 ) 

Decrease by 0.5%    $ 1,541    $ 2,487 

     

Salary Expected Increase Rate     

Increase by 0.5%    $ 1,508    $ 2,406 

Decrease by 0.5%   ( $ 1,428 )   ( $ 2,266 ) 

 

  Since actuarial assumptions may be interrelated, it  is  unlikely that  

only a single assumption would change independently.  Therefore, the 

sensitivity analysis mentioned  above may not accurately reflect  the 

actual changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation.  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Expected contribution amount 

within 1 year 

 

  $ 551 

 

  $ 643 

Average remaining service 

period of the defined benefit 

obligation 

 

8.5 years 

 

10 years 

 

20.  EQUITY 

 (1) Share capital  

Ordinary shares  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Number of shares authorized 

(in thousands) 

 

   150,000 

 

   150,000 

Shares authorized     $ 1,500,000    $ 1,500,000 

Number of shares issued and 

fully paid (in thousands) 

 

   113,761 

 

   118,193 

Shares issued    $ 1,137,605    $ 1,181,925 

 

   

The issued common stock has a par value of 10 dollars per share, 

entit ling each share to one voting right and the right to receive 

dividends.  

 

On May 12, 2022, the Board of Directors of the company resolved to 

cancel 4,432 thousand shares of treasury stock. The reduction of capital  

became effective on May 27, 2022, and the registration of the canceled 

shares was completed on June 20, 2022. As a result, the share capital  

was reduced by 44,320 thousand dollars,  the capital  surplus decreased 
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by 110,919 thousand dollars, and the retained earnings decreased by 

25,969 thousand dollars.  

 

 (2) Capital  surplus  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

May be used to offset a deficit, 

distributed as  

  cash dividends, or 

transferred to share  

  capital     

Stock issuance premium    $ 258,010    $ 268,062 

Convertible bond conversion 

premium     207,018     215,084 

Treasury stock transactions     736     80,875 

Difference between the actual 

value and book value of 

acquired or disposed subsidiary 

equity     521,174     573,199 

Consolidation surplus     10,618     318,025 

Can only be used to offset 

losses     

Recognition of changes in 

equity attributable to the 

subsidiary's shareholders.     211,006     36,270 

    $ 1,208,562    $ 1,491,515 

 

 (3) Retained earnings and dividends policy  

  Under the dividends policy as set forth in the amended Articles ,  

where the Company made a profit in a fiscal year, the profit  shall be 

first utilized for paying taxes, offsetting losses of previous years,  

setting aside as a legal reserve of 10% of the remaining profit , setting 

aside or reversing a special reserve in accordance with the laws a nd 

regulations, and then any remaining profit together with any 

undistributed retained earnings shall  be used by the Company’s board 

of directors as the basis for proposing a distribution plan, which should 

be resolved in the shareholders’ meeting for the distribution of 

dividends and bonuses to shareholders. For the policies on the 

distribution of employees’ compensation and remuneration of directors 

and supervisors after the amendment,  refer to employees’ compensation 

and remuneration of directors and sup ervisors in Note 22-7.  
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The Company’s Articles also stipulate a dividends policy whereby the 

issuance of stock dividends takes precedence over the payment of cash 

dividends.   In principle, cash dividends are limited to 10% of the total  

dividends distributed.  

An appropriation of earnings to a legal reserve shall be made until the 

legal reserve equals the Company’s paid -in capital.   The legal reserve 

may be used to offset deficits.   If  the Company has no deficit and the 

legal reserve has exceeded 25% of the Company’s paid-in capital , the 

excess may be transferred to capital or distributed in cash.    

The company held shareholder meetings on May 27, 2022 and July 1,  

2021, respectively,  and approved the profit distribution proposals for  

2021 and 2020 as follows:  

  P r o f i t  D i s t r i b u t i o n  P r o p o s a l : 

  Year 2021  Year 2020  

Legal Reserve    $ -    $ 33,335 

Special Reserve    $ 409   ( $ 527 ) 

Cash Dividends    $ -    $ 295,481 

Cash Dividend per Share    $ -    $ 2.5 

 

  Furthermore, during the shareholders ' meeting  held on May 27, 

2022, the company resolved to distribute cash from the capital surplus 

in the amount of 295,481 thousand dollars.  

  The proposed profit distribution plan for 2022 was presented by 

the board of directors on March 13, 2023, as follows:：  

    

Profit Distribution 

Plan 

Legal Reserve      $ 28,012 

Special Reserve     ( $ 5,034 ) 

Cash Dividends      $ 282,726 

Cash Dividend per Share      $ 2.5 

 

  The proposed profit  distribution plan for the 2022 is expected to 

be decided at  the shareholders ' meeting scheduled to be held on May 31,  

2023.  
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 (4) Other equity items  

 1.  Exchange differences on translating the financial statements of 

foreign operations  

  Year 2022  Year 2021 

Beginning balance   ( $ 19,202 )   ( $ 18,584 ) 

Amount generated during the 

current year     

Exchange differences 

arising from the 

translation of net assets 

of foreign operations     2,238   (  618 ) 

Other comprehensive income 

for the current year     2,238   (  618 ) 

Ending balance   ( $ 16,964 )   ( $ 19,202 ) 

 

 2.  Unrealized gains or losses on financial  assets measured at  fair 

value through other comprehensive income.  

  Year 2022  Year 2021 

Beginning balance    $ 1,063    $ 854 

Amount generated during the 

current year 

 

 

 

 

Unrealized gains or losses 

on equity instruments 

 

   951 

 

   209 

Impact of equity method 

accounting for 

subsidiaries 

 

   1,844 

 

   - 

Other comprehensive income 

for the current year 

 

   2,795 

 

   209 

Ending balance    $ 3,858    $ 1,063 

 

 (5) Treasury shares  

Purpose of 

Buy-Back  

Number of 

shares of 

stock 

dividends 

distributed 

by the parent 

company (in 

thousands of 

shares)  

Shares 

Transferred 

to Employees 

(In 

Thousands of 

Shares)  

Number of 

shares 

repurchased 

for 

cancellation 

(in thousands 

of shares).  

Shares Held 

by Its 

Subsidiaries 

(In 

Thousands of 

Shares)  

Total (In 

Thousands of 

Shares) 

Number of 

shares at 

January 1, 

2022     63     -     -     219     282 

Increase in the 

current year     -     670     4,432     -     5,102 

Decrease in the 

current year     -     -   (  4,432 )     -   (  4,432 ) 

Number of     63     670     -     219     952 
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shares at 

Dec 31, 2022 

Number of 

shares at 

Jan 1, 2021     63     -     -     219     282 

Number of 

shares at 

Dec 31, 2021     63     -     -     219     282 

 

   

In order to motivate employees, enhance employee morale, and 

protect  the company's reputation and shareholder interests, our 

company, on March 9,  2022, decided to repurchase 10,000 thousand 

shares of stock through a board resolution. Out of these, 2,000 

thousand shares were transferred to employees, while 8,000 thousand 

shares were repurchased to maintain the company's credit and 

shareholder equity.  The repurchase period was from March 10, 2022, to 

March 18, 2022, and from March 21, 2022, to May 8, 2022. The 

repurchase price ranged from NTD 28.63 to NTD 48. Even when the 

stock price falls  below the lower limit of the repurchase price range, 

the repurchase of company shares can sti ll  be executed. In year 2022, 

our company has repurchased 5,102 thousand shares, totaling 207,720 

thousand dollars.  

According to the Securities and Exchange Act,  the shares 

repurchased this time should be transferred to employees within 5 years.  

Failure to transfer within the designated period will  be treated as 

unissued shares by the company, requiring a change in  registration.  

The treasury shares held by our company are not eligible for 

pledging under the regulations of the Securities and Exchange Act .  

They also do not have the rights to receive dividends or voting rights.  

  The Company’s shares held by i ts  subsid iaries at the end of the 

reporting periods were as follows:  

Name of Subsidiary  

Number of 

Shares Held 

(In Thousands 

of Shares)  

Carrying 

Amount  Market Price 

December 31, 2022       

Chenfeng Machinery & 

Enterprise Co., Ltd  282    $ 10,636    $ 10,636 
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December 31, 2021       

Chenfeng Machinery & 

Enterprise Co., Ltd  282    $ 11,608    $ 11,608 

 

  The subsidiary's holding of the company's stock is treated as 

treasury stock, which means i t cannot participate in the company's cash 

capital increase and has no voting rights.  However, it  retains the same 

rights as other shareholders in all other aspects.  

 

21.  REVENUE 

  Year 2022  Year 2021 

Customer contract revenue     
Sale of goods revenue    $ 615,744    $ 421,954 

Construction revenue     1,355,697     1,137,464 

    $ 1,971,441    $ 1,559,418 

 

 (1) Description of the customer contract  

 a. Revenue from the sale of goods  

As the goods are delivered to the customer's  designated place, the 

customer has the right to set  the price and use of the goods and has 

the primary responsibility for reselling, and bears the risk of 

obsolescence of the goods. The combined company recogniz es the 

income and receivable at that time.  

2.  Construction revenue 

  During the construction process, real estate that is under 

customer control is  recognized by the company as revenue 

gradually over t ime.  

 (2) Contract Balances  

  

December 31, 

2022  

December 31, 

2021  January 1, 2021 

Trade receivables    $ 240,301    $ 159,377    $ 131,420 
       
Contract assets-current       

Construction    $ 956,645    $ 633,983    $ 555,381 
       

Contract liabilities-current       
Sale of goods    $ 8,542    $ 8,520    $ 33,855 
Construction     110,091     85,646     172,827 

    $ 118,633    $ 94,166    $ 206,682 
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22.  NET PROFIT FROM CONTINUING OPERATIONS  

 (1) Interest Income 

  2022  2021  

Bank deposits    $ 665    $ 279 

Repurchase agreements 

collateralized by bonds     5     529 

Other     78     22 

    $ 748    $ 830 

 

 (2) Other income 

  2022  2021  

Lease income     

Investment properties    $ 6,109    $ 5,642 

Rental income from 

operating leases - other     351     360 

Interest Income     6,174     3,610 

Others     19,657     20,796 

    $ 32,291    $ 30,408 

 

 (3) Other gains and losses  

  2022  2021  

Gain/(loss) on disposal of 

property, plant and equipment    $ 69    $ 737 

Gain/(loss) on disposal of 

financial assets     

Financial assets at FVTPL   (  803 )     4,663 

Financial asset losses     

Gain/(loss) on disposal of 

financial assets 

Financial assets at FVTPL   ( $ 6,590 )   ( $ 2,825 ) 

Profit from disposal of 

subsidiary     66,092     - 

Net foreign exchange gain 

(loss)     5,151   (  3,608 ) 

Other losses   (  365 )     - 

    $ 63,554   ( $ 1,033 ) 

 

 (4) Finance costs  

  2022  2021  

Interest on bank loans    $ 254    $ 176 
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 (5) Depreciation and amortization  

  2022  2021  

Property, plant, and equipment    $ 24,245    $ 25,182 

Investment properties     3,613     3,229 

Intangible assets     6,275     7,990 

    $ 34,133    $ 36,401 

     

Depreciation Expenses by 

Functional Category     

Cost of Goods Sold    $ 14,536    $ 13,698 

Operating Expenses     13,322     14,713 

    $ 27,858    $ 28,411 

     

Amortization Expenses by 

Functional Category:     

Cost of Goods Sold    $ 970    $ - 

Operating Expenses     5,305     7,990 

    $ 6,275    $ 7,990 

 

 (6) Employee benefits expense  

  2022  2021  

Post-employment benefits     
Defined contribution plans    $ 12,292    $ 11,108 
Defined benefit plans     228     385 

     12,520     11,493 

 

Share-based payment     

Equity settlement    $ 6,762    $ 2,278 

Other employee benefits     336,730     284,003 

Total employee benefits 

expense    $ 356,012    $ 297,774 

     

An analysis of employee 

benefits expense by function     

Operating costs    $ 203,391    $ 152,796 

Operating expenses     152,621     144,978 

    $ 356,012    $ 297,774 

 

 (7) Employees’ compensation and remuneration of directors and 

supervisors  
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  The company sets aside employee compensation and director 

remuneration based on the pre -tax profit  before deducting such 

payments,  ranging from not less than 2% to not more than 2%. The 

allocations for employee compensation and director remuneration for 

the years 2022 and 2021 were determined by the board of directors on 

March 13, 2023, and March 9, 2022, respectively.  

 

Provision Ratio  

  2022  2021  

Employees’ compensation  4.30%  -% 

Remuneration of directors and 

supervisors 

 
1.09% 

 
-% 

 

Amount 

  2022  2021  

  Cash  Cash 

Employees’ compensation    $ 15,000    $ - 

Remuneration of directors and 

supervisors     3,810     - 

 

If  there are any changes in the amounts after the issuance date of the 

annual individual financial statements,  they will be handled based on 

accounting estimates and adjusted in the following year 's  financial  

statements.  

 

The actual amounts distributed for employee compensation and 

director and supervisor remuneration, as determined by the resolutions 

of the board of directors for the years 2021 and 2020, do not differ 

from the recognized amounts in the individual financial  statements for 

the respective years.  

 

For information regarding the board of directo rs ' resolutions on 

employee compensation and director and supervisor remuneration, 

please refer to the "Public Information Observation System" of the 

Taiwan Stock Exchange.  
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23.  INCOME TAXES RELATING TO CONTINUING OPERATIONS  

 (1) Income tax recognized in profit  or loss  

  2022  2021 

Current tax     

In respect of the current 

period    $ 3,741    $ 10,080 

Income tax on 

unappropriated earnings     13,600   (  1,681 ) 

     17,341     8,399 

Deferred tax     

In respect of the current 

period     4,301     7,751 

Adjustments to deferred 

tax attributable to 

changes in tax rates and 

laws     8,465   (  16,062 ) 

     12,766   (  8,311 ) 

Income tax expense recognized 

in profit or loss    $ 30,107    $ 88 

 

  Adjustments to accounting income and income tax expense are as 

follows:：  

  111年度  110年度 

Net income before tax from 

continuing operations    $ 329,632    $ 315,134 

     

Income tax expense calculated 

based on the statutory tax rate 

on taxable income    $ 65,926    $ 63,027 

Non-deductible expenses     5,283     103,587 

Tax-exempt income   (  61,564 )   (  145,006 ) 

Investment tax credits offset for 

the current period   (  1,603 )   (  3,777 ) 

Adjustment of deferred tax 

expense from prior years to the 

current year     8,465   (  16,062 ) 

Adjustment of current tax 

expense from prior years to the 

current year     13,600   (  1,681 ) 

Income tax expense recognized 

in the income statement    $ 30,107    $ 88 

 

 (2) Income tax recognized in other comprehensive income  

  2022  2021 

Deferred tax     

In respect of the current period     
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－Translation exposure of 

foreign operations   ( $ 559 )    $ 155 

－Remeasurement of defined 

benefit plans   (  1,657 )     554 

Income tax recognized in other 

comprehensive income   ( $ 2,216 )    $ 709 

 

 (3) Current income tax liabil ity 

  Dec 31, 2022  Dec 31, 2021 

Current income tax liability     

Income tax payable    $ 3,688    $ 10,005 

 

 (4) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities  

  Changes in deferred income tax assets and l iabilities are as 

follows：  

Year 2022 

 

 

Beginning 

Balance  

Recognized in 

Income  

Recognized in 

Other 

Comprehensiv

e Income  

Ending 

Balance 

Deferred income tax assets         

Temporary differences         

Unrealized cost of sales    $ 702   ( $ 160 )    $ -    $ 542 

Accrued vacation pay     1,095     9     -     1,104 

Unrealized gross profit     915   (  915 )     -     - 

Unrealized foreign 

exchange gains/losses     268   (  262 )     -     6 

Unrealized inventory 

write-down and 

obsolete losses     20,068   (  5,544 )     -     14,524 

Allowance for doubtful 

accounts exceeding 

limit     19,752   (  2,736 )     -     17,016 

Defined benefit 

retirement plans     6,858     -   (  1,657 )     5,201 

Foreign operations 

translation differences     3,135     -   (  559 )     2,576 

Financial assets measured 

at fair value through 

profit or loss     133     1,369     -     1,502 

    $ 52,926   ( $ 8,239 )   ( $ 2,216 )    $ 42,471 

         

Deferred income tax liabilities         

Temporary differences         

Overseas investments   ( $ 9,024 )   ( $ 4,527 )    $ -   ( $ 13,551 ) 

 

Year 2021 

 

 

Beginning 

Balance  

Recognized in 

Income  

Recognized in 

Other 

Comprehensiv

e Income  

Ending 

Balance 
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Deferred income tax assets         

Temporary differences         

Unrealized cost of sales    $ 653    $ 49    $ -    $ 702 

Overseas investments   (  7,727 )     7,727     -     - 

Accrued vacation pay     1,145   (  50 )     -     1,095 

Unrealized gross profit     -     915     -     915 

Unrealized foreign 

exchange gains/losses     144     124     -     268 

Unrealized inventory 

write-down and 

obsolete losses     25,100   (  5,032 )     -     20,068 

Provision for unrealized 

inventory obsolescence 

loss     3,936   (  3,936 )     -     - 

Allowance for doubtful 

accounts exceeding 

limit     18,840     912     -     19,752 

Defined benefit 

retirement plan   (  9,757 )     16,061     554     6,858 

Foreign operation 

translation differences     2,980     -     155     3,135 

Financial assets measured 

at fair value through 

profit or loss   (  432 )     565     -     133 

    $ 34,882    $ 17,335    $ 709    $ 52,926 

         

Deferred income tax liabilities         

Temporary differences         

Overseas investments    $ -   ( $ 9,024 )    $ -   ( $ 9,024 ) 

 

 (5) Income Tax Assessment Status  

  The income tax returns of the company have been assessed by the tax authorit ies 

unti l  the fiscal  year 2020.  

 

24.  EPS  

Earnings and weighted average number of ordinary shares used to 

calculate earnings per share are as follows:  

Net profit for the year  

  2022  2021 

Net income used to calculate basic 

earnings per share    $ 299,525    $ 315,046 

     

Net income used to calculate 

diluted earnings per share    $ 299,525    $ 315,046 

 

Shares Unit:  thousand shares  

  2022  2021 

Weighted average number of 

common shares used to calculate 

basic earnings (loss) per share     114,179     117,911 
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Effect on dilutive potential 

ordinary shares:     

employee compensation     397     124 

Weighted average number of 

common shares used to calculate 

diluted earnings per share (loss)     114,576     118,035 

 

  If the company can choose to issue employee remuneration in stock 

or cash, when calculating diluted earnings per share, it  is assumed that 

the employee remuneration will be issued in the form of stock, and when 

the potential ordinary shares have a dilutive effect, i t  will  be included in 

the weighted average number of outstanding shares to calculate Diluted 

earnings per share. When calculating the diluted earnings per share before 

deciding on the number of shares issued for  employee compensation in 

the next year, the dilutive effect of these potential ordinary shares will 

also continue to be considered.  

 

25. SHARE-BASED BENEFIT TRANSACTIONS 

Cash capital increase retains employee stock options  

On December 10, 2021, the board of directors of Chenfull  Precision Co., 

Ltd. , a subsidiary of the company, resolved to issue 5,379,000 new shares 

in cash before the initial OTC listing. This cash capital increase project  

was approved and declared by the Counter Buying Center on December 28, 

2022, and was resolved by the board of directors,  with March 9,  2022 as 

the capital  increase base date.  

The reserved part  of the new shares issued by the above -mentioned cash 

capital increase is  used as subscription by the employees of the 

controlling and subordinate companies,  with January 21, 2022 as the 

grant date.  

The relevant information of employee stock options is as follows:  

  2022 

e m p l o y e e  s t o c k  o p t i o n s  
Unit (thousand)  Weighted average 

Execution price 

Circulation at the beginning of the 

year     -    $ - 

Give this year     215     66 

Exercising this year   (  215 )     66 

Circulation at the end of the year     -     - 
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Executable at the end of the year     -     - 

Weighted employee stock options 

granted this year average fair 

value    $ 31.4515      

 

  The weighted average exercise price of the employee stock options 

executed in 2022 was 66 on the execution date.  

The company uses the Black-Scholes evaluation model for employee 

stock options, and the input values used in the evaluation  model are as 

follows:  

    March 2022 

Number of shares 

   

215 thousand 

shares 

Restricted transfer period    no limit 

Fair value per share on vesting 

date       97.42 

execution price       66 

expected volatility       18.563% 

Duration       0.1123 year 

risk free rate       0.48755% 

 

  On November 3, 2020, the board of directors of Chenfull Precision 

Company, a subsidiary of the company, resolved to issue 4,890,000 new 

shares through cash capital increase. This cash capital increase project 

was approved and declared effective on March 5, 2021 by the TPEX, and 

was resolved by the board of directors,  taking April 22, 2021 as the 

capital increase base date.  

The reserved part  of the new shares issued by the above -mentioned cash 

capital increase is used as subscription by employees of the controlling 

and subordinate companies, with March 2, 2021 as the grant date.  

The relevant information of employee stock options is as follows:  

  2021 

employee stock options 

 Uni t  ( thousand)  

Weighted average 

Execut ion  price  

Circulation at the beginning of the 

year     -    $ - 

Give this year     166     28 

Exercising this year   (  166 )     28 

Circulation at the end of the year     -     - 

Exercisable at the end of the year     -     - 

Weighted employee stock options 

granted this year average fair 

value    $ 13.7248   
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  The weighted average execution price of the employee stock options 

executed in 2022 on the execution day was 28.  

The employee stock options granted by the company's subsidiary Chenfull 

Precision Co., Ltd. use the Black-Scholes evaluation model. The input 

values used in the evaluation model are as follows:  

    March 2021 

Number of shares 

   

166 thousand 

shares 

Restricted transfer period    no limit 

Fair value per share on vesting 

date    

13.7248 

execution price    28 

expected volatility    24.432% 

Duration    0.1205 years 

risk free rate    0.4388% 

 

Remuneration costs recognized in 2022 and 2021 were 6,762 thousand 

and 2,278 thousand, respectively.  

 

26.  DISPOSAL OF INVESTMENT SUBSIDIARIES - LOSS OF CONTROL 

  In May 2021, the company signed an equity transfer agreement with 

Yuanshan Enterprise Management Consult ing Co., Ltd. to transfer all  the 

shares of Chenfull Water Resources Company. The company completed 

the share transfer on May 30, 2021, and lost control  of these subsidiaries.  

For the description of the disposal of Chenfull Water Resources Company, 

please refer to Note 28 of the Company's 2021 consolidated financial  

report.  

 

27. PARTIAL ACQUISITION OR DISPOSAL O F INVESTMENT SUBSIDIARIES -  

DOES NOT AFFECT CONTROL 

  On April 22, 2021, the company gave up the subscription of Chenfull 

Precision Company's  cash capital  increase shares, result ing in a decrease 

in the comprehensive shareholding ratio from 100% to 90.93%.  

The company disposed of its 20.81% shareholding in Chenfull Precision 

Company in September 2021, resulting in a decrease in the shareholding 

ratio from 90.93% to 70.12%.  
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On March 9,  2022, the company gave up the subscription of Chenfull  

Precision Company' s cash capital increase shares and disposed of its  

0.74% shareholding, resulting in a decrease in the shareholding ratio from 

70.12% to 63%.  

Since the above transactions did not change the company's control  over 

these subsidiaries, the company treated them  as equity transactions. For 

related explanations, please refer to Note 29 of the Company's 2022 

consolidated financial report.  

 

28.  CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 

  The company conducts capital management to ensure that  it  can 

maximize shareholder returns by op timizing the balance of debt and 

equity before continuing to operate.  

The company's capital  structure is  composed of net  debt (that is , 

borrowings minus cash and cash equivalents) and equity (that is, share 

capital,  capital  reserves, retained earnings and other equity items).  

The Company is not subject to other external capital requirements.  

The main management of the company re -examines the capital structure 

of the company every year,  and the content of the review includes 

considering the cost  of various t ypes of capital and related risks. Based 

on the recommendations of the main management, the company will 

balance its overall  capital structure by paying dividends, issuing new 

shares,  buying back shares,  and issuing new debts or repaying old debts.  

 

29.  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

 (1) Fair value information - financial instruments not measured at fair 

value 

The management of the company believes that the carrying 

amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities that  are not 

measured at fair value approach  their fair values.  (二 ) Fair value 

information - financial instruments measured at  fair value on a 

recurring basis  
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 1.  Fair Value Hierarchy 

December 31, 2022 

  Tier 1  Tier 2  Tier 3  Total 

Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or 

loss         

Domestic listed 

(counter) stocks    $ 8,540    $ -    $ -    $ 8,540 

Fund beneficiary 

certificate     57,104     -     -     57,104 

    $ 65,644    $ -    $ -    $ 65,644 

Financial assets at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive income         

Equity instrument 

investment         

-Domestic unlisted 

(counter) stocks         

Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or 

loss    $ -    $ -    $ 30,004    $ 30,004 

 

December 31, 2021 

  T i e r  1  T i e r  2  T i e r  3  T o t a l 

Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or 

loss         

Domestic listed 

(counter) stocks    $ 9,315    $ -    $ -    $ 9,315 

Fund beneficiary 

certificate     30,830     -     -     30,830 

    $ 40,145    $ -    $ -    $ 40,145 

Financial assets at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive income         

Equity instrument 

investment         

-Domestic unlisted 

(counter) stocks    $ -    $ -    $ 29,053    $ 29,053 

 

  In 2022 and 2021, there was no transfer between 1 and tier 2 fair 

value measurement.  

(2) Reconciliation of Financial  Instruments Measured at Level 3 

Fair Value 
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2022 

  

t h r o u g h  o t h e r 

c o m p r e h e n s i v e 

Profit or loss on 

financial assets at 

f a i r  v a l u e 

F i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  equity instrument 

initial balance    $ 29,053 

Recognized in other comprehensive profit or loss 

(unrealized valuation gains and losses of 

financial assets measured at fair value through 

other comprehensive profit or loss)     951 

Year-end balance    $ 30,004 

 

2021 

  

t h r o u g h  o t h e r 

c o m p r e h e n s i v e 

Profit or loss on 

financial assets at 

f a i r  v a l u e 

F i n a n c i a l  a s s e t s  equity instrument 

initial balance    $ 28,844 

Recognized in other comprehensive profit or loss 

(unrealized valuation gains and losses of 

financial assets measured at fair value through 

other comprehensive profit or loss)     209 

Year-end balance    $ 29,053 

 

 3.  Appraisal techniques and assumptions used to measure fair value  

  The fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities is  

determined as follows:  

The fair values of financial  assets and financial l iabilities that 

have standard terms and conditions and are traded in active 

markets are determined with reference to market quotations. If  

there is no market price for reference, it  shall  be estimated by 

evaluation method. The estimates and assumptions used by the 

company in the evaluation methods are consistent with the 

information used by market participants as estimates and 

assumptions when pricing financial products.  

Stocks without public quotes  

The company's financial statements include unquoted stocks 

measured at fair value. The fair value is based on the market -based 
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valuation method - the price-to-earnings ratio method and the 

stock price-to-book value ratio method, to evaluate a reasonable 

fair value.   

(3)  Types of Financial Instruments  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Financial assets     

Fair value through profit or loss     

Mandatory through profit and 

loss at arm's length    $ 65,644    $ 40,145 

value measure     371,024     1,027,493 

Financial at amortized cost     4,534     4,488 

Assets (Note 1)     

Refundable deposits     30,004     29,053 

At fair value through other 

comprehensive income     

Financial Assets Measured by 

Value     

Equity instrument investment     537,710     401,235 

 

Note 1:  The balance includes cash and cash equivalents, other financial assets ,  

notes receivable, accounts receivable (including related parties) and 

other receivables (including related parties) and other financial assets 

measured at amortized cost.  

Note 2:  The balance includes accounts payable (including related pa rties) and 

other payables (excluding employee benefits payable, including related 

parties) and other financial liabilities measured at  amortized cost.
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 (4) Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies  

  The company's risk management objectives are mai nly to 

manage market risks, credit  risks and liquidity risks related to 

operating activities.  The company conducts the identification, 

measurement and management of the aforementioned risks in 

accordance with the group's policies and risk preferences.  

The company has established appropriate policies, procedures 

and internal controls for the aforementioned financial risk 

management in accordance with relevant regulations,  and 

important financial activities must be reviewed by the board of 

directors in accordance with relevant regulations and internal 

control systems. During the period of financial management 

activities, the company must strictly abide by the relevant 

provisions of financial risk management.  

  1. Market risk  

The main financial  risks borne by the company's operating 

activities are the risk of foreign currency exchange rate changes 

(see (1) below) and the risk of interest  rate changes (see (2) 

below).  

  (1) Exchange rate risk  

For the carrying amount of monetary assets and monetary 

liabilities denominated in non-functional currency on the balance 

sheet date, please refer to Note 33.  

Sensitivity Analysis  

The company is mainly affected by fluctuations in the US dollar 

exchange rate.  

The following table details the sensitivity analysis of the 

company when the exchange rate of the New Taiwan dollar 

(functional currency) to each relevant foreign currency increases 

and decreases by 1%. 1% is the sensitivity rate used by the 

company when reporting exchange rate risk to the main 

management, and it also represents the management 's assessment 

of the reasonably possible range of changes in foreign currency 

exchange rates.  The positive numbers in the table below represent 
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the amount that will increase the pre-tax net profit or equity when 

the NT dollar depreciates by 1% relative to the relevant 

currencies;  The effect will  be the negative of the same amount.  

 

  T h e  i m p a c t  o f  t h e  U S  d o l l a r 

  2022  2021 

Profit and loss    $ 420    $ 303 

 

 (2) Interest Rate Risk  

  Interest rate risk is the risk of fluctuations in the fair value 

of financial instruments or future cash flows due to changes in 

market interest rates.  

The carrying amount of the financial  assets and financial  

liabilities of the Compan y subject to interest  rate exposure on the 

balance sheet date is  as follows:  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Fair value interest rate 

risk     

-monetary assets    $ 101    $ 119,634 

- Financial liabilities     -     - 

Cash flow interest rate 

risk     

-monetary assets     118,162     719,711 

- Financial liabilities     -     - 

 

  The company has exposure to fair value interest rate risk due 

to holding fixed-rate time deposits, but the time deposits are 

fixed-rate and have not engaged in the operation of various 

derivative financial instruments, so the company's risks arising 

from interest rate changes in 2022 and 2021 Not big.  

 2.  credit risk  

  Credit  risk refers to the risk that the counterparty defaults in 

contractual  obligations and causes  financial  losses to the Group. As of 

the balance sheet date,  the company's maximum credit risk exposure 

that  may cause financial  losses due to the counterparty's  failure to 

perform its obligations mainly comes from the book value of financial  

assets recognized in the individual balance sheet.  
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The policy adopted by the company is to only conduct transactions 

with reputable objects,  and to obtain sufficient guarantees under 

necessary circumstances to reduce the risk of financial losses due to 

default.  In order to reduce credit risk, the company's management has 

established management control procedures for the determination of 

credit line and credit approval to ensure the recovery of overdue 

receivables. In addition, the company will  review the recovery amoun t 

of receivables one by one on the balance sheet date to ensure that  

unrecoverable receivables have been appropriately derogated. 

Accordingly, the company's management believes that the company's 

credit risk has been significantly reduced, so the credit  ri sk is  limited.  

The company's credit  risk is mainly concentrated in the company's top 

five customers.  As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the percentages of 

receivables from the top five customers to the company's total  

receivables were 87% and 69%. ,  the credit  concentration risk of the 

remaining receivables is relatively insignificant.
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 3.  liquidity risk  

  The company manages and maintains sufficient cash and 

equivalent cash to support operations and mitigate the impact of cash 

flow fluctuations.  The management of the company supervises the use 

of bank financing lines and ensures compliance with the terms of the 

loan contract.  

Bank borrowings are an important source of liquidity for the 

Company. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the company's unused 

financing line,  please refer to the description of the following (2) 

financing line.  

 (1) Liquidity and interest rate risk table for non -derivative financial  

liabilities  

  The remaining contractual maturity analysis of 

non-derivative financial l iabilities is  prepared on the basis of the 

undiscounted cash flows (including principal and estimated 

interest) of financial liabilities based on the earl iest date on 

which the Company may be required to repay. The maturity 

analysis of other non-derivative financial liabiliti es is prepared 

according to the agreed repayment date.  

December 31, 2022 

  less than 1 year  1  t o  2  ye a r s  2  t o  3  ye a r s  ove r  3  ye a r s  t o t a l 

Non-derivative 

financial 

liabilities           

accounts 

payable    $ 493,714    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 493,714 

Other 

payables     43,997     -     -     -     43,997 

    $ 537,711    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 537,711 

 

December 31, 2021 

  less than 1 year  1  t o  2  ye a r s  2  t o  3  ye a r s  ove r  3  ye a r s  t o t a l 

Non-derivative 

financial 

liabilities           

accounts 

payable    $ 373,642    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 373,642 

Other 

payables     27,593     -     -     -     27,593 

    $ 401,235    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 401,235 

 

 (2) financing amount  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 
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  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Unsecured Bank Line of 

Credit and Commercial 

Paper Issue Facility 

(reviewed annually)     

- Amount used    $ 2,000    $ 5,003 

- Unused amount     1,198,000     844,997 

    $ 1,200,000    $ 850,000 

 

30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTION 

Except as disclosed in other notes,  the transactions between the company 

and related parties are as follows:   

(1) The name of the person involved and their relationship  

N a m e  o f  r e l a t e d  p a r t y  Relationship with the company 

CHEN FULL Water CO., LTD.  Subsidiary 

Dongguan Quanfeng Machinery Co., 

Ltd. 

 

Subsidiary 

Quan Feng International Co., Ltd.  Subsidiary 

CHEN FULL PRECISION CO., 

LTD. 

 

Subsidiary 

 

 (2) operating income 

Accounting item  Name of related party  2022  2021 

sales revenue  Dongguan Quanfeng 

Machinery Co., Ltd. 

   $ 2,768    $ 22,914 

sales revenue  CHEN FULL 

PRECISION CO., 

LTD. 

   $ -    $ 21 

Returned goods  Dongguan Quanfeng 

Machinery Co., Ltd. 

   $ 8,057    $ - 

 

The transaction price and terms of receipt  and payment of the company's sales 

to related parties are not significantly different from those of ordinary 

customers.  

 (3) Purchase 

N a m e  o f  r e l a t e d  p a r t y  2022  2021 

Quan Feng International Co., 

Ltd.    $ 17,571    $ 38,567 

Dongguan Quanfeng 

Machinery Co., Ltd.    $ 603    $ 432 
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The transaction price and terms of receipt and  payment of the company's 

purchases from related parties are not significantly different from those 

of general manufacturers.   

(4) Receivables from related parties  

Accounting item  Name of related party  December 31, 

2022 

 December 31, 

2021 

Accounts 

receivable 

 Dongguan Quanfeng 

Machinery Co., Ltd. 

   $ -    $ 9,721 

other receivables  Quan Feng International 

Co., Ltd. 

   $ 480    $ 88 

 

  There is no guarantee for the outstanding receivables from related 

parties.  The amount receivable from related parties in 2022 and 2021 

has not been provisioned for loss.  

 (5) Amount payable to related parties  

Accounting item  Name of related party  December 31, 

2022 

 December 31, 

2021 

accounts payable  Dongguan Quanfeng 

Machinery Co., Ltd. 

   $ 345    $ - 

Other payables  CHEN FULL 

PRECISION CO., 

LTD. 

   $ -    $ 327 

 

The outstanding balance of payables to related parties has not been guaranteed.  

 (6) Disposal of other assets  

    2022 

Accounting item  Name of related party  Disposal price  Disposal benefit 

Intangible assets  CHEN FULL 

PRECISION CO., 

LTD. 

   $ 6,041     $ - 

 

 (7) Other 

Accounting item 

 

Name of related party 

 December 31, 

2022 

 December 31, 

2021 

Payment in 

advance (account 

line 

 Dongguan Quanfeng 

Machinery Co., Ltd. 

   $ 7,326    $ 5,549 

contract liabilities)  Quan Feng International 

Co., Ltd. 

   $ -    $ 1,005 

Prepayments  Quan Feng International 

Co., Ltd. 

   $ 1,189    $ 672 

rental income 

(account 

 CHEN FULL 

PRECISION CO., LTD. 

   $ 4,920    $ 4,970 
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Other income)  Quan Feng International 

Co., Ltd. 

   $ 3,715    $ 1,079 

rental income 

(account 

 CHEN FULL 

PRECISION CO., LTD. 

   $ 14,058    $ 14,089 

Other income)  CHEN FULL 

PRECISION CO., LTD. 

   $ 96    $ 120 

Service income 

(account 

 CHEN FULL 

PRECISION CO., LTD. 

   $ 25    $ - 

 

 (8) Salary of main management  

  2022  2021 

short-term employee benefits    $ 17,628    $ 15,489 

Post-employment benefits     494     6,197 

share based payment     -     274 

    $ 18,122    $ 21,960 

 

  The remuneration of directors and other key management  

personnel is determined by the remuneration committee in accordance 

with individual performance and market trends.  

 

31、  PLEDGED ASSETS 

The following assets of the company are performance guarantees for 

business needs:  

  December 31, 2022  December 31, 2021 

Other financial assets - current     

Pledge Certificate of Deposit    $ 101    $ 9,634 

 

32、  SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNIZED 

CONTRACTUAL COMMITMENTS 

Except as stated in other notes,  the company stil l  has the following major 

commitments and contingencies:  

(1) On December 31, 2022, the company issued a deposit guarantee note 

amounting to 1,257,470,000 yuan for credit  line,  business performance, 

and project warranty.  

(2) On December 31, 2022, due to contract perf ormance or warranty guarantee,  

the company issued and deposited guarantee notes totaling 101,702 

thousand yuan.  

(3) The company contracts with various manufacturers to purchase land, 

equipment and factory decoration, etc. The total  contract price is  
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NT$174,164,000. As of December 31, 2011, NT$71,333,000 has been paid 

(account prepaid equipment and Real estate under construction),  

NT$102,831,000 has not yet been paid.  

 

33、  MATERIAL FOREIGN CURRENCY ASSET AND LIABILITY 

INFORMATION 

  The following information is summarized and expressed in terms of 

foreign currencies other than the functional currency of the company, and 

the exchange rate disclosed refers to the exchange rate converted from 

these foreign currencies to the functional currency. Assets and liabili ties 

denominated in foreign currencies with significant impact are as follows:  

December 31, 2022 

  Currency  Rate  Amount 

F i n a c i a l  a s s e t s       

monetary item       

Dollar    $ 1,392   30.71 （USD：TWD）    $ 42,747 

RMB     447   4.408 （CNY：TWD）     1,971 

EUR     62   32.72 （EUR：TWD）     2,028 

Japanese yen     2,508   0.232 （JPY：TWD）     582 

        $ 47,328 

non-monetary items       

equity method 

subsidiary 

      

US dollar     4,069   30.71 （USD：TWD）    $ 124,960 

       

financial liabilities       

monetary item       

US dollar     25   30.71 （USD：TWD）    $ 776 
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December 31, 2021 

  C u r r e n c y  R a t e  A m o u n t 

Finacial assets       

monetary item       

Dollar    $ 2,342   27.68 （USD：TWD）    $ 64,819 

RMB     446   4.344 （CNY：TWD）     1,938 

EUR     149   31.32 （EUR：TWD）     4,651 

Japanese yen     29,991   0.2405 （JPY：TWD）     7,213 

        $ 78,621 

non-monetary items       

equity method 

subsidiary 

      

US dollar     3,596   27.68 （USD：TWD）    $ 99,527 

       

financial liabilities       

monetary item       

US dollar     1,246   27.68 （USD：TWD）    $ 34,490 

 

  The company's foreign currency exchange gains and losses  

(including realized and unrealized) in 2022 and 2021 were profits  of 

5,151,000 and losses of 3,608,000, respectively. Due to  the variety of 

foreign currency transactions, it  is impossible to disclose the exchange 

gains and losses according to the major foreign currencies.  

34. NOTES DISCLOSURES 

 (1) Major transactions and (2) Reinvestment related information  

No.  Item Description 

1 Funds are loaned to others. none 

2 Endorsement for others. Schedule 1 

3 

The situation of securities held at the end of the period 

(excluding investment subsidiaries, affiliated enterprises and 

joint venture control parts). 

Schedule 2 

4 
Accumulated buying or selling of the same securities amounted 

to NT$300 million or more than 20% of the paid-in capital. 

none 

5 
The amount of real estate acquired is NT$300 million or more 

than 20% of the paid-in capital. 

none 

6 
The amount of disposing of real estate is NT$300 million or 

more than 20% of the paid-in capital. 

none 

7 

The amount of goods purchased and sold with related parties 

reaches NT$100 million or more than 20% of the paid-in 

capital. 

none 

8 
Receivables from related parties amount to NT$100 million or 

more than 20% of the paid-in capital. 

none 

9 engage in derivative transactions. none 

10 Invested company information. Schedule 3 
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(3) China Investment Information  

No.  Item Description 

1 

The name of the mainland invested company, main business 

items, paid-in capital, investment method, capital remittance, 

shareholding ratio, investment profit and loss, investment book 

amount at the end of the period, repatriated investment profit 

and loss, and investment quota in China. 

Schedule 4 

2 

The following major transactions, prices, payment terms, and 

unrealized gains and losses with mainland investee companies 

directly or indirectly via third regions: 

 

(1) The purchase amount and percentage and the ending balance 

and percentage of related payables. 

Schedule 5 

(2) The amount and percentage of sales and the closing balance 

and percentage of related receivables. 

Schedule 5 

(3) The amount of the property transaction and the resulting 

profit or loss. 

none 

(4) Ending balance of bill endorsement guarantee or provision 

of collateral and its purpose. 

none 

(5) The maximum balance of financing, the balance at the end 

of the period, the interest rate range and the total amount of 

interest for the current period. 

none 

(6) Other transactions that have a significant impact on the 

current profit or loss or financial status, such as the provision or 

receipt of labor services, etc. 

none 

 

 (4) Major shareholder information: Please refer to Attachment 6 for the 

name, shareholding amount and proportion of shareholders with a 

shareholding ratio of 5% or more.  
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CHEN FU LL IN TERN ATIO N AL CO. ,  LTD .  

en d or s em en t  f or  o th e rs  

Fr om Jan u a r y 1  t o  D ec emb er  3 1 ,  2 02 2  

Sch ed u le  I  Un i t :  u n l ess  o th er wi s e  sp ec i f i ed ,  i s  

 Th ou san d s  of  N ew Ta i wan  d o l la r s  an d  f or e i gn  cu r r en c i e s  

 

s e r i a l 

number 

(Note 1) 

e n d o r s e r 

Company Name 

Guaranteed by the endorsement 

Guarantee limit 

for endorsement 
o f  a  s i n g l e 

e n t e r p r i s e 

（Note 3：一、

( 2 ) ） 

T h e  h i g h e s t 

endorsement in 

t h i s  p e r i o d 

g u a r a n t e e d 

b a l a n c e 

E n d  o f  t e r m 
e n d o r s e m e n t 

g u a r a n t e e d 

b a l a n c e 

Actual spending 

a m o u n t 

s e c u r e d  b y 

p r o p e r t y 

E n d o r s e m e n t 

G u a r a n t e e 

A m o u n t 

The ratio of 

the cumulative 
endorsement 

g u a r a n t e e 

amount to the 

net value of 

t h e  l a t e s t 

f i n a n c i a l 
s t a t e m e n t % 

e n d o r s e m e n t 
g u a r a n t e e 

maximum limit

（ 註 3 ） 

It  is  the 

p a r e n t 
company's 

endorsem

e n t 

guarantee 

t o  t h e 

subsidiary 
company 

Subsidiar

y 
company's 

endorsem

e n t 

guarantee 

t o  t h e 

p a r e n t 
company 

I t  i s  a n 

endorsem
e n t 

guarantee 

f o r  t h e 
mainland 

Comp an y Nam e 
r e l a t i o n 

( N o t e  2 ) 

0 CHEN FULL 

INTERNATIO
NAL CO., 

LTD. 

千附精密股份有限

公司 

(2)   $ 702,091   $ 38,487   $ 38,487   $ 38,487   $ - 1.10   $ 702,091 Ｙ Ｎ Ｎ 

              
              

 

Not e  1 :  Th e  d esc r ip t i on  of  t h e  n u mb er  co lu mn  i s  a s  f o l l o ws :  

(1 )  Fi l l  i n  0  fo r  t h e  i s su e r.  

(2 )  In v es t ed  comp an ies  a r e  n u mb er ed  s eq u en t i a l l y  s t a r t i n g  f ro m th e  Arab i c  n u mera l  1  b y c omp an y.  

Not e  2 :  Th e  r e la t i on sh ip  b e tween  t h e  en d o rs e r  an d  t h e  en d ors ed  gu a ran tor  i s  a s  f o l l o w s :  

(1 )  Comp an ie s  wi th  b u s in ess  con t ac t s .  

(2 )  A co mp an y i n  wh ich  t h e  comp an y d i r ec t l y  an d  i n d i rec t l y  h o ld s  m or e  t h an  5 0 % of  t h e  vo t i n g  sh a r es .  

(3 )  Comp an ie s  t h a t  d i rec t l y a n d  i n d i rec t l y h o ld  m or e  t h an  5 0 % of  t h e  co mp an y' s  v o t i n g  sh a re s .  

(4 )  Bet ween  c omp an ies  i n  wh ich  t h e  comp an y d i r ec t l y  an d  i n d i rec t l y  h o ld s  m or e  t h an  9 0 % of  t h e  v o t i n g  sh a r es .  

(5 )  Bas ed  on  t h e  n eed s  o f  co n t rac t i n g  p ro j ec t s ,  comp an i e s  i n  t h e  sam e in d u s t r y o r  c o - b u i ld ers  a r e  mu tu a l l y  i n su r ed  i n  accord an ce  wi th  t h e  c on t r ac t .  

(6 )  A co mp an y t h a t  i s  en d o rs ed  b y a l l  sh a r eh o ld er s  i n  accord an ce  wi th  t h e i r  sh a r eh o ld in g  ra t i o  d u e  t o  a  j o in t  i n v es t men t  r e la t i on sh ip .  

(7 )  J o in t  an d  sev e ra l  gu a ran t ees  fo r  p e r fo rman ce  gu a ran t ees  of  p r e - sa l e  h ou s in g  sa l es  con t rac t s  amon g p ee rs  i n  accord an ce  wi th  t h e  Con su m er  P ro t ec t i on  La w.  

Not e  3 :  Th e  ca lcu la t i on  m eth od  an d  amou n t  of  t h e  en d o rs em en t  gu a ran t ee  l imi t .  

1 .  Gu a ra n t ee  l i mi t  fo r  en d or s em en t  o f  a  s i n g l e  en t e rp r i s e :  

(1 )  Th e  c omp an y' s  en d o rs em en t  gu a ran t ee  l imi t  fo r  a  s i n g l e  en t e rp r i s e  sh a l l  n o t  exc eed  1 0 % of  t h e  comp an y ' s  cu r r en t  n e t  va lu e  (111 .1 2 .31 )  i n  accord an ce  wi th  t h e  c omp an y ' s  

en d or s em en t  gu a ran t ee  op era t i n g  p r oc ed u r es .  

(2 )  Th e  c omp an y' s  en d o rs em en t  gu a ran t ee  l imi t  fo r  a  s i n g l e  a f f i l i a t ed  comp an y sh a l l  n o t  exc eed  2 0 % of  t h e  c omp an y ' s  cu r r en t  n e t  va lu e  (111 .1 2 .3 1 )  i n  accord an ce  wi th  t h e  

comp an y' s  en d o rs em en t  gu a r an t ee  op era t i n g  p r oc ed u r es .  

2 .  Th e  ma ximu m l imi t  o f  en d ors em en t  gu a ran t ee :  
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(1 )  Th e  c omp an y' s  cu mu la t i v e  ex t e rn a l  en d o rs em en t  gu a ra n t ee  l imi t  sh a l l  n o t  exc eed  2 0 % of  t h e  c omp an y' s  cu r r en t  n e t  va lu e  (11 1 .12 .3 1 )  i n  accord an ce  wi th  t h e  c omp an y' s  

en d or s em en t  gu a ran t ee  op era t i n g  p roc ed u r es .  

 

CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO. ,  LTD.  

Secur i t i es  h eld  a t  the  end  of th e  pe r iod  

Decemb er  31 ,2022  

Schedule  I  Uni t :  un less  o therwi se  speci fi ed ,  i s  

Thousands o f New Taiwan do l lars  and  foreign  curren cies  

 

C o m p a n y  h e l d Type and name of securities (Note 1) 
Issuer of securities 

r e l a t i o n s h i p  
a c c o u n t  s u b j e c t 

e n d  o f  p e r i o d 

R e m a r k Number of Shares 

/ Number of Units 
carrying amount 

Shareholding 

% 
F a i r  v a l u e 

CHEN FULL 

INTERNATIONAL 

CO., LTD. 

Stocks - Unlisted OTC        

 Ming Chao Enterprise Co., Ltd. none Financial assets at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

income - non-current 

   2,703,905   $ 22,056 9.45   $ 22,056  

 Stocks - Private        

 Taiwan Yucheng Small and Medium 

Enterprise Development Co., Ltd. 

none Financial assets at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

income - non-current 

   854,360   $ 7,948 1.21   $ 7,948  

 Fund Beneficiary Certificate - Domestic        

 Yuanta Taiwan Excellence 50 Securities 

Investment Trust Fund 

none Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or 

loss - current 

   160,000   $ 17,632 0.01   $ 17,632  

 Cathay FTSE China A50 Fund 〃 〃    462,000    9,878 0.33    9,878  

 Yuanta 2-10 Years Investment Grade 

Corporate Bond Fund 
〃 〃    3,000,000    29,594 3.11    29,594  

       $ 57,104    $ 57,104  

 Stocks - Listed OTC        

 Fubon Special Shares none Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or 

loss - current 

   155,000   $ 8,540 0.05   $ 8,540  

         

Quan Feng 

INTERNATIONAL 

CO., LTD 

Stocks - Listed OTC        

 CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., 

LTD. 

parent company Financial assets at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

   281,759   $ 10,636 0.25   $ 10,636  
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income - non-current 

 Stocks - Emerging Cabinets        

 meiqiang optical co., ltd. none Financial assets at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

income - non-current 

   66,000   $ 1,844 0.2   $ 1,844  

 Stocks - Private        

 Meikai Technology Co., Ltd. none Financial assets at fair 

value through other 

comprehensive 

income - non-current 

   46,750   $ - 0.19   $ -  

 Huanmeng International Enterprise Co., 

Ltd. 
〃 〃    35,000    - 0.25    -  

       $ -    $ -  

 Fund Beneficiary Certificate - Domestic        

 Cathay FTSE China A50 Fund none Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or 

loss - current 

   490,000   $ 10,476 0.35   $ 10,476  

 Yuanta Taiwan Excellence 50 Securities 

Investment Trust Fund 
〃 〃    100,000    11,020 -    11,020  

       $ 21,496    $ 21,496  

 Stocks - Listed OTC        

 Fubon Gold Bite none Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or 

loss - current 

   155,000   $ 8,540 0.05   $ 8,540  

 feng tai enterprise co., ltd. 〃 〃    22,000    4,543 -    4,543  

 Discretionary Investment Account (Note 

2) 

       

 Jianzhun Electric Industrial Co., Ltd. 〃 〃    40,000    1,708 0.02    1,708  

 Wacheng Taitong Co., Ltd. 〃 〃    7,945    1,629 0.03    1,629  

 IGS Electronics Co., Ltd. 〃 〃    4,000    1,734 -    1,734  

 Jinan Nature New Materials Co., Ltd. 〃 〃    12,000    2,136 0.02    2,136  

 Fanquan Technology Co., Ltd. 〃 〃    14,000    1,359 0.03    1,359  

       $ 21,649    $ 21,649  

 Stocks - Emerging Cabinets        

 Litong Biomedical Technology Co., Ltd. none Financial assets at fair 

value through profit or 

loss - current 

   66,459   $ 3,643 0.11   $ 3,643  

Note  1 :  Secur i t i es  ment ion ed  in  th is  tab l e  r e fer  to  s tocks ,  bonds,  ben efi c i ary cer t i f icat es  and  secur i t i es  d er ived  fro m the abo ve i tems wi th in  th e  scope o f  

In tern at iona l  Account in g S tandard  No.  9  "Finan cial  Ins t ru ment s" .  

Note  2 :  I t  i s  a  method  o f s ign in g a  d i scret ionary asse t  management  cont ract  wi th  an  inves tment  consu l t in g  co mp an y,  and  th e  t ru s tee  wi l l  bu y and  sel l  in  the  

cen t ra l ized  t r ad in g market  b y h imsel f .  

Note  3 :  Fo r  in format ion  about  the  equi ty o f in vestment  subs id ia r ies ,  p l ease  re fer  to  Sch edule  3  and  Sch edule  4 .  
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C H E N  F U L L I N T E R N AT I O N A L C O . ,  LT D .  

T h e  na me  o f  t h e  i n v e s t e d  c o mp a n y,  i t s  l o c a t i o n . . .  a n d  o t he r  r e l e v a n t  i n f o r ma t i o n  

F r o m J a n u a r y  1 s t  t o  D e c e mb e r  3 1 s t  i n  t he  2 0 2 2  a n d  2 0 2 1  

S c h e d u l e  3  U n i t :  u n l e s s  o t h e r w i s e  s p e c i f i e d  

,  i n  t h o u s a n d s  o f  N T d o l l a r s  

 

Investment Company  Name Investee Company  Location Main Business Items Original investment amount  Held at the end of the period I n v e s t e d 

c o m p a n y 

Current period 

( p r o f i t )  l o s s 

recognized in 

t h i s  p e r i o d 

I n v e s t m e n t 

( l o s s )  l o s s 

R e m a r k The end of the 

current period 

The end of the 

previous period 

N u m b e r  o f 

S h a r e s 
R a t i o  % Book Amount 

CHEN FULL 

INTERNATIONAL 

CO., LTD. 

Quan Feng 

INTERNATIONAL CO., 

LTD 

12th Floor, No. 107, Section 4, 

Zhongxiao East Road, Daan 

District, Taipei City 

Business center operation 

and shoe-making equipment 

sales 

  $ 132,800   $ 132,800    15,280,000 100   $ 128,389   $ 7,487   $ 6,751 Subsidiary 

 CHEN FULL HOLDING 

CO., LTD. 

Vistra Corporate Services 

Centre,Ground Floor NPF 

Building,Beach 

Road,Apia,Samoa 

conduct holding business    60,448 

 ( USD 2,000 ) 

   60,448 

 ( USD 2,000 ) 

   - 100    124,960    22,636    22,636 Subsidiary 

 CHEN FULL Water 

Resources Co., Ltd. 

2nd Floor, 9th Floor, No. 99, 

Section 1, Nankan Road, 

Luzhu District, Taoyuan City 

Other chemical 

manufacturing, water supply 

business, piping engineering 

   -    418,000    - -    -  (  25,385 )  (  25,385 ) Note 2 

 CHEN FULL PRECISION 

CO., LTD. 

No. 28, Houke South Road, 

Houli District, Taichung City 

Processing and 

manufacturing of precision 

components and aviation 

equipment 

   372,780    377,170    37,278,000 63    1,233,001    355,409    227,463 Subsidiary 

Quan Feng 

INTERNATIONAL 

CO., LTD 

CHEN FULL PRECISION 

CO., LTD. 

No. 28, Houke South Road, 

Houli District, Taichung City 

Processing and 

manufacturing of precision 

components and aviation 

equipment 

   23,516    23,516    242,909 0.41    8,034    355,409    1,479 Subsidiary 

CHEN FULL HOLDING 

CO., LTD. 

NEW OPPORTUNITY 

LIMITED 

Vistra Corporate Services 

Centre,Ground Floor NPF 

Building,Beach 

Road,Apia,Samoa 

conduct holding business    60,448 

 ( USD 2,000 ) 

   60,448 

 ( USD 2,000 ) 

   - 100    107,024 

 ( USD 3,485 ) 

   23,831 

 ( USD 776 ) 

   23,831 

 ( USD 776 ) 

Subsidiary 

NEW OPPORTUNITY 

LIMITED 

Dongguan Quanfeng 

Machinery Co., Ltd. (Note 1) 

No. 23, Yanhe Road, Houjie, 

Houjie Town, Dongguan City, 

Guangdong Province 

Sales and contracting of 

precision mechanical 

equipment, shoemaking 

equipment, ventilation 

equipment and their spare 

parts 

   60,448 

 ( USD 2,000 ) 

   60,448 

 ( USD 2,000 ) 

   - 100    107,024 

 ( USD 3,485 ) 

   23,831 

 ( USD 776 ) 

   23,831 

 ( USD 776 ) 

Subsidiary 

            

            

 

N o t e  1 :  P l e a s e  r e f e r  t o  A t t a c h m e n t  4  f o r  r e l e v a n t  i n f o r ma t i o n  o n  i n v e s t e e  c o mp a n i e s  i n  ma i n l a n d  C h i n a .  

N o t e  2 :  T he  me r g e d  c o mp a n y  d i s p o s e d  o f  Q i a n f u  Wa t e r  R e s o u r c e s  C o . ,  L t d .  o n  M a y  3 0 ,  2 0 11 ,  a n d  l o s t  c o n t r o l  o v e r  t h e s e  s u b s i d ia r i e s .  
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Ch in a  In v es tm en t  In f or ma t io n  

Fr om Jan u a r y 1 s t  t o  D ec emb er  3 1 s t  i n  t h e  2 0 2 2  an d  20 2 1  

Sch ed u le  4  Un i t :  u n l ess  o th er wi s e  sp ec i f i ed ,  i s  

Th ou san d s  of  N ew Ta i wan  d o l la r s  an d  f or e i gn  cu r r en c i es  

China investee 

c o m p a n y 

Main business 

items  

Paid-in capital 

investment 

m e t h o d

（Note 1） 

S i n c e  t h e 

beginning of the 
p e r i o d 

T a i w a n 

r e m i t t a n c e 
accu mu la t i on 

i n v e s t m e n t 

a m o u n t 

Remittance or withdrawal of 

investment amount in the current 
p e r i o d 

From the end of 

t h e  c u r r e n t 

p e r i o d 

Ac c u m u la t ed 

i n v e s t m e n t 

amount remitted 
f r o m  Ta i wa n 

I n v e s t e d 

c o m p a n y 

Profit and loss 
for the period 

The company 
i n v e s t s 

d i r e c t l y  o r 

i n d i r e c t l y 
Shareholding 

% 

Recognized in 

t h i s  p e r i o d 

I n v e s t m e n t 

( l o s s )  l o s s 

( N o t e  2 ) 

Book value of 

investment at 

the end of the 
p e r i o d 

As of this period 

repatriated to 

T a i w a n 

i n v e s t m e n t 

i n c o m e 
R e m i t t a n c e w i t h d r a w a l 

Dongguan 

Quanfeng 

Machinery Co., 

Ltd. 

Sales and 

contracting of 

precision 
mechanical 

equipment, 

shoemaking 
equipment, 

ventilation 

equipment and 
their spare parts 

  $ 60,488 

 ( USD 2,000 ) 

(2)   $ 60,448 

 ( USD 2,000 ) 

  $ -   $ -   $ 60,448 

 ( USD 2,000 ) 

  $ 23,831 

 ( USD 776 ) 

100   $ 23,831 

 ( USD 776 ) 

(2)-2 

  $ 107,024 

 ( USD 3,485 ) 

 

  $ - 

 

At the end of the current period, the accumulative amount of investment 

r e m i t t e d  f r o m  T a i w a n  t o  C h i n a 

The investment amount approved by the Investment Review Committee of 

t h e  M i n i s t r y  o f  E c o n o m i c  A f f a i r s 

According to the regulations of the Ministry of Economic Affairs 

Investment Review Committee, the investment limit for China 

  NTD 60,448 
 ( USD 2,000 ) 

  NTD 60,448 
 ( USD 2,000 ) 

  NTD 2,106,273 
 ( USD 68,586 ) 

 

Not e  1 :  Th e  i n v es tm en t  m eth od s  a r e  d iv id ed  i n to  t h e  f o l lo win g  t h r ee  t yp es ,  an d  t h e  t yp e  of  t yp e  can  b e  mark ed :  

(1 )  Di r ec t l y  go  t o  t h e  ma in la n d  t o  en ga g e  i n  i n ves tm en t .  

(2 )  Rein v es t  i n  ma in lan d  Ch in a  t h rou gh  an  i n ves tm en t  co mp an y i n  a  t h i rd  a r ea  (p lea s e  sp ec i f y  t h e  i n ves tm en t  comp an y i n  t h e  t h i rd  a r ea ) .  

A.  NE W OPP ORTU N ITY LI M ITE D  

(3 )  Oth er  m eth od s .  

Not e  2 :  In  t h e  cu r r en t  p er i od  rec o gn ized  i n v es tm en t  p r of i t  an d  loss  c o lu mn :  

(1 )  I f  i t  i s  u n d er  p r ep a ra t i on  an d  t h ere  i s  n o  i n v es tm en t  p r of i t  o r  l oss ,  i t  sh ou ld  b e  i n d i ca t ed .  

(2 )  Th e  r eco gn i t i on  b as i s  f or  i n ves tm en t  ga in s  an d  los s es  i s  d iv id ed  i n to  t h e  fo l l o win g  t h ree  t yp es ,  wh ich  sh a l l  b e  s p ec i f i ed .  

1 .  Fin an c i a l  s t a t em en t s  au d i t ed  an d  cer t i f i ed  b y an  i n t e rn a t i on a l  accou n t in g  f i rm th a t  h a s  a  coop era t i ve  r e la t i on sh i p  wi th  an  accou n t in g  f i rm in  t h e  Rep u b l i c  of  Ch in a .  

2 .  Fin an c i a l  s t a t em en t s  au d i t ed  an d  cer t i f i ed  b y c e r t i f i ed  accou n tan t s  of  t h e  p a r en t  co mp an y i n  Ta i wan .  

3 .  Oth ers .  

Not e  3 :  Th e  r e l evan t  amou n t s  i n  t h i s  t ab le  a r e  l i s t ed  i n  N ew Ta i wan  Do l la r s ,  an d  t h os e  i n vo lv in g  fo r e ign  cu r r en c i es  a re  con v e r t ed  i n to  N ew Ta i wa n  Do l la r s  a t  t h e  sp ot  exch an g e 

ra t e  on  t h e  f i n an c i a l  r ep o r t i n g  d a t e .  ( Th e  US d o l la r  sp o t  exch an ge ra t e  on  2 0 2 2 .1 2 .31  i s  3 0 .7 1 )  
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO. ,  LTD.  

Th e fo l lo wing major  t ran sact ions  and  thei r  p r ices ,  p ayment  t erms,  unreal i zed  ga ins  and  losses ,  and  o th er  re levant  in format ion  that  occur red  d i rect ly  or  

ind i rect ly  wi th  the  China invest ee  co mp an y th rou gh  the  th i rd  r egion  

Fro m January 1s t  to  December  31st  in  th e  2022  and  2021  

Schedule  5  Uni t :  un less  o therwi se  speci fi ed  

,  in  thousands o f  NT dol l a rs  

 

C h i n a  i n v e s t e e 

c o m p a n y 
Transaction Type 

B u y  a n d  s e l l 

P r i c e 

t r a n s a c t i o n  t e r m s 
Notes receivable (payment), 

a c c o u n t s 
Unrealized gains 

a n d  l o s s e s 
R e m a r k 

A m o u n t s h a r e p aymen t  t e rms 

w i t h  g e n e r a l 

t r a n s a c t i o n s 

c o m p a r i s o n 

A m o u n t s h a r e 

Dongguan Quanfeng 

Machinery Co., Ltd. 

Sales   $ 2,768    0.07 Same as regular 

customers 

Same as regular 

customers 

Same as regular 

customers 

  $ -    -   $ -  

company Returned goods  (  8,057 )  (  0.20 ) Same as regular 

customers 

Same as regular 

customers 

Same as regular 

customers 

   -    -    -  

 Purchase    603    0.02 Same as regular 

customers 

Same as regular 

customers 

Same as regular 

customers 

   345    0.01    -  
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Major shareholder information  

December 31 2022 

Schedule 6 

M a j o r  s h a r e h o l d e r  n a m e 
S h a r e 

H o l d % 

Rich Sky Investment Co., Ltd.    9,004,180    7.91% 

Kule Cultural Creation Co., Ltd.    5,738,000    5.04% 
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Schedule of Cash and cash equivalents  

December 31 2022 

Schedule 1 Unit:  Thousands of NT dollars and 

foreign currencies  

 

client's name  Summary   Amount 

cash     

cash in stock      $ 260 

petty gold       375 

       635 

        

Bank savings     

Check and demand 

deposit 

      108,219 

Foreign Currency 

Demand Deposit 

 IncludingUSD245,000@30.71, 

EUR14,000@32.72, 

RMB446,000@4.408 

    9,943 

       118,162 

        

      $ 118,797 
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Schedule of Notes receivable  

December 31 2022 

Schedule 2 Unit:  Thousands of NT dollars and 

foreign currencies  

 

client's name  Summary   Amount 

non-related person     

feng tai enterprise co., ltd.  operating income    $ 8,913 

Yongxin Enterprise Co., Ltd.  〃     490 

Other (Note)  〃     260 

       9,663 

        

Less: Allowance for doubtful 

debts 

    (  271 ) 

        

      $ 9,392 
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

 Schedule of receivable  

December 31 2022 

Schedule 3 Unit:  Thousands of NT dollars and 

foreign currencies  

 

c l i e n t ' s  n a m e  Summary   Amount 

Accounts of unrelated persons     

Han Tang Integration Co., Ltd.  operating income    $ 109,452 

taiwan semiconductor manufacturing co., 

ltd. 

 〃     90,727 

Other (Note)  〃     43,558 

       243,737 

        

Less: Allowance for doubtful debts     (  3,436 ) 

        

      $ 240,301 
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Schedule of Inventory 

December 31 2022 

Schedule 4 Unit:  Thousands of NT dollars and 

foreign currencies  

 

    A m o u n t 

Item  Summary   C o s t  m a r k e t  p r i c e 

raw material      $ 186,306    $ 155,461 

             

WIP       187,547     265,368 

             

finished product       99,642     133,764 

             

commodity inventory       501     399 

             

       473,996    $ 554,992 

             

Less: Provision for inventory 

decline and sluggish loss 

    (  72,620 )   

             

      $ 401,376   
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Schedule of prepayments  

December 31 2022 

Schedule 5 Unit:  Thousands of NT dollars and 

foreign currencies  

 

I t e m  S u m m a r y   A m o u n t 

Advance payment      $ 10,313 

        

Residual tax credit       943 

        

Other prepaid expenses 

(Note) 

      1,362 

        

      $ 12,618 
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Schedule of Financial  assets at  fair  value through other comprehensive income - breakdown of non-current movements  

From January 1st  to December 31st  in  the 2022 and 2021  

Schedule 6  Unit:  unless otherwise specified  

,  in thousands of NT dollars  

 

  O p e n i n g  B a l a n c e  O p e n i n g  B a l a n c e  D e c r e a s e  i n  t h i s  p e r i o d    E n d i n g  b a l a n c e   

I T E M  S H A R E S  A M O U N T S  

SHARES  AMOUNTS 

 

SHARES  AMOUNTS 

 

I m p a i r m e n t 

l o s s  S H A R E S  S h a r e ％  A M O U N T S  

p r o v i d e  a 

guarantee or 

P l e d g e 

s i t u a t i o n 

Ming Chao Enterprise Co., Ltd.     2,703,905    $ 21,303     -    $ 753     -    $ -    $ -     2,703,905  9.45    $ 22,056  N/A 

                                      

Taiwan Small and Medium 

Enterprise Development 

Corporation 

    854,360     7,750     -     198     -     -     -     854,360  1.21     7,948  〃 

                                      

      $ 29,053         $ 951         $ -    $ -        $ 30,004   
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C H E N  F U L L I N T E R N AT I O N A L C O . ,  LT D .  

S c h e d u l e  o f  i n v e s t m e n t  c h a n g e s  u s i n g  t h e  e q u i t y  m e t h o d  

F r o m  J a n u a r y  1 s t  t o  D e c e m b e r  3 1 s t  i n  t h e  2 0 2 2  a n d  2 0 2 1  

S c h e d u l e  7  U n i t :  u n l e s s  o t h e r w i s e  s p e c i f i e d  

,  i n  t h o u s a n d s  o f  N T  d o l l a r s  

 

  Opening Balance  Opening Balance  Decrease in this period              Ending balance   market price or net equity value     

  

SHARES  AMOUNTS 

 

SHARES  AMOUNTS 

 

SHARES  AMOUNTS 

 

I n v e s t m e n t 

( p r o f i t )  l o s s  

Defined benefits 

Actuarial profit 

a n d  l o s s  

S u r p l u s 

d i s t r i b u t i o n  

c u m u l a t i v e 

c o n v e r s i o n 

a d j u s t m e n t  

equity method 

n e t  w o r t h 

a d j u s t m e n t  

A c h i e v e d 

Gross profit on 

s a l e s  S h a r e s  S h a r e ％  A M O U N T S  P r i c e  T o t a l  Evaluation basis  

p r o v i d e  a 

g u a r a n t e e  o r 

Pledge situation 

Unlisted company                                       

Quan Feng Industrial Co., Ltd.     15,280,000    $ 117,971     -    $ 1,823     -    $ -    $ 6,751    $ -    $ -    $ -    $ 1,844    $ -     15,280,000  100    $ 128,389  8.40    $ 128,389  Equity method  無 

Qianfu Water Resources Co., Ltd.     41,800,000   (  40,665 )     -     -     41,800,000   (  66,050 )   (  25,385 )     -     -     -     -     -     -  -     -  -     -  -  - 

CHEN FULL HOLDING CO., 

LTD. 

    -     94,951     -     -     -     -     22,636     -     -     2,797     -     4,576     -  100     124,960  -     124,960  Equity method  無 

CHENFU PRECISION CO., LTD.     37,717,000     986,306     -     114,862     439,000   (  39,987 )     227,463   (  61 )   (  135,556 )     -     -     -     37,278,000  63     1,233,001  33.08     1,233,001  〃  〃 

         $ 1,158,563         $ 116,685        ( $ 106,037 )    $ 231,465   ( $ 61 )   ( $ 135,556 )    $ 2,797    $ 1,844    $ 4,576        $ 1,486,350      $ 1,486,350     
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Schedule of Accounts Payable  

From January 1st to December 31st in the 2022 and 2021  

Schedule 8 Unit:  in thousands of NT dollars  

 

C u s t o m e r  N a m e  S u m m a r y   A m o u n t 

Accounts of unrelated persons     

qianheng stainless steel co., ltd.  payment    $ 57,305 

Huang Yi Technology Co., Ltd.  〃     37,486 

Qichang Machinery Industry Co., 

Ltd. 

 〃     27,532 

Zhao Guang International Co., Ltd.  〃     27,415 

other  〃     343,631 

       493,369 

        

Related person     

Dongguan Quanfeng Machinery Co., 

Ltd. 

 payment     345 

        

      $ 493,714 
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Schedule of operating Cost  

From January 1st to December 31st in the 2022 and 2021  

Schedule 9 Unit:  in thousands of NT dollars  

 

I t e m  Summary   Amount 

manufacturing cost  Beginning raw materials    $ 183,284 

  Current purchase     532,874 

  Inventory surplus     351 

  Raw materials at the end of the 

period 

  (  186,306 ) 

  Engineering picking   (  245,503 ) 

  Raw materials for sale   (  74,683 ) 

  other   (  15,482 ) 

  Scrap - raw material   (  1,820 ) 

  Current consumption     192,715 

  Direct labor     63,922 

  Manufacturing costs     251,156 

  manufacturing cost     507,793 

  WIP at the beginning of the period     166,974 

  Current purchase     282,522 

  Inventory surplus     94 

  WIP   (  187,547 ) 

  Engineering picking   (  91,753 ) 

  other   (  7,358 ) 

  Scrap - WIP   (  8,394 ) 

  WIP   (  55,815 ) 

  finished product cost     606,516 

  Beginning finished goods     51,413 

  Current purchase     36,620 

  Inventory loss   (  1,225 ) 

  other   (  94 ) 

  Scrap - Finished Goods   (  2,508 ) 

  Engineering picking   (  294,653 ) 

  Finished Goods   (  99,642 ) 

  manufacturing cost of goods sold     296,427 

commodity inventory  Beginning Inventory     849 

  Current purchase     26,323 

  other   (  9 ) 

  Ending inventory   (  501 ) 

  Merchandise Inventory Cost of 

Goods Sold 

    26,662 

  other   ( $ 479 ) 

  cost of raw materials sold     74,683 

  cost of work in process sold     55,815 

Inventory depreciation and 

sluggish loss 

      912 

Inventory loss       780 
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Inventory scrapping       12,722 

Proceeds from the sale of 

scraps 

    (  2,410 ) 

       465,112 

engineering cost  Input materials in this period     631,909 

  Investment outsourcing in this 

period 

    270,287 

  Labor invested in this period     148,070 

  Input cost in this period     199,056 

       1,249,322 

      $ 1,714,434 
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Schedule of operating expenses  

From January 1 to December 31  in 2022 and 2021  

Schedule 10 Unit:  in thousands of NT dollars  

 

I t e m  

M a r k e t i n g 

e x p e n s e s  

Administrativ

e  ex p en s es  

Research and 

development  T o t a l 

Salary expenses 

(including pension, etc.) 

   $ 23,328    $ 90,219    $ 19,995    $ 133,542 

freight     5,271     109     3     5,383 

Water and electricity 

bills 

    -     12,692     -     12,692 

Insurance fee     2,458     8,165     1,915     12,538 

Depreciation expense     149     13,130     43     13,322 

research fee     -     -     6,675     6,675 

Commission expense     2,062     -     -     2,062 

other fee     27,731     43,231     1,620     72,582 

    $ 60,999    $ 167,546    $ 30,251    $ 258,796 
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CHEN FULL INTERNATIONAL CO., LTD.  

Schedule of Summary of employee benefits and depreciation expenses incurred in the current period  

From January 1 to December 31 in  2022 and 2021 

Schedule 11 Unit:  unless otherwise specified  

,  in thousands of NT dollars  

 

  2022  2021 

  belonging to operating costs  belonging to operating expenses  t o t a l  belonging to operating costs  belonging to operating expenses  total 
Employee benefits expenses             

Salary costs    $ 172,068    $ 127,658    $ 299,726    $ 126,659    $ 119,982    $ 246,641 

labor health insurance     16,335     11,977     28,312     13,385     12,110     25,495 

Pension costs     6,856     5,664     12,520     5,572     5,921     11,493 

Director's remuneration     -     220     220     -     340     340 

Other employee benefit expenses     8,132     7,102     15,234     7,180     6,625     13,805 

    $ 203,391    $ 152,621    $ 356,012    $ 152,796    $ 144,978    $ 297,774 

                               

Depreciation expense    $ 14,536    $ 13,322    $ 27,858    $ 13,698    $ 14,713    $ 28,411 

                               

Amortization fee    $ 970    $ 5,305    $ 6,275    $ -    $ 7,990    $ 7,990 
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Chapter 7.  Review and Analysis of the Financial Condition, 

Operating Performance and Risk Issues 

I. Financial Condition 
Unit: NTD'000 

Year  

 

  Item  
December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021 

Variance 

Amount % 

Current Assets 3,539,705 3,642,937 -103,232 -2.83 

Properties, Plants and Equipment 1,426,695 1,608,192 -181,497 -11.29 

Other Assets 674,466 663,892 10,574 1.59 

Total Assets 5,640,866 5,915,021 -274,155 -4.63 

Current Liabilities 1,234,198 1,731,762 -497,564 -28.73 

Non-current Liabilities 180,184 190,214 -10,030 -5.27 

Total Liabilities 1,414,382 1,921,976 -507,594 -26.41 

Capital Stocks 1,137,605 1,181,925 -44,320 -3.75 

Capital Surplus 1,208,562 1,491,515 -282,953 -18.97 

Retained Earnings 1,209,111 928,989 280,122 30.15 

Total Shareholders' Equity 4,226,484 3,993,045 233,439 5.85 

(1) Analysis of variation of plus-minus (+/-) 20%： 

(1) The decrease in current liabilities and total liabilities is mainly due to the disposal of a subsidiary, Qianfu Water Resources, 

during the current period, which did not result in any reclassification of the reserve for bad debts. 

(2) The increase in retained earnings is primarily attributable to the resolution passed at the 2022 annual shareholders' meeting 

to not distribute dividends and to distribute cash from the capital surplus instead. 
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II. Financial Performance 

1)Analysis of Financial Performance                                          Unit: NTD '000; % 

Item 2022 2021 Variance Amount Variance rate(%) 

Operating Revenues 4,019,184 3,503,317 515,867 14.73  

Operating Costs  3,156,096 2,667,689 488,407 18.31  

Gross profit 863,088 835,628 27,460 3.29  

Operating Expense 500,589 420,425 80,164 19.07  

Operating Income - -27,555     

Non-Operating Incomes and (Expenditures) 362,499 387,648 -25,149 -6.49 

Income Before Income Tax 190,155 21,749 168,406 774.32  

Income Tax Expense 552,654 409,397 143,257 34.99  

Net Income -126,662 -62,011 -64,651 104.26  

Analysis of variation of plus-minus (+/-) 20%： 

(1) Non-operating income and expenses: The increase in foreign exchange gains and the disposal gain from the subsidiary, 

Qianfu Water Resources, primarily contributed to the increase in non-operating income and expenses. 

(2) Other items with changes in ratios exceeding 20%: The increase in revenue and non-operating income and expenses during 

the current period primarily contributed to the changes in other items with ratios exceeding 20%. 

2) For the estimated sales volume and the underlying rationale for the following year, the potential 

impacts on the Company’s future business and action plans: 

The Company will continue to focus on the development of new products and technologies, develop 

products that meet various engineering needs and enhance engineering performance to meet the 

environmental needs of high-tech and low-pollution manufacturing processes. In addition, the major 

international equipment manufacturers will make Taiwan an extremely important Display panel 

equipment production base and will be formed in Asia as the mainstay of the aerospace industry, as 

well as high-tech smart shoes to explore business opportunities, the Company actively expand the 

scale of production processes, improve technical energy to meet future business needs and to adjust 

the product Structure, the company's performance and niche can be further substantial increase. 

 

 

III. Cash Flow 

1) Cash Flow Analysis 

Unit: NT$ '000; % 

Year  

Item  
2022 2021 Variance Rate 

Operating activities 246,684  401,585  (38.57%) 

Investing activities (466,007) (164,494) (183.30%) 

Financing activities (166,831) 681,598  (124.48%) 
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Variance Description: 

1. Investment activities: Net cash inflows increased over the previous period mainly due to 

profit increase and Accounts receivable increase. 

2. Finance activities: Net cash outflows increased over the previous period mainly due to sold 

out financial asset decrease. 

3. Fund-raising activities: Net cash outflows increased over the previous period mainly due to 

short-term notes and bills payable and ticket decreased. 

2) Remedy plans for insufficient liquidity: Not Applicable 

3) Estimated Cash Flow Analysis for Next Year 

Unit: NT$ '000; % 

 

Cash and Cash 

Equivalents in 

the Beginning 

Forecast Net Cash 

Inflow from Operating 

Activities 

Forecast Net Cash 

Outflow from 

Non-Operating 

Activities 

Expected Negative 

Balance of Cash and 

Cash Equivalents 

Expected Remedy Plans for Negative 

Balance of Cash  

Investment Plan Financing Plan 

1,150,739 775,737 -412,726 1,513,750 - - 

 

2. Analysis of Major Capital Expenditure and Sources of Funding 

 

IV. Major Capital Expenditure and Sources of Funding : none 

 

V. Investment Policies, Reasons for Profit/Loss, Plans for Improvement, and Future Investment Plan 

in the Recent Year 

Unit: NT$ '000 

          Description 

item Policies  
Profit 

amount 

The main reason of profit or 

loss 

Plans for 

Improvement 

Future 

Investment 

Plan 

ChenFull Precision Co., 

Ltd 

Precision components and 

aerospace equipment 

manufacturing. 

355,409 

Stable and consistent profit 

growth.   

CHENFENG 

Machinery & Enterprise 

Co., Ltd 

Operating business center 

7,487 

Steady growth in rental and 

agency of machinery for 

business center clients. 

－ － 

CHENFULL 

HOLDING CO., LTD. 

Holding business 
22,636 

Investing in NEW 

OPPORTUNITY LIMITED. 
－ － 

NEW OPPORTUNITY 

LIMITED 

Holding business 

23,831 

Transfer investing in 

CHENFULL 
－ － 
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Machinery  (Dongguan)  Co

., Ltd 

CHENFULL 

Machinery  (Dongguan

)  Co., Ltd 

Precision machinery and 

equipment, footwear 

equipment, ventilation 

equipment and spare parts 

sales 

23,831 Actively expand the market. － － 
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VI. Risk Issues 

(I) Impact and Response to Interest Rates, Exchange Rates, and Inflation Levers on the Company in 

the Year Preceding Publication of Annual Report 

1. Interest rate 

   The Company incurred a risk of fair value interest rate risk due to holding fixed-rate 

fixed-term deposits and bank borrowings. However, borrowings are fixed interest rates and 

are not engaged in various derivative financial instruments' operating activities. The risk 

arising from changes in interest rates is not significant. 

 

2. Exchange rate 

    The Company's foreign currency receivables are the same as some of the foreign currency 

payables, with certain positions resulting in a natural hedging effect that will decrease or 

increase pre-tax profit or loss before tax at 1% relative to the US dollar at the end of 2022 

$5,649 thousand dollars. 

    The Company will continue to observe the market exchange rate movements. Under the 

conservative principle, the Company will adjust the positions of foreign currency assets for 

foreign currency hedging. 

 

3. Inflation 

    In recent years, the price index in Taiwan has been increasing year by year. On the sales 

side, salespeople are required to consider their changes in product pricing in a timely manner 

in order to adjust their selling prices. In terms of engineering, they are subject to adjustments 

made during the construction period in order to protect due profits. 

(II) The main reasons for the policy, profit or loss of high risk, high leveraged investment, fund 

lending and others, endorsed guarantees and derivative commodities transactions and their future 

response measures: 

 

1. The company's policy to operate the industry-based, with the exception of holding 100% 

subsidiary endorsed by the company did not engage in any high-risk, high leveraged investment 

and loans to others and other transactions. The Company has formulated the "Proceeding or 

Disposal of Assets Proceedings" to follow the Company's capital operation, investment 

operations and derivatives transactions. 

 

2. In response to the operational needs of the transferred-in companies, the "Procedures for Loan 

Lending and Other People's Loans" and the "Endorsement Assurance Procedures" have been 

formulated in accordance with the relevant laws and regulations of the competent authorities and 

administered by the specialized units. At the same time, the Company's auditing units also 

conducted regular inspections of relevant operating procedures in accordance with the internal 
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control system. 

 

3. Future related operations will still follow the company's internal control system. 

 

(III) Future R & D projects and estimated R & D expenses: 

    For future research and development projects, please refer to "Overview of Business 1. (I) 4. New 

Products Planned for Development." The Company expects to spend R & D of $33,210 thousand in 

R & D in 2023. In order to tie in with the development of the industry and increase market share, The 

company will continue to invest in research and development to maintain the competitiveness of its 

products. 

 

(IV) The impact of major domestic and foreign policies and laws on the company's financial 

operations and response measures: 

    In the light of the current important policy and legal changes announced by the government, there 

is no significant impact on the Company's financial business. Moreover, the operation of the 

Company complies with the laws and regulations of the PRC and overseas governments. The 

Company and its staff from overseas-invested companies also collect information on changes in 

relevant policies and laws and provide management information for reference. Therefore, major 

changes in policies and laws at home and abroad can be effectively controlled and the necessary 

response measures taken to reduce the adverse impact. 

 

(V) The impact of technological changes and industrial changes on the company's financial business 

and response measures: 

    The Company keeps abreast of the technological changes in the relevant industries and trends in 

the industry, assesses the impact on the future development of the Company and its financial 

operations and takes necessary response measures. In the latest year, However, there is no matter that 

has material impact on the financial operations of the Company. 

 

(VI) The impact of corporate image changes on corporate crisis management and response measures: 

    Since its inception, the Company has adhered to its business philosophy of "honesty, proactiveness, 

innovation and breakthrough" and attached importance to corporate image and risk control. 

Therefore, there is no such thing as having a significant impact on corporate crisis management as a 

result of corporate image changes. 

 

(VII) Expected benefits of M & A, possible risks and countermeasures: None. 

(VIII) Expected benefits of plant expansion, possible risks and corresponding measures: 

The expansion of the plant of the Company is based on prudent assessment of existing production 

capacity and future operation growth. Significant capital expenditures are considered by the Board of 
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Directors and investment benefits and possible risks have been properly considered. 

In view of the continuous development of the integrated manufacturing of precision components, it is 

planned to expand Phase II of Taichung Plant in order to increase production energy and efficiency 

and enhance competitiveness. It is expected to increase its operating revenue year by year. As of the 

publication date of the annual report, the planned operation is still progressing get on. 

 

(IX) The risks and countermeasures in the purchase or sales concentration: 

1. Purchase: The main materials for the company are all kinds of air doors, fittings, flanges, 

mechanical components and their related interior materials, etc. The purchase items of the 

engineering business are procured according to contractual requirements. Therefore, the procurement 

items and specifications of each project are different, the suppliers are also different, resulting in 

stock suppliers each year there is a change, there is no risk of stock concentration; the other shoe 

manufacturing machinery and precision components manufacturing industry accounted for no more 

than 10% of the purchase amount of purchase customers . 

2. Sales: The company's engineering business to semiconductor plant-based projects; and 

shoe-making machinery and precision components assembly manufacturing industry is also due to 

product features and technical thresholds, affirmed by the customer, with customers to build a deep 

and stable supply chain. Therefore, the Company's sales target is stable in the recent two years. 

 

(X) Influence, risk and response to the Company of directors, supervisors or substantial shareholders 

holding more than 10% of the shares transferred or exchanged in large amount: 

    In the most recent year and up to the date of printing of the Annual Report, there were no directors, 

supervisors or substantial shareholders holding more than 10% of the shares, which were 

substantially transferred or replaced. 

 

  (XI) IMPACT, RISK AND RESPONSIBILITY OF CHANGE OF MANAGEMENT RIGHTS ON 

THE COMPANY: The Company has no change of right of operation. 

 

  (XII) Litigation or non-litigation: 

1. CHENFULL Company undertook the "Electrical and Mechanical Engineering of Headquarter 

Wine Storage Building and Storage Equipment New Construction Project" of Kinmen Kaoliang 

Liquor INC. as a result of the construction of the storage tank barrel by the civil construction As a 

result, the construction company contracted to paint pollution. Therefore, CHENFULL Company 

filed a suit for damages in Fujian Kinmen District Court. According to the court's judgment, the 

defendant, TWINTOP TECH ENGINEERING Co., LTD, should compensate NT $ 2,380,000 for 

CHENFULL Company. In February 2013, the Company provided a guarantee of NT $ 800 thousand 

(listed in other non-current assets) in accordance with the aforesaid verdict and executed the 

execution of the antithesis of the company. The Supreme Court in the current trial. 
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2. The directors, supervisors, general managers and substantial principals of the Company, the 

substantial shareholders and the subordinate companies whose shareholdings exceed 10% of the 

share capital, the litigations that have been adjudged or currently pending in the subparagraph at the 

date of printing of the latest annual and annual reports , Non-litigation or administrative litigation, 

the results may have a significant impact on the company's shareholders' equity or securities prices: 

Non 

 

  (XIII) Other important risks and countermeasures: 

1. Risk management policy 

    The risk management policy of the Company is to establish a risk management mechanism for risk 

identification, measurement, supervision and control as well as an integrated risk management 

system. With a risk management-oriented business model, the Company achieves its operating 

targets and enhances shareholders' value. 

    In addition to the original system of rules and regulations, the Company has also been actively 

developing more advanced businesses in the areas of marketing market, production and operation, 

human resources planning, progress of new product development and financial accounting control 

and other major risks faced by various business operations. With more sensitive procedures and 

guidelines for monitoring, assessing and controlling risks so as to balance safety with efficiency and 

establish more cost-effective business modes of operation such as strengthening the establishment of 

information systems and strengthening the capability of early warning and monitoring. 

 

2. Risk Management Organization 

    The Company's risk management is divided into three levels (mechanisms): the unit of 

responsibility and responsibility is the "first mechanism", and the initial risk identification, 

evaluation and control of the operation must be taken into consideration when designing and 

preventing risk. The second mechanism is a high-level executive meeting convened by the chief 

executive. The second mechanism is responsible for the planning implementation of the feasibility 

assessment and resolution, as well as the overall command of promotion and operation of various 

risk assessment and risk management plans. The third mechanism is the review of legal affairs and 

audit rooms and the consideration of directors and supervisors. 

    The Company's risk management structure is as follows: 

Audit Office: To review the existing or potential risks of each operation and formulate an annual 

risk-oriented audit plan to assist the Board of Directors and managers in checking and reviewing the 

deficiencies of the internal control system and measuring the effectiveness and efficiency of the 

operation so as to ensure the internal Control system to be sustained and effective implementation. 

 

Management Department: responsible for the effective allocation of human resources and 

contingency, the implementation of various insurance operations, the establishment and maintenance 
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of environmental safety and health, the statutory regulatory review and establishment, follow the 

government supervision policy and deal with contracts and litigation disputes, management of 

patents and other Intellectual Property Rights to Reduce Legal Risks and External Public Affairs 

Risks. 

 

Finance Department: Responsible for financial planning and application. Under the risk control and 

oversight mechanism, emphasis is placed on safety, liquidity and profitability so as to establish a 

hedging mechanism to reduce financial risks. 

 

Accounting Department: Responsible for the assessment and review of the transfer of investment, 

transfer of investment supervision and management, in order to reduce the risk of investment. 

 

Purchasing Department: Responsible for the planning of procurement and material storage and 

transportation operations and the establishment of contingency plans for suppliers to enhance the 

procurement efficiency and the effective use of materials to reduce the risk of procurement 

management and material safety. 

 

Information Department: responsible for information system and network information security 

control and protection measures to reduce the risk of information security. 

R & D center: R & D work environment contingency measures, new product development risk 

assessment, research and development progress control. 

 

Security Center: responsible for safety and health supervision and management, follow Lao An laws 

and regulations, to reduce the risk of accidents. 

 

Business Unit: Responsible for collecting and establishing market information, coordinating 

production and sales, establishing and processing customer relationships, and tracking and receiving 

receivables to reduce operational risk. 

 

Manufacturing units: contingency plans and contingency plans for production operations and 

manpower support and allocation plans to reduce the risk of factory production and operation. 

 

VII. Other important information： 

(I) Information about financial products other than shares and depositary receipts: 

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows: 

1. The fair values of the financial assets and financial liabilities with standard terms and conditions 

and traded in the active markets are respectively determined with reference to market quotations. If 

there is no market price for reference, then use the evaluation method to estimate. The estimates and 
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assumptions used in the method of valuation are consistent with those used by market participants 

for the pricing of financial products as estimates and assumptions. 

2. Stocks without public quotes: Includes no quoted public shares at fair value. The fair value is 

based on the method of market appraisal - the PE ratio and the share price to equity ratio to assess the 

fair value of the fair value. 

 

(B) Whether the use of hedge accounting and its goals and methods: 

    The foreign currency receivables of the Company are the same as those of the foreign 

currency payables. Accordingly, certain positions will have a natural hedging effect. The net 

investment of the foreign operating institutions is a strategic investment and therefore, the 

Group has not avoided this risk. 

 

(C) Assets and liabilities evaluation items recognized : 

1. Allowance of accounts receivable  

(1) Allowance for doubtful debts is based on the assessment of the recoverability of the 

receivables. The Company regularly evaluates the recoverability of accounts receivable based 

on the aging analysis of accounts receivable from customers and the value of collaterals. 

(2) Individual accounts receivable should be appraised as to whether there is any significant 

financial difficulty, bankruptcy or the like occurred to the debtor, and the bad debts allowance 

will be provided if the future cash flow is affected. 

2. Allowance of inventories decline  

    The inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. When comparing 

the cost with the net realizable value, except for inventories of the same type, the inventories 

are based on individual items. Net realizable value represents the balance of the estimated 

selling price under normal circumstances less the estimated costs to completion and the 

estimated costs necessary to make the sale 
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Chapter 8.  Special Notes 

I. Affiliates Information 

Consolidated Business and Affiliates Report  

1. General information of CHENFULL International Co., Ltd. and affiliates:      

Unit: In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, 

Company Date of 

incorporation 

Address Common 

Stock Issued 

Major Business Activities 

CHENFENG 

Machinery & 

Enterprise Co., Ltd 

1998.12.29 12F, No.107, ZhongXiao E Rd., 

Daan Dist., Taipei City 

NTD  

152,800 

business center Operating 

CHENFULL 

PRECISION CO., 

LTD 

2020.07.20 Central Taiwan Science Park , 

Ministry of Science and Technology  

No. 28, Houke S. Rd., Houli Dist., 

Taichung City  

NTD591,690 Precisioning machining 

and aerospace machining  

CHENFULL 

HOLDING CO., 

LTD. 

2002.02.01 Vistra Corporate Services 

Centre,Ground Floor NPF 

Building,Beach Road,Apia,Samoa 

USD   2,000 Holding business 

NEW 

OPPORTUNITY 

LIMITED 

2010.08.06 Vistra Corporate Services 

Centre,Ground Floor NPF 

Building,Beach Road,Apia,Samoa 

USD   2,000 Holding business 

CHENFENG 

Machinery 

(Dongguan) Co., 

Ltd. 

2011.06.20 No11, Lane3, Baonada Rd., 

XingTang Village, Houjie Town, 

Dongguan City, Guangdong 

Province, China  

USD   2,000 Precision machinery and 

equipment, footwear 

equipment, ventilation 

equipment and spare parts 

sales 

 

2. Companies presumed to have a relationship of control and subordination with CHENFULL 

under Article 369-3 of the R.O.C. Company Law: None. 

3. Industries covered by the business operated by the affiliates and description of the mutual 

dealings and division of work among such affiliates: 

Industry Company 
Description of the mutual dealings and division of 

work among such affiliates: 

Equipment sales 
CHENFENG Machinery & 

Enterprise Co., Ltd 

business center Operating and shoe facilities 

sales 

Manufacturing 
CHENFULL PRECISION 

CO., LTD 
Precision parts and aerospace parts machining 

Holding company CHENFULL HOLDING 

CO., LTD. 

Investing in NEW OPPORTUNITY LIMITED 
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Holding company NEW OPPORTUNITY 

LIMITED 

CHENFENG Machinery (Dongguan) Co., Ltd. 

Buying and selling 
CHENFENG Machinery 

(Dongguan) Co., Ltd. 

Precision machinery and equipment, footwear 

equipment and ventilation equipment sales of its 

spare parts 

 

4. Directors, supervisors, and general managers of Far EasTone and affiliates: 

March 31, 2023 Unit: Number of Shares; % 

Company  Title  Name or Representative 

Registered Shares Owned 

Shares 
% of 

Ownership 

CHENFENG Machinery 

& Enterprise Co., Ltd 
Director 

CHENFULL International Co., LTD 

Representative: Alice Chang 
15,280,000 100% 

CHENFULL PRECISION 

CO., LTD 
Director 

CHENFULL International Co., LTD 

Representative: Alice Chang 
59,169,000 63% 

CHENFULL HOLDING 

CO., LTD. 
Director 

CHENFULL International Co., LTD 

Representative: Alice Chang 

Contribution 

USD2,000,000 
100% 

NEW OPPORTUNITY 

LIMITED 
Director 

CHENFULL HOLDING CO., LTD. 

Representative: Alice Chang 

Contribution 

USD2,000,000 
100% 

CHENFENG Machinery 

(Dongguan) Co., Ltd. 

Director 

NEW OPPORTUNITY LIMITED 

Representative: Alice Chang, Bai-Qing Xue, 

Yong-Hui Zhang 
Contribution 

USD2,000,000 
100% 

Supervisor 
NEW OPPORTUNITY LIMITED 

Representative: Ken Yang  

5. Operation overview of CHENFULL and affiliates: 

December 31, 2022 Unit: In Thousands of NTD 

Company  
Common 

Stock 
Issued 

Total Assets 
Total 

Liabilities 

Total 
Stockholders’ 

Equity 

Operating 
Revenue 

Operating 
Income 

Net 
Income 

Earnings 
Per Share 

(NT$) 

CHENFULL 
WATER 
RECOURCES 
CO., LTD 

  -             -           -              -    46,388 -20,503 -25,385       -    
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CHENFENG 
Machinery & 
Enterprise Co., 
Ltd 

152,800 141,781 2,755 139,026 25,215 4,591 7,487 0.49  

CHENFULL 

PRECISION CO., 

LTD 

591,690 2,559,584 602,520 1,957,064 1,783,495 333,712 355,409 6.11  

CHENFULL 

HOLDING CO., 

LTD. 

60,448 124,960        -    124,960        -           -    22,636       -    

NEW 

OPPORTUNITY 

LIMITED 

60,448 107,024        -    107,024        -           -    23,831       -    

CHENFENG 
Machinery 
(Dongguan) Co., 
Ltd. 

60,448 144,951 37,927 107,024 216,874 19,962 23,831       -    

(Note: On May 30, 2022, the company imposed sanctions on Qianfu Water Resources Co., Ltd. and 

lost control of the subsidiary.) 

6. Declaration for the Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises of the Company: 

The companies required to be included in the consolidated financial statements of affiliates in 

accordance with the “Criteria Governing Preparation of Affiliation Reports, Consolidated Business 

Reports and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises” for the year ended 

December 31, 2022. Relevant information that should be disclosed in the consolidated financial 

statements of affiliates has all been disclosed in the consolidated financial statements of parent and 

subsidiaries companies as of and for the years. Hence, we did not prepare a separate set of 

consolidated financial statements of affiliates for the year. 

7. Affiliation Report：Not applicable. 

II. Private Placement Securities in the Recent Year until the Annual Report being Published: None 

III. The Company's Shares Held or Disposed by Subsidiaries in Recent Years until the Annual 

Report being Published: 

Unit: In Thousands of NTD；Share；% 

Subsidiary(Note) CHENFENG Machinery & Enterprise Co., Ltd 

Paid in capital 152,800 

Source of funding private capital 

% owned by the Company 100% 

Acquisition / disposal date Current up to publication date: 
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No. of shares acquired and payment costs None 

No. of shares sold /proceeds None 

Investment income None 

Up to publication date: 

Total No. of shares / value 

281,759 shares  

$5,205 

Pledges None 

Guarantees / endorsements provided by the Company None 

Financing provided by the Company None 

Note: CHENFENG Machinery & Enterprise Co., Ltd held 281,759 shares of the Company as of the printing date of the annual report, 

accounting for 0.25% of the total number of issued shares of the Company. 

IV. Other Supplementary Information: None 

 

V. Material Event Impact on Shareholders' Equity or Share Price in the Recent Year until the 

Annual Report being Published: None 
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CHENFULL International Co., LTD 

Statement of Internal Control System 

Date: March 13, 2023 

Statement of Internal Control System for the year ended December 31, 2022 of CHENFULL International Co., 

LTD. (The Company). We hereby declare as follows: 

 

The company recognizes that the establishment, implementation, and maintenance of internal control systems are 

the responsibility of our Board of Directors and management. We have established such a system to achieve our 

operational objectives, including effectiveness and efficiency (including profitability, performance, and asset 

security), reliable reporting, compliance with relevant regulations and laws, and transparency. 

 

Internal control systems have inherent limitations, and even effective systems can only provide reasonable 

assurance regarding the achievement of the above objectives. Moreover, the effectiveness of internal control 

systems may change due to changes in the environment and circumstances. However, our internal control system 

includes self-supervision mechanisms, and we take corrective action once any deficiency is identified. 

 

The company evaluates the effectiveness of the internal control system based on the judgment criteria specified in 

the "Guidelines for Establishing Internal Control Systems for Public Companies" ("Guidelines"). These judgment 

criteria divide the internal control system into five components: 1. Control Environment, 2. Risk Assessment, 3. 

Control Activities, 4. Information and Communication, and 5. Monitoring Activities. Each component includes 

several items. Please refer to the "Guidelines" for the specific requirements. 

 

The company has adopted the above judgment criteria to evaluate the design and implementation of our internal 

control system. 

 

Based on the above evaluation, we believe that our internal control system (including the supervision and 

management of subsidiaries) as of December 31, 2022, enables us to understand the achievement of our operational 

objectives, ensure reliable, timely, transparent, and compliant reporting, and effectively achieve the objectives. 

 

This statement will be a major content of our annual report and public disclosure. If any unlawful acts such as 

falsehoods or concealment are found in the disclosed information, our company will be subject to legal liability 

under the Securities and Exchange Act, Articles 20, 32, 171, and 174. 

 

This statement was approved by the Board of Directors on March 13, 2023. Among the seven directors present, no 

one expressed opposition, and all agreed with the content of this statement. 

 

 

CHENFULL International Co., LTD 


